
Page 1 of 1 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 07, 2022 

5:20 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Committee meetings will begin at the time noted above with succeeding Committee meetings starting immediately 
following the conclusion of the previous meeting. Time periods for individual topics represent an estimate and is 
based on the time of completion of the previous Committee topic. 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Finance & Business Operations Committee 

1. Library Interviews - Michael Graziano and Lindi Roelofse. 
(10 Minutes) 

2. Audit Report. 
(10 Minutes, Controller/City Treasurer Lisa Roeding) 

3. Review of TIF and Standard Incentive Policies. 
(30 Minutes, Economic Development Coordinator Shane Graham) 

Community Development Committee 

1. Cedar Falls Economic Development Corp. Update. 
(20 Minutes, Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation Executive Director Jim Brown) 

2. Cedar Falls High School Pool Fundraising – “Jump In”. 
(20 Minutes, Jump In Co-Chairs Traci Mallaro & Lorelei Redfern) 

1



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

  

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: November 1, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Appointments to the Library Board of Trustees 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-407 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I hereby 

nominate the following citizens for appointment to the Library Board of Trustees for a six-

year term: 

 

 Mr. Michael Graziano, term ending 6/30/2028 (New Appointment) 

 Mr. Lindi Roelofse, term ending 6/30/2028 (New Appointment) 

 

2. I am also scheduling interviews with the Finance and Business Operations Committee prior 

to this appointment being considered by the City Council as is customary. 

 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Finance and Business Operations 

  Library Director 

 

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2

Item 1.



GENERAL APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITY BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 
Thank you for your interest in volunteer civic service. Complete all sections of this application; please contact City Hall  
at (319) 273-8600 with questions.  The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement.

Name: …………………………...........…   ……     …………................……...………...   Gender:  ………...   Date: …………….……… 
First  MI  Last 

Home Address: …………………………………………………….………….……  Home Phone: ………….……………………………..... 

Work Address:  ……………………………………………………………..……....    Work Phone: ………………………….………………. 

E-mail Address: …………………………………………………….……………….     Cell Phone:  ………………………….………………. 

Employer: …………………………………….…………………… Position/Occupation: ………………..…………………………..……… 

If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: ……………………………… City Ward: ……………          ❑ I have a LinkedIn Profile

DESIRED NOMINATIONS:  Check or fill in boxes for all that apply; view detailed descriptions at https://bit.ly/cf-boards 
❑ Art and Culture Board ❑ Human Rights Commission
❑ Board of Adjustment ❑ Library Board of Trustees
❑ Board of Appeals ❑ Parks & Recreation Commission
❑ Board of Electric Examiners & Appeals ❑ Planning & Zoning Commission
❑ Board of Mechanical Examiners & Appeals ❑ Historic Preservation Commission ❑ Utilities Board of Trustees
❑ Board of Plumbing Examiners & Appeals

❑ Board of Rental Housing Appeals
❑ Civil Service Commission
❑ Community Center & Senior Services Board
❑ Health Trust Fund Board

❑ Housing Commission ❑ Visitors & Tourism Board

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT: Please describe past and present involvement in the community, including voluntary, social, city, 
religious, school, business and professional (include dates and offices held, if applicable). 

QUALIFICATIONS: Please list any special qualifications for board service, including skills, training and certifications. 

MOTIVATION: Why do you desire to serve on city boards and commissions, and what contributions do you believe you can make? 

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST:  Please list organizations and relationships which could pose a potential conflict of 
interest during your service on a city board or commission. Civic leaders are expected to have many ties to community organizations 
and people; this listing does not preclude appointment but is intended to provide transparency and accountability for board service. 

850-322-7441

3

Michael

512 Hearthside Drive

UNI Bartlett Hall 1089, Cedar Falls, IA 50614

grazmike@gmail.com

UNI Professor

3 years

■

7/5/2022

At UNI, I research and teach on the relationship between religion and public education. I also direct the 
Institute for Religion & Education, which works to develop religious literacy. 

My family moved to Cedar Falls in 2019. During the pandemic, the CF Library became one of my family's 
favorite spots to take our toddler. We are very grateful for the services they provide, and I'd like to give back. 
I am also a strong advocate for literacy education, a goal that I believe the CF Library shares.

Other than my institutional relationship to UNI, I can't think of any relationships that could be a potential 
conflict of interest.

Graziano

3

Item 1.

sorensenj
Typewritten Text
                          Please e-mail completed this application to boards@cedarfalls.com                    or Mail to Mayor, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613          You will be contacted to submit a Candidate Questionnaire when a board vacancy occurs. 

sorensenj
Typewritten Text

sorensenj
Typewritten Text

sorensenj
Typewritten Text

https://bit.ly/cf-boards


 LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE 
 
 

   
 
 
 
Name: Michael Graziano                                                                                                 Date:     July 7, 2022           

  

      Can you attend board meetings on the 1
st
 Wednesday of the month at 4pm at the Cedar Falls Library?      Yes     No 

1. Why are you interested in serving on the Library Board of Trustees?  

 

I am interested in serving for three reasons. First, I’m simply a big fan of public libraries. Much like the long-standing 

U.S. commitment to public education, our country’s commitment to public libraries is part of its foundational though 

imperfect commitment to equality. I think a public library can and should be a core part of the community it serves. 

Second, I greatly value public institutions. I attended public schools, and I earned my PhD at a public university. I work 

at a public institution (UNI), and my teaching and research there includes a focus on public education. I am interested 

in doing what I can to support public institutions like the library in my own community, since these institutions are by 

their very nature intended to be accessible and open to all of our neighbors. 

Finally, since my family moved to Cedar Falls three years ago, the CF Library has become one of our favorite places in 

town (especially now that we have a toddler). We’ve been consistently impressed by the library’s creative and helpful 

offerings in addition to its great book selection. Simply put, if there’s a need for volunteers on the Board of Trustees, 

I’d like to help and give back.  

 

 

 

2. What is the role of the Public Library in supporting the community as a whole?  

 

The role of the public library is to serve the community by expanding and protecting access to knowledge, respecting 

intellectual freedom, and identifying other opportunities to serve citizens that advance these goals beyond access to 

books (e.g., skill-building workshops, community events, tool rentals, etc.). 

 

 

3. Because the Cedar Falls Public Library is owned by the City of Cedar Falls, what is the appropriate role 
of the Trustees in keeping the City informed and involved in library operations? 
 
The Trustees serve as a valuable connection between library operations and the citizens served by those 
operations. In my view, when any local government effort is working at its best, it is both responsive to the needs 
of its citizens while being proactive in anticipating how to best develop policy and use limited resources. Trustees 
should be knowledgeable about the CF Library’s budget and policies so that the City (and the people it serves) 
can best understand how their investment in the library benefits their community. 
 

 
 

 

4. The Trustees provide operational and fiduciary oversight for the Library; what is your experience in 
personnel management, financial operations, litigation, business operation, and risk management?  

 

While I do not have formal training in these areas, in addition to my teaching and research duties at 
UNI, I have managed the budget for various grants and workshops.  
 
 

4

Item 1.



 
 
 
 
 
 

5. Should the Cedar Falls Public Library be completely free of charge, or should fees be charged for select 
programs and services that extend beyond basic library offerings? 
 
In general, I think the CF Library’s services and programs should be free of charge so that these offerings are not 
unintentionally difficult for low-income community members to enjoy. Based on my time in the library as a patron, I also 
suspect that different community members understand “basic library offerings” quite differently—which is a testament to 
the wide range of valuable activities available in the library 

 
At the same time, I recognize that difficult budgeting decisions may have to be made, and I can imagine clear rationales 
for certain charges. For example, the library makes printing services available (thus saving patrons the cost of 
purchasing their own printer), but charges a set fee per page to offset the cost of paper and ink which helps to continue 
providing that service in the first place. 
 
 
 
 

6. If Library materials selection or self-censorship violates a Trustee’s personal beliefs, how might that Trustee 
best respond? 
 
I work in the academic study of religion at a public university, so dealing with challenging questions about professional 
judgment, bias, and personal belief are familiar to me. In my view, if library materials conflicted with the Trustee’s 
personal beliefs, that is (a) perfectly legitimate for that person to observe and feel, but (b) is not itself a sufficient reason 
to make those materials unavailable to the rest of the community.  
 
The role of the concerned Trustee, in this situation, would be to make a case about why this particular item would not 
serve the interests of the community as a whole. For example, if the library were to inadvertently acquire a book with 
antisemitic messaging, I hope that the Trustee would demonstrate how this book is not simply personally offensive but 
also damaging to our community as a whole. This also underscores the need for Trustees from diverse backgrounds 
and life experiences. 
 
I see the role of the individual Trustee as one voice working towards consensus with their colleagues, and I trust that if a 
challenging decision had to be made, the Trustees would work in good faith with both each other and community 
stakeholders to come to the best decision.  
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Please send this completed Candidate Questionnaire by the published deadline to:  

City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, fax to (319) 268-5126, 
or e-mail to boards@cedarfalls.com. You will be notified shortly if selected as a Finalist for the appointment 

5

Item 1.

mailto:boards@cedarfalls.com


GENERAL APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO CITY BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 
Thank you for your interest in volunteer civic service. Complete all sections of this application; please contact City Hall  
at (319) 273-8600 with questions.  The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement.

Name: …………………………...........…   ……     …………................……...………...   Gender:  ………...   Date: …………….……… 
First  MI  Last 

Home Address: …………………………………………………….………….……  Home Phone: ………….……………………………..... 

Work Address:  ……………………………………………………………..……....    Work Phone: ………………………….………………. 

E-mail Address: …………………………………………………….……………….     Cell Phone:  ………………………….………………. 

Employer: …………………………………….…………………… Position/Occupation: ………………..…………………………..……… 

If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: ……………………………… City Ward: ……………          ❑ I have a LinkedIn Profile

DESIRED NOMINATIONS:  Check or fill in boxes for all that apply; view detailed descriptions at https://bit.ly/cf-boards 
❑ Art and Culture Board ❑ Human Rights Commission
❑ Board of Adjustment ❑ Library Board of Trustees
❑ Board of Appeals ❑ Parks & Recreation Commission
❑ Board of Electric Examiners & Appeals ❑ Planning & Zoning Commission
❑ Board of Mechanical Examiners & Appeals ❑ Historic Preservation Commission ❑ Utilities Board of Trustees
❑ Board of Plumbing Examiners & Appeals

❑ Board of Rental Housing Appeals
❑ Civil Service Commission
❑ Community Center & Senior Services Board
❑ Health Trust Fund Board

❑ Housing Commission ❑ Visitors & Tourism Board

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT: Please describe past and present involvement in the community, including voluntary, social, city, 
religious, school, business and professional (include dates and offices held, if applicable). 

QUALIFICATIONS: Please list any special qualifications for board service, including skills, training and certifications. 

MOTIVATION: Why do you desire to serve on city boards and commissions, and what contributions do you believe you can make? 

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST:  Please list organizations and relationships which could pose a potential conflict of 
interest during your service on a city board or commission. Civic leaders are expected to have many ties to community organizations 
and people; this listing does not preclude appointment but is intended to provide transparency and accountability for board service. 

(319) 464-0752

II

Lindi

4815 Algonquin Drive #3, Cedar Falls IA 50613

8120 Jennings Drive 13P, Cedar Falls IA 50614

lindi.roelofse@uni.edu

University of Northern Iowa

(319) 464-0752

(319) 464-0752

Davis Chair in Entrepreneurship 

3 Years +

■

■

■
■

■
■
■
■
■
■

■

■

6/30/2022

As an economic devepment executive I served on 20+ local community boards and commissions in Iowa 
during the previous receesion supporting our community (2007-2012). Then I moved to England to pursue my 
Ph.D. and took on strategic leadership roles on 5+ emergent innovation inniatives (2012-2017). Now I am back 
in Iowa and as a parent I have mostly committed to underestimated and underserved innovators voices.

Ph.D in Strategy and Innovation (Management Studies), Newcastle University 
MBA in Strategy and Marketing, University of Iowa 
BA in Psychology, University of Iowa 
Housing Development Financing Professional (HDFP)

Many qualified individuals can make terrific contributions to our community, but who do I know? As we are 
heading into a recession I implore you to consider the place of underserved and underestimated innovators in 
your hierargy and their needs when you make policies. I would be honored to serve as a link building 
community betterment for members with the energy and passion without the power to tackle problems.

My action research centers on underserved and underestimated entrepreneurs and innovators. Creating 
win-win-win opportunities and policies to take healthy steps forward in Business-to-Government, 
Business-to-Business, and Business-to-Consumer revenue and diversification of approved vendor lists is 
something in my line of sight. This is at a systems level without chances of personal benefit.

FRoelofse

6

Item 1.

sorensenj
Typewritten Text
                          Please e-mail completed this application to boards@cedarfalls.com                    or Mail to Mayor, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613          You will be contacted to submit a Candidate Questionnaire when a board vacancy occurs. 

https://bit.ly/cf-boards


LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE

Name:       Lindi Roelofse Date: July 9, 2022

Can you attend board meetings on the 1st Wednesday of the month at 4pm at the Cedar Falls Library? X Yes ❑ No

1. Why are you interested in serving on the Library Board of Trustees?
i) Important. I believe the modern library is important. Companies like Google and SBDC realize that to reach
innovators a library is often a first point of community contact, even before entrepreneurial centers in the
innovation ecosystem. In terms of underserved and underestimated innovators (where I specialize) the
importance of libraries as a safe and trustworthy space to access trustworthy cultural knowledge is even
higher.
ii) Interesting. I believe the modern library is interesting and exciting. In my professional capacity we have won
awards in partnership with Rod Library team members for recognizing the importance of libraries and
entrepreneurial centers collaborating and training up lean startup methodologies.
iii) Integrative problem-solving. I love knowledge, learning, archiving data and I am curious about how the
modern library will continue to evolve. I am open to learning more. And as I learn more, I am open to exploring
and making introductions for integrated solutions to complex societal challenges.

2) What is the role of the Public Library in supporting the community as a whole?
I believe Public Library will mean different things to different people in different life paths, at different life
stages, yet it brings it all together into a constant. A constant that will welcome you when you are down on your
luck, a constant that gives you a fresh point of view when you need to explore a new path, a constant when a
pandemic hits and your home internet access is not reliable.

3) Because the Cedar Falls Public Library is owned by the City of Cedar Falls, what is the appropriate
role of the Trustees in keeping the City informed and involved in library operations?
As the “owner” there are a couple of liability hoops. Being good stewards with budgeting and allocating the
resources is a given. Minimizing unnecessary risk is another. It is also a symbol, so representing the values
of the government serving all residents regardless of who they voted for in the last election is another.

On the other hand, there is a separation. A commitment to specifically discourse on a variety of topics and
representing multiple sides of an issue. In a politically polarized world I hope that the Library offers the
symbolic separation between opposing forces and a safe space where conflicting ideas can coexist to be
understood better.

4) The Trustees provide operational and fiduciary oversight for the Library; what is your experience in
personnel management, financial operations, litigation, business operation, and risk management?

As the T. Wayne Davis Chair in Entrepreneurship at the University of Northern Iowa I train student and adult
changemakers who are interested in building something bigger than themselves in building these skill sets
and framing the policies and values that would allow them to make healthy decisions and ensure the
longer-term vitality of the initiatives that they deem most important.

7

Item 1.



Before returning to academia to pursue a Ph.D. I had experience as an executive director of a 28E
governmental partnership for economic development (2007-2012). That means I was responsible for
day-to-day personnel management, financial operations, litigation, business operation and risk
management. My 30 board directors did oversight. Prior to that I was also the executive director of an Arts
and Culture organization with the same responsibilities and my board of 12 directors provided oversight.

5) Should the Cedar Falls Public Library be completely free of charge, or should fees be charged for select
programs and services that extend beyond basic library offerings?

On the one hand there is something to be said for removing the barriers to access so everyone feels welcome
regardless of their socio-economic status at a specific point in time. In fact, one could argue that creating more
inclusive opportunities for community members to connect across socio-economic lines may be a part of the
solution to apathy, distrust and a whole host of societal challenges.

The question then becomes, at what threshold does the no-fee policy change? Would it create psychological
discomfort when there is ambiguity if something is not explicitly labeled as free, or someone’s trust needs to be
repaired if they have to turn around and walk away because the price was a surprise? There are ways to fix this
with clear signage and cultural normative expectations but it could get murky and in some cases may even be
illegal as well as erode the brand.

My first stab at a recommendation would be to lean on partnerships and/or parallel venture identities like ‘Friends
of the Library Foundation’ when services and programming could/should be charged. Image wise, let the other
players at the table take an explicit or symbolic lead on the special initiatives.  When and if appropriate, the
income portion that would be fair market earned income can then be paid back to the library by the partner
organization.

6) If Library materials selection or self-censorship violates a Trustee’s personal beliefs, how might that
Trustee best respond?

On paper, libraries should encourage civil discourse and dissent as part of civic engagement in forums designated
for that purpose and not ignore or avoid controversial topics out of fear of causing offense or provoking
controversy. To that end they should collect, maintain, and provide access to as wide a selection of materials and
events, reflecting as wide a diversity of views on a topic as possible, within their budgetary constraints and local
community needs. A balanced collection should include the variety of views that surround any given issue.

That being said, I am also aware that I personally have a value system that shapes my priorities. If controversial
topic X threatens to harm or trigger vulnerable individuals and they are not in a position to advocate for
themselves (yet) I will see it as my duty to have their back when they are not in the room and move towards
solutions that factor their stakeholder needs when possible.

For example, I am the mother of a three-year-old boy and seven-year-old girl, so this vantage point might include
measures to protect or shelter children as they go through various stages of cognitive, emotional, and social
development. I am a naturalized US citizen so this vantage point may include paying a lot of attention to the needs
of immigrant and refugee residents with non-typical lived experiences. I was a single mom living below the
breadline while working my way through college and that may include looking out for Library members in a lower
socio-economic class. I often also look out for stakeholders who are neurodiverse, have mobility constraints,
anyone working through societal, ancestral, or personal trauma. We may not be able to solve problems for all
these stakeholders who are less likely to be in the room when decisions are made, but I do stand for progress
when possible.

________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Please send this completed Candidate Questionnaire by the published deadline to:
8

Item 1.



City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, fax to (319) 268-5126,
or e-mail to boards@cedarfalls.com. You will be notified shortly if selected as a Finalist for the appointment

9

Item 1.



    I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

 

 
 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: October 31, 2022  

 SUBJECT:  FY2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

 
The FY2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report will be reviewed at the Finance 
and Business Operations Committee meeting on November 7, 2022.  Attached for your 
review are the following items: 
 
FY2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report – This report includes the 
transmittal letter; the Independent Auditor’s Report; Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis; the audited financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2022; 
supplementary information; and statistical information about the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
Management Letter – This document addresses any issues that the auditors noted 
during their engagement and also provides suggestions for improvement.    
 
FY2022 Information to Comply with Government Auditing Standards and Uniform 
Guidance – This report contains the Auditor’s reports on the financial information and 
internal control as it relates to the Federal Financial Programs; a summary of the 
Auditor’s results; and the findings related to required statutory reporting.  
 
The FY2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report will be on the Council Agenda for 
the November 7, 2022 Council meeting.  City of Cedar Falls staff recommends that the 
City Council receive and file the FY2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.  
Upon Council approval, these reports will be filed with the State Auditor’s Office and 
sent to the appropriate agencies.   
 
If you have any further questions regarding these audit reports or about our annual 
audit, please feel free to contact Jennifer Rodenbeck or myself.  
 
cc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
 
 
 
 
 

10

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended

]une 30,2022

Prepared by the Department of Finance & Business

Operations

F .A. L .L.S

11

Item 2.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

Annual Gomprehensive
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30,2022

Prepared bY:

Financial Services
of

Finance & Business OPerations

Lisa Roeding, CMFO
Control le/CitY Treasurer

12

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Annual Gomprehensive Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2022

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter of Transmittal
GFOA Certificate of Achievement
Organizational Charts
Principal Officials

FINANCIAL SECTION
lndependent Auditor's RePort

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Position

Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and changes in Fund

Balances - Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to

the Statement of Activities
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and changes in Fund Net

Position - ProPrietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds

Notes to Financial Statements
Required Supplementary lnformation:

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Function Budget

Notes to Required supplementary lnformation - Budgetary Reporting

schedule of the city's Proportionate share of the Net Pension

Liability - lowa Public Employees' Retirement System

Schedule of City Contributions - lowa Public Employees' Retirement System

Notes to Required Supplementary lnformation - Pension Liability -

lowa Public Employees' Retirement System

schedule of the city's Proportionate share of the Net Pension

Liability - Municipal Fire and Police Retirement system of lowa

Schedule of City Contributions - Municipal Fire and Police Retirement

SYstem of lowa
Notes to Required supplementary lnformation - Pension Liability -

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa

Schedule of Changes in the City's Total OPEB Liability, Related Ratios,

and Notes

Paoe

1

11

12

14

15

19

31

33

35

37

39
40

42
44
46

91

93

96
98

100

101

103

105

106

13

Item 2.



Other Supplementary I nformation:
Combining Fund Statements and Schedules:

combining Balance sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

changes in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

combining statement of Net Position - lnternal service Funds

combining statement of Revenues, Expenses, and changes in

Fund Net Position - lnternal Service Funds

combining statement of cash Flows - lnternal Service Funds

capitalAssets Used in the operation of Governmental Funds

ComParative Schedules bY Source

Schedule bY Function and ActivitY

Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity

STATISTICAL SECTION
Financial Trends:

Net Position bY ComPonent
Changes in Net Position
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Revenue CaPacitY:
Assessed and Taxable Value of Property

Property Tax Rates - Direct and overlapping Governments

PrinciPal ProPertY TaxPaYers

Property Tax Levies and Collections

PropertY Tax Valuations
Debt CaPacitY:

Ratios of Outstanding Debt bY TYPe

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Direct and OverlaPPing Debt

Legal Debt Margin lnformation
Revenue Bond Coverage - Sewer Authority

Sales History and Total Sewer Charges

Water Meters bY Rate Class

Largest Sewer Customers
Demographics on Economic lnformation:

Demographic and Economic Statistics
PrinciPal EmPloYers
Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by

Function/DePartment
Operating lnformation:

Operating lndicators bY Function

Capital Asset Statistics by Function

108

112
116

118
120

122
123
125

127
129
133
135

137
139
141
143
145

146
148
150
151
153
155
156
157

158
159

161

163
165

14

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
Z2OCLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS,IOWA 50513

PHONE 319-273-8600

FAX 319-268-5126

www.cedarfalls.com

November 7,2022

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the city council and citizens of the city of cedar Falls:

The City of Cedar Fails, towa (City) is required by the Code of lowa to publish a complete set of audited

financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Pursuant to

these requirements, I am pleased to submit to you the Annual comprehensive Financial Report of the

City of Cedar Falls, lowa, for the year ended June 30,2022. This is the first Annual Comprehensive

Financial Report completed in compliance with the Government standards Board (GASB) Statements No'

87.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained

in the report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this

purpose. Because of the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to

provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material

misstatements.

Eide Bailly, LLp, a firm of independent public accountants has issued an unmodified ("clean") opinion on

the city,s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022. Thei opinion is included in the Financial

Section of this rePort.

Management,s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's report and

provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. This letter of

transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it'

The city is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of ritle 2 u's'

Code of Federal Regutations Part 200, uniform Administrative Requiremenfs, Cosf Principles, and Audit

Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). lnformation to comply with the Uniform Guidance

and 
,,Government Auditing standards" is included in another report under a separate cover'

PROFILE OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

The City, incorporated in 1854, is located in the northeastern part of the state, has a land area of 28'9

square miles and a population of 40,713. The city is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and

-1- 15

Item 2.



personal property located within its boundaries, and has the power by state statute to extend its corporate

limits by annexation, which occur periodically when deemed appropriate by the City Council'

The city operates under a mayor-council form of government with an appointed city administrator' Policy-

making and legislative authority are vested in the governing council, which consists of seven members'

The city council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget' setting

goals, and approving mayor-appointed committees. The mayor is responsible for supervising the city

Administrator. The city Administrator is appointed by the council and serves as the chief administrative

officer. The mayor and council members are elected on a nonpartisan basis. The council consists of two

council members elected at large and one council member elected from each of the five wards as

established by ordinance, elected for terms of four years. The mayor is elected at large and to a two-year

term.

The city of cedar Falls provides many municipal services including fire and police protection, streets,

garbage collection, parks, recreation, cultural arts, planning, zoning, general administration' and sewer

and storm water services. For financial reporting purposes, all funds, agencies, boards' commissions'

trusts and authorities involved in the provision of these services are included if the city is financially

accountable. Financial accountability is determined by several different factors, including fiscal

dependence, ability to impose will upon the entity's governing body, provision of specific financial burdens

or benefits and separate legal entity status. After careful evaluation of these factors, the city has

included in this financial report the Cedar Falls Electric Utility, Gas Utility, Water Utility, and

communications Utility, as well as all funds of the city. The utilities are each reported as discretely

presented comPonent units.

The city council is required by chapter 384 of the code of lowa to adopt an annual budget on or before

March 31 of each year. The annual budget serves as the foundation for the city's financial planning and

contror and is prepared by function. The adopted budget provides appropriations (authority to spend) for

program operations for the fiscal year that begins on July 1 and ends on June 30 of the following year'

Budget amendments must be prepared and adopted in the same manner as the original budget'

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The economic condition and ouilook of Cedar Falls continues to be strong. The Cedar Falls economy was

insulated from many of the impacts created by the recent recession due to the stability of the University of

Northern lowa and a diverse service business sector'

Grow Cedar valley was formed in the metro area to organize the human resources and generate needed

development capital to attract new business and industry to the area and to encourage expansion of

businesses already in the area. As a result, many new businesses have located offices and plants in the

metro area. Target Corporation constructed a distribution center with an assessed value of approximately

$45 million in Fy02 and in Fy0g completed a second refrigeration center. The cedar Falls lndustrial and

Technology Park continues to show tremendous expansion'

since the devaluation of property in 1g86-1988, Cedar Falls has had steady growth in property values'

Assessed values increased in Fy23 by $245.7 million. with the implementation of the commercial

rollback by the state of lowa, taxable values increased by approximately $99 million' (see Attachment A)

-2 16

Item 2.



The City of Cedar Falls maintains a comparatively low tax rate. Cedar Falls has the fifth lowest tax rate

per capita of the twenty largest cities in the state of lowa for FY22 (See Attachment B)' This low rate can

be attributed to the efforts of the City to streamline operations over the past twenty three years' This has

been accomplished by maintaining the approximate same number of employees, however city council

may need to prioritize services or focus on key services to address the over extension of city staff' Cedar

Falls has one of the towest numbers of fulltime employees per 1,000 residents in FY21. (see Attachment

C). The Waterloo-Cedar Falls Metropolitan area has historically enjoyed a relatively low unemployment

rate. As of June 2022 2.70/o of the waterloo-cedar Falls Metropolitan workforce was unemployed.

over the past ten years Cedar Falls' residential housing sales prices have significantly increased. ln

2011, the average sales price reported was $197,576. ln2021, the average sales pricewas $269'165,

which is a thirty six (36) percent increase in the past ten years (See Attachment D). These statistics

indicate that Cedar Falls' local economy is sound and there is a strong market for Cedar Falls homes'

Housing values have surged from the recession and devaluation of the mid-1980's to values that once

again place the homeowners living in Cedar Falls in an advantageous market position. This market

growth is a credit to businesses, the school system, utilities, and quality of City services in Cedar Falls'

iach entity has worked together to strengthen the local economy, create jobs, and improve Cedar Falls'

quality of life.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Street Proiects

The city has partnered with the lowa DOT to substantially upgrade some of the major transportation

routes through the city. ln 2018, significant improvements to the Highway 58 and Viking Road

lntersection corridor Oejan, which will include pedestrian accommodations- The $32 million project was

completed in Fy202O without debt and with the assistance of rlF revenues as well as federal

transportation funding. The most recent of these reconstruction projects include Greenhill Road and

Main street lntersection project which will reconstruct the intersection to a roundabout to improve the

capacity, efficiency, and safety of the intersection. The intersection was part of the adopted Greenhill

Road corridor study. Right of way acquisition began in september 2021and the project will be funded

by G.o. bond and tocal oftion sales tax funds. Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction began in 2019 with

construction of the roadway to include two roundabouts at Greenhill Road and Huntington Drive' The

reconstruction of cedar Heights Drive should be complete by fall of 2022. FederaliState funding, Local

option sales tax funding, RoLo use Tax funding and G.o. Bond funding will be used to fund this project'

The cedar Falls downtown streetscape project and downtown brick replacement project are nearing

completion. These projects were funded with downtown tax increment finance funding and Black Hawk

Gaming grant funding. tn""" projects started in 2019 and will wrap up in the fall ol 2022' with the

building of the new ceoar Falls high school on 27lh street, reconstruction of this corridor started spring of

2022. Thissection of roadway will go from a two-lane to a four-lane road to help with the additionaltraffic

from the new high school. Road Use tax, local option sales tax, and G.o. bond funding along with

funding from Cedar Falls Community School District will pay for this project'

-3- 17

Item 2.



Other Proiects

The City has increased the levee to the 500-year flood range protection. This project is funded by a sales

tax grant from the state of lowa and was completed in 2020. The City of Cedar Falls is in the final stages

of completing FEMA's 44 CFR 65.10 compliance for Levee Accreditation. The city started a city Hall

Repurpose and Remodel project in 2020, which will include the rebuild of offices with the departure of

public Safety police operations from the lower level. Phase I is set to be completed october 2022' wilh

the final phase completed by January 2023. The project will be funded by capital reserves'

Global Pandemic

challenges and changes brought about by pandemic were not as severe as the city estimated in spring

of 2020. The city did see reduction in hotel/motel tax revenues of 14o/o in 2021, however the projection

for fiscal year 2022 was higher than expected, a return to pre-pandemic rates' The cedar Falls

Recreation center was awarded $32s,334 from the lowa Fitness Center Relief Grant to help with the loss

of revenues since March 2020.

ln an effort to accelerate and sustain the nation's economic recovery from the impacts of the COVID-19

pandemic, the Federal Government enacted the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) signed into law in

March 2021 , which provides over $350 billion of relief funds to state and local governments' Under ARPA

the City was allocated $6.5 million over two years. The use of these funds is broadly defined in the bill

from revenue replacement to costs related to COVID-19 response, as well as certain infrastructure

projects. The city has two projects slated to use the ARPA funding award. The first is Main street

Reconstruction project which will begin FY2023; this project will use an estimated $1,900,000 of the

awarded ARpA funding on sewer and stormwater repairs. The second project is the Nutrient Reduction

lmprovement project, r"ni"n will start in FY2024; this project is estimated to use $4,600,000 in ARPA

funds on centralized wastewater treatment.

LONG.TERM FINANGIAL PLANNING

The city council and administration routinely consider the long-term view regarding financial matters.

Operating budget decisions are based on the long-term impact of appropriations and funding' A three-

year budget financial plan is prepared each year for all funds of the City. The City has a detailed Capital

ilnprou"r"nts plan (Clp) that considers the impact of the investment in infrastructure, the associated

debt burden, and any changes in operating costs associated with maintaining new assets.

ln addition to the financial plan and clp, the city council each year has a goal setting session where they

identify goals for the upcoming fiscal year and discuss strategy in dealing with any upcoming financial

challenges. Each department prior to the goal setting session prepares a document outlining their

accomplishments during the past year and the goals for their department in the upcoming year.

RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIES

The city council through their annual goals and financial plan document has adopted a comprehensive

set of budget and fiscal policies relating to financial management'

-4- 18

Item 2.



Budget- Adopt a balanced budget, which is reflective of the community's economic climate and needs'

Maintain a stable property tax rate, depositing annually funds in excess of operations expenses in a

capital reserve account for one-time expenses as approved by the city council. Evaluate each newly

proposed service to determine cost, relative importance and value of each service' Study methods of

saving energy.

cash Reserues - The city will maintain an unreserved balance at year-end at a level determined to meet

cash flow requirements, emergency needs, and bond rating criteria' The minimum criteria shall be:

o General Fund - The City Council has established that the General Fund balance be

maintained between 15Vo and 25o/o and preferably at the 20-25% level.

o Refuse Fund - 2O-3Oo/o, but no less than $500'000'

o Sewer Fund - 65'750/0, but no less than $1,500'000'

o Street Fund - 2O-3OVI, but no less than $1,000'000'

. Storm Water Fund - 1O-2Oo/o, but no less than $200'000'

o Emergency Fund - not less than $1,500,000'

Economic Devetopment - The city will take active measures to encourage economic development of the

communitywiththeintentofincreasingjobsandthetaxbase.

Debt Administration - Long-term debt will fund the design, inspection, and construction of capital

improvement projects and will not be used for annual operating expenses. The total general obligation

debt will not exceed So/o of the total assessed value of real property as required under the Code of lowa'

The issuance of new debt shall not exceed a replacement debt level. Whenever possible, existing debt

should be refinanced to secure the lowest possible interest costs.

capitat lmprovement Budget poticies- The city will make all capital improvements in accordance with an

adopted capital improvements program and will develop a multi-year plan for capital improvements on an

annual basis. The development of the capital improvements program is coordinated with the annual

budget process and will determine the reast costly financing method for all new projects. The city will

maintain all assets at a level adequate to protect the city's capital investment and to minimize future

maintenance and replacement costs. A maintenance and replacement schedule for equipment will be

developed and followed'

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Cedar Falls for its annual

comprehensive financial report for the year ended June 30, 2021. The certificate of Achievement is a

prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state

and local government financial reports'

ln order to be awarded a certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable

and efficienfly organized annual comprehensive financial report, whose contents conform to program

standards. The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report must satisfy both accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal requirements'

-5- 19

Item 2.



A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Cedar Falls has received a

Certificate of Achievement for the last thirty two consecutive years (fiscal years ended 1990-2021). We

believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements,

and we are submitting it to GFOA.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The preparation of this report could not be accomplished without the efficient and dedicated service of the

entire staff of the Financial Services Division, particularly Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and

Business Operations, Cathy Niebergall, Financial Technician, and Paul Kockler, Accountant. Each

member of the division has my sincere appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of this

report. I would also like to thank the members of the City Council for their continued interest and support

in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and prudent manner.

Sincerely

Lisa Roeding, CMFO

ControlleriCity Treasurer

-6- 20

Item 2.



taxvalue23
ATTACHMENT A

Taxable Valuations FYI 3'FY23
of Cedar Falls

4,000,000,000

3,500,000,000

3,000,000,000

2,500,000,000

2,000,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,000,000,000

500,000,000

0
FY13FY14FY15FY16FY17FY18FY19FY20FY21FY22FY23

lTaxable Value l!Assessed Value

2,618,319,843
2,650,433,900
2,729,240,639
2,769,405,368
2,897,854,208
2,965,854,183
3,099,765,282
3,195,848,285
3,341,492,657
3,432,518,333
3,678,278,016

FY13
FY14
FYl5
FY16
FY17
FY18
FY19
FY20
FY2'I
FY22
FY23

1,393,51 1,204
1,622,862,335
1,490,616,188
1,509,722,828
1,569,292,287
1,750,040,895
1,832,652,499
1,950,451,51 1

1,963,719,839
1,960,696,679
2,060,390,605

The last ten years have Provided a

steady growth trend in assessed

valuations. ln addition, FY19 was the first

year that assessed values exceeded

$3 billion.

For FY23, assessed values increased

by $245,759,683. Taxable values

increased by $99,693,926.

-7- 21

Item 2.



Citytaxr

Property Tax Per GaPita (FY22l

20 Largest lowa Cities

ATTACHMENT B

Property Tax Per CaPita (FY22l
20 Cities

1,000.00

900.00

800.00

700.00

600.00

500.00

400.00

300.00

200.00 CL MC FD MR AN CF SC MA AM DU
WDM IC CB BE CR DA UB JO DM WA

WDM
lc
CB
BE
CR
DA
UR
JO
DM

CL
MC
FD
MR
AN
CF

SC
MA
AM
DU

WA

68,723
74,828
62,799
39,102

137,710
101,724
45,580
24,064

214,133
67,314
24,469
27,338
24,871
41,535
67,887
40,713
85,797
27,591
66,427
59,667

892.56
850.84
830.94
813.21
795.87
745.90
687.85
665.76
649.03

630.48
623.95
613.83
608.07
549.19

524.85
506.08
484.22
438.58

894

644

West Des
lowa City
Council Bluffs
Bettendorf
Cedar Rapids
Davenport
Urbandale
Johnston
Des Moines
Waterloo
Clinton
Mason City
Fort Dodge
Marion

Cedar Falls
Sioux CitY
Marshalltown
Ames
Dubuque

keny

672.51Average

government has operated at one of the lowest per
-apita property tax rates among the 20 largest cities

in lowa.

For over two decades Cedar Falls 'local

t a cost of $549.19 per person, the City is

substantially below the average rate of $672'51'
This rate can be attributed to the City's concerted

efforts to streamline operations over the past 20

years.

lf the City of Cedar Falls operated at the state

average property tax per capita, an addional 5'02

million dollars would be devoted to operations' This

would be an increase of 22% of taxes levied in

FY22

-B- 22

Item 2.



ATTACHMENT C

Full-Time Employees Per 1,000 Residents
ComParison of 20 Largest Cities

12

10

8

6

4

an oe .$o qro <9 ee 6,F eF $ \o ow E so$ $F gQ J+ {Ne :o o( F+

Cedar Falls city government
continued to have one of the
lowest number of emPloYees
per 1,000 caPita comParing
the top 20 largest cities.

Cedar Falls has 2.02
employees per 1,000 caPita
less than the state average,
which is equivalent to 82
fewer full-time emPloYees.

Employment reductions have
been implemented over the
last 10 years, which has
streamlined Cedar Falls'
employment.

Among the top twenty largest cities in the State of lowa, the City of Cedar Falls

continles to have ons of the lowest number of employees per capita. The pressures

of new construction 
-growth, 

road deveropment, and societar values have placed

gr""i", demands on Jxisting staff. ln the near future, the City Council will need to

flrioiitize services or focus on Ley services to address the over extension of city staff'

Employees
Per 1,000

2020
Population

FY21
EmployeesCity

9.92
9.85
8.78
8.28
8.24
7.71
7.61
7.59
7.41
7.38
7.36
7.28
6.97
5.73
5.68
5.38
5.20
5.03
5.01
4.32

59,667
137,710
27,338
85,797
24,871

214,133
67,314

101,724
66,427
74,828
24,469
62,799
68,723
27,591
39,102
45,580
41,535
24,064
40,713
67,887

592.0
1356.0

240.0
710.0
205.0

1650.0
512.0
772.0
492.O

552.0
180.0
457.0
479.0
158.0
222.0
245.0
216.0
121.0
204.O

293.0

Dubuque
Cedar RaPids

Mason CitY

Sioux City
Fort Dodge
Des Moines
Waterloo
Davenport
Ames
lowa City
Clinton
Council Bluffs
W. Des Moines
Marshalltown
Bettendorf
Urbandale
Marion
Johnston
Gedar Falls
An

7.03Average:

-9- 23

Item 2.



ATTACHMENT D

Resale

Average Residential Sales Price (Annual)
Cedar Falls, lowa

280,000

270,000
260,000

250,000

240,000

230,000

220,000
210,000

200,000

190,000

180,000
170,000

160,000

150,000

140,000
130,000

120,000
110,000

100,000

90,000
80,000

2013 2014 20',15 2016 2017 2018 20',t9 2020 20212011 2012

The average sale Price of residential properties in

Cedar Falls has grown by 360/o between 2011- 2021

from $197,576 to $269,165

197,576
206,773
219,746
223,093
225,048
217,393
219,263
226,890
235,621
245,349
269,165

20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20

11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

2020
2021

225,992Average

-1"0- 24

Item 2.



(

t

Govemnrent Finance O fficers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Cedar Falls
Iowa

For its Annual CornPrehensive
Financial RePort

For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2A2L

Executive Director/CEO

-1_l_- 25

Item 2.



City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Organizational Ghart

I
H
N

I

Fire

Public Safety
Services

PoliceOperation & Maintenance

Engineering

\Nater
Reclamation

Public
Works

City Council

Mayor

City Administrator

Citizens of
Cedar Falls

Community Programs
Recreation &

Visitor & Tourism/
Cultural Services

lnspection Services

Planning and
Community Services

Community
Development

C()mmunity Ctr &
Senior Services

Legal Services

Human Resources

Financial
Services

lnformation
Systems

Public Records

Library

Finance & Business
Operations

26

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Boards and Commissions

I
H(,

I

Historic Preservation
Commission

Comm Ctr & Senior
Services Board

Park & Recreation
Commission

Board of Electrical
Appeals

Library Board
of Trustees

Visitors & Tourism
Board

Civil Service
Commission

Board of
Appeals

Rob Green
Mayor

City
Council

Board of
Mechanical

Appeals

Human Rights
Commission

Utilities Board
of Trustees

Cedar Falls Health
Trust Board

Board of
Adjustment

Board of
Rental Housing

Appeals

Housing
Com m ission

Planning & Zoning
Commission

Board of Plumbing
Appeals

Art & Culture
Board

27

Item 2.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
June 30,2022

Title

Mayor
Council Member - 1"t Ward
Council Member -2nd Ward
Council Member - 3'd Ward
Council Member - 4th Ward
Council Member - sth Ward
Council Member - At Large
Council Member - At Large
City Administrator
Finance & Business Operations Director
Community DeveloPment Director
Public Works Director
Public Safety Services Director
Asst. Director of Public Safety /Fire Chief
Asst. Director of Public Safety/Police Chief
City Attorney
Controller/CitY Treasurer
Human Resources Manager
City Clerk
lnformation Systems Manager
Cedar Falls Public Library Director
Recreation & Community Programs Manager
V&T/Cultural Programs Manager
Planning & CommunitY Srv' Manager
Inspection Services Manager
City Engineer
Water Reclamation Manager
O&MParksManager
Cedar Falls Utilities General Manager

Rob Green
Gil Schultz
Susan DeBuhr
Daryl Kruse
Simon Harding
Dustin Ganfield
Kelly Dunn
Dave Sires
Ron Gaines
Jennifer Rodenbeck
Stephanie Houk Sheetz
Chase Schrage
Craig Berte
John Bostwick
Vacant
Kevin Rogers
Lisa Roeding
Bailey Schindel
Jacque Danielsen
Julia Sorensen
Kelly Stern
Mike Soppe
Jennifer Pickar
Karen Howard
Jamie Castle
David Wicke
Mike Nyman
Brian Heath
Steve Bernard

Name

-L4- 28

Item 2.



EideBailly.

(PAs & SU$IHISS ADVISOR$

tndependent Auditol's RePort

To the Honorable MaYor and

Members of the CitY Council

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,

the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining

fund information of tf," ilty of cedar Falls, lowa (city) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and

the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial

statements as listed in the table of contents.

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material

respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the

aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund

information of the City, as of June go,2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where

applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America'

Basisfor Opinions

we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United states

of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing

standardsissued by the comptroller General of the United states lGovernment Auditing standardsl. our

responsibilities under those standards are further desribed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the

Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. we are required to be independent of the city,

and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements

relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Adoption of New Accounting Standord

As discussed in Notes 1 and 4 to the financial statements, the city has adopted the provisions of

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leoses, for the year ended June 30,

2O22. Accordingly, a restatement has been made to the city's net position and fund balance as of July 1,

2o2L,torestate beginning net position. our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

15

Whot lnspires you" inspires us. I eideboilly'com

1545AssociotesDr.,Ste. l0l I Dubuque. lA52002'2299 i T563'556'1290 I F563'557'7842 i EOE

29

Item 2.



Responsibilities of Management lor the Financiol stdtements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the united states of America; and for the

design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

preslntation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions

or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue

as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently

known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor,s Responsibilities for the Audit ol the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute

assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and

Government Auditing Stondordswill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,

individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on

the financial statements.

ln performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Qovernment Auditing Stondards, we:.

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.

Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements.

r Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is

expressed.
r Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall

presentation of the financial statements'

. Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the

aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a going concern

for a reasonable Period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related

matters that we identified during the audit.

16
30

Item 2.



Requi red Su ppl e me ntary I nlo rmation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's

discussion and analysis and the other required supplementary information listed in the table of contents

be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of

management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial

reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or

historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary

information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the united states of America,

which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and

comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic

financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial

statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the

limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any

assurance.

Supplementary I nlormation

our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that

collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial

statements and capital asset schedutes are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a

required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management

and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to

prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including

comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records

used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and

other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America. ln our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements and capital asset

schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a

whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other

information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not

cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon'

ln connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and

the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf,

based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other

information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

L7
31

Item 2.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27,

2O22 on our consid_eration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and other

matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over

financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the

effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an

integrat part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering

City of Cedar Falls's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

€*-2""a tz/
Dubuque,lowa
October 27,2022

18
32

Item 2.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

our discussion and analysis of the city of cedar Falls' financial performance provides an overview of the city's

financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter

found on pages 1 - 10 of this rePort'

2022 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

year 2022, primarily due to the increase in property taxes. Property taxes increased $2.2 million for all

activities.

fiscal year 2022 from fiscal year 2021 '

net position of the governmental activities increased by $10,258,531 and the net position of the businesstype

activities increased by $3,465,632.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and other information as follows:

o Management,s Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an analytical

overview of the City's financial activities'

. Government-wide Financial statements consist of a statement of Net Position and a statement of Activities'

These provide information about the activities of the city as a whole and present an overall view of the City's

finances.

r The Fund Financial Statements tell how governmental activities were financed in the short term as well as

what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements report the City's operations in more detail than

the government-wide statements by providing information about the city's most significant funds.

o Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information essential to a full understanding of the data

provided in the basic financial statements'

. Required supplementary lnformation further explains and supports the financial statements with a comparison

of the city,s budget for the year, the city's proportionate share of the net pension liability and related

contributions, as well as presenting the schedule of Funding Progress for the Retiree Health Plan'

r other supplementary lnformation provides detailed information about the nonmajor special Revenue and

Capital Projects Funds and the lnternal Service Funds'

REPORTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Government-wide Financial Statements

one of the most important questions asked about the City's finances is, "ls the City of Cedar Falls in a better financial

position at the end of the fiscal year, compared to last year?" The statement of Net Position and the statement of

Activities report information about the city as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question'

-19-
33

Item 2.



These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the

accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into

account regardless of when cash is received or paid'

The Statement of Net position presents all of the City's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred

inflows of resources, with the difference reported as "net position". over time, increases or decreases in the city's net

position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. A person will need to consider

other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's

infrastructure, to assess the overall health of the City'

The statement of Activities presents information showing how the city's net position changed during the most recent

fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related

cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash

flows untilfuture fiscal periods.

The Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities report two kinds of activities:

o Governmental activities - Most of the city's basic services are reported here, including the general

administration, streets, fire, police, parks, recreation, library, and housing and block grant assistance' Property

taxes, local option sales taxes, road use taxes, and federal and state grants finance most of these activities'

o Business-type activities - The city of cedar Falls charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the

cost of certain services it provides. The City's sewer, refuse, and storm water are reported in this section'

The Government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 31 - 34 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds, not the City as a whole'

some funds are required to be established by state law or by bond requirements. The city has two kinds of funds:

. Governmental Funds - Most of the city's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on

how money flows into and out of these funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending'

These funds are reported using an accounting method called the "modified accrual basis" of accounting, which

measures cash and all other financial assets that can readiv be converted to cash. The governmental fund

statements provide a detailed short-term view of the city's general government operations and the basic

services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer

financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance City programs.

The required financial statements for governmental funds include a balance sheet and a statement of

revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. we describe the relationship between governmental

activities (reported in the statement of Net position and the statement of Activities) and governmental funds in

a reconciliation at the bottom of the fund financial statements'

The city maintains 22 individual governmental funds. lnformation is presented separately in the governmental

fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund

balance for the General Fund, Hospital Fund, TIF Fund, street construction Fund, street Repair Fund, Debt

service Fund, capital lmprovements Fund, and Bond Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds'

Data from the other thirteen governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation'

lndividual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining

statements located in the supplementary information section of this report'

-20 -
34

Item 2.



a

The basic Governmental Fund Financial Statements can be found on pages 35 - 39 of this report.

proprietary Funds - when the city charges customers for the service it provides, these services are generally

reported in proprietary funds. The city maintains two different types of proprietary funds' Enterprise funds are

used to report the same functions presented as businesstype activities in the government-wide financial

statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its sewer, refuse and storm water activities'

lnternal Service Funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally. The City uses internal service

funds for its information systems, vehicle maintenance, and various risk management activities' Because

these services predominanfly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been

included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

proprietary funds provide the same information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more

detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Sewer Fund, Refuse

Fund, and storm water Fund, all of which are considered major funds. lnternal service Funds are combined

into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements' lndividual fund data for

internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements located in the supplementary

information section of this report.

The basic Proprietary Fund Financial statements can be found on pages 40 - 45 of this report'

-21-
35

Item 2.



GOVERN MENT-WI DE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of financial position. The analysis that follows

focuses on the change in the net position for governmental and business-type activities.

Governmental activities activities Total

2021

(not restated)
2022 2021

(not restated)

2022 2021

(not restated)

2022

$ 159,740,794

248,905,921

$ 147,417,225

242,571,U1

$ 17,901,057

91,910,010

$ 14,156,404

92,555,952

$ 177,641,851

340,815,931

$ 161,573,629

335,127,493

$ 408, 646,715 $ 389,988,766 $ 109,811,067 $ 106,712.356 $ 518,4s7 .782 $ 496,701j22

$ 8,261,490 $ 345,587 $ 450,945 $ 673 $ 8,712,435$ 5,240,086

$ 16,142,827

15,953,597

$ 35,850,885

5,639,540

$ 1 1,059,183

1,786,406

$ 13,985,624

u1,073

$ 27,202,010

17,740,003

$ 49,836,509

6,180,613

Current and

other assets

Capitalassets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows

of Resources

Long-term liabilities

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred lnflows of

Resources

Net position:

Net investment

in capitalassets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

$41 $ 12,845.589 $ t+, 526,697 $ 44,942,013 $ 56,017j22
$

17$ $ 1,263 ,M3 $ 54,614 $ 45,571.660 $ 29,590 .816
$

$ 242,518,284

38,412,903

56,550,973

$ 235,252,432

37,325,937

u,645,260

$ 81,353,542

41,U0

14,652,U0

$ 80,744,907

29,990

11,807,093

$ 323,871,826

38,454,M3

71,203,513

$ 315,997,339

37,355,927

66,452,353

$ 337,482,160 $ 327,223,629 $ 96,047,622 $ 92,581,990 $ 433,529,782 $ 419'805'619

Net position of governmental activities increased from FY21 by approximately $10 million, or 3.10%' This increase

was due primarity to the City Hall remodel project, Downtown Streetscape, Cedar Heights Drive, and Viking Road

street projects. The increase is also due to the continued strength of the property tax base and the small amount of

general obligation debt outstanding by the city. Net position of businesstype activities increased from FY21 by

approximately $3.5 million or 3.74%. This increase was due to the reduction in long-term liabilities. The sewer fund

continues to pay down outstanding debt, including the internal loans. The largest portion of the city's net position is

the net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, infrastructure, buildings, and equipment). The debt related to the

investment in capital assets is liquidated with sources other than capital assets. Restricted net position represent

resources that are subject to external restrictions, bond covenants, constitutional provisions or enabling legislation on

how they can be used. Unrestricted net position, the part of net position that can be used to finance dayto-day

operations are approximately $71 million at the end of the year. The amounts for FY21 were not restated to reflect the

recording of a lease receivable and deferred inflows under GASB Statement No. 87. However, this information has

been presented in the footnotes to the financial statements'

-22-
36

Item 2.



For the year ended June 30, 2022, net position changed as follows:

Business-tvPe Activities Total
Governmental Activities

2022 2022 2021

(not restated)

2022 2021

(not restated)
2021

(not restated)

Revenues

Program Revenues

Charges for

services $

Operating grants

and contributions

Capital grants and

contributions

General Revenues

Property taxes

Local Option Sales Tax

Hotel/Motel Tax & Other

Use of money and

property

lntergovernmental

Miscellaneous

Gain/Loss on Sale of assets

4,114,166 $ 3,891,053$ 12,036,036$ 11,438,963$ 16',150',202$ 15'330'016

2,746,064 3,012,469 2,746,064 3,012,469

2,731,'155 3,180,994 91,786 1,534,377 2,822,941 4,715,371

29,063,485

7,360,971

't,514,779

1 ,065,179

6,948,043

1,476,082

26,903,746

6,043,520

911,506

1,314,163

7,284,160

1,997,826

35,225

29,063,485

7,360,971

1,514,779

26,903,746

6,043,520

91 1,506

82,703

4,364

106,682

(s7,67e)

1,147,882

6,948,043

1,476,082

4,364

2,612,293

1,420,845

7,284j60

1,997,826

(2,454)

2,651,632
,632Utility contribution 2,612,293 2,651

14,889 $ 13.042.343 $ 71.847.106 $ 70,268,637
Total revenues

Expenses

Public safety

Public works

Health and social

services

Culture and

recreation

Community and

economic

development

General government

Debt service

Sewer

Refuse

Storm Water

Total exPenses

$ 59 632,217 $ 57,226,294 $ 12,2

11,596,217 $

18,503,503

174,754

7,989,443

4,637,338

5,012,842

128,515

't4,443,799 $

15,089,189

352,735

8,227,093

4,741,335

5,410,951

174,868

11,596,217 $

18,503,503

174,754

7,989,443

4,637,338

5,012,842

128,515

5,594,416

3,451,795

1,034,120

14,443,799

15,089,189

352,735

8,227,093

4,741,335

5,410,951

174,868

5,001,085

3,235,095

1,050,855

$$$

5,594,416

3,451,795

1,034,120

5,001,085

3,235,095

1,050,855

48,042,612 $ 48,439,970 $ 10,080 ,035 $ 58,122,943 $ 57,727,005331 $$

lncrease in net Position

before transfers

Transfers

lncrease in net Position

$ 11,589,605 $ 8,786,324 $

,238,028)

2,134,558

1,331,074

3,755,308 $

1.238.028

$ 13,724,163 $ 12,541'632

1,331 (1

$ 10,258,531 $

327,223,629

7,548,296 $

319,675,333

3,465,632 $

92,581,990

4,993,336 $

87,588,654

't3,724,163 $

419,805,619

12,541,632

407.263,987
Net position, beginning' as

restated

Net position, ending $ 337,482,160 $ 327.223.629 $

23

96.047,622 $ ,990 $ 433,529,782 $ 419,805,619

37

Item 2.



property taxes and other taxes, including local option sales tax, and hotel motel taxes increased by approximately $4 million

for the governmental activities. This is due to recovery after the covlD-19 pandemic and increases in the residential

rollback. Revenues increased in business activities due to sewer and storm water charges for services.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was approximately $48 million which was very comparable to last year'

However, as shown in the statement of Activities on pages 33 and 34, the amount taxpayers ultimately financed for these

activities was only $3g million because some of the cost was paid by those directly benefiting from the programs or by other

governments and organizations which subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions. The city paid the

remaining ,,public benefit', portion of governmental activities with property tax (some of which could only be used for certain

programs) and with other receipts, such as interest, local option sales tax and miscellaneous receipts.

INDIVIDUAL MAJOR FUND ANALYSIS

Governmental Fund Highlights

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of

$91 ,741 ,9g4. $6Bl ,539 is nonspendabte for inventory. $37,831 ,310 is restricted for TlF, debt service, local option sales tax,

employee retirement systems, road use taxes and various grants. $19,804,463 is committed for the City's health trust fund

and parking fund. g45,5 42,g4g is assigned for recreational capital funds, police forfeiture funds, economic development and

capital improvements. This leaves a negative $12,118,277 for unassigned fund balances in the governmental funds.

The Governmental fund balances decreased by $1,573,953, or 1.7%. This decrease was primarily due to increases in major

project expenses.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the city of cedar Falls. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned

fund balance of the General Fund was $8,933,608, while the total fund balance totaled $12,416,372. As a measure of the

General Funds liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balances and total fund balances to total fund

expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 36.340/o of the total General Fund expenditures, while the total fund

balance represents 5o.S1o/o of that same amount. The General Fund fund balance did increase in FY22 due to the increase

in property tax revenue and hotel motel tax revenue'

The following fund balances in the other major funds, which comprise the Total Governmental Funds are listed below:

FY22 FY21 lncrease

Amount Amount (Decrease)

Hospital Fund

TIF Fund

Street Construction Fund

Street Repair Fund

Debt Service Fund

Capital lmprovements Fund

Bond Fund

Other Governmental Funds

19,253,243

81,956

11,588,990

17,444,127

401,055

28,917,532

(21,02e,5e5)

22,668,304

$ 18,829,721

64,447

10,879,596

17,530,156

582,696

28,417,695

(16,212,770)

21,131,264

$ 423,522

17,509

709,394

(86,02e)

(181,641)

499,837

(4,816,825)

1,537,040

The Hospital Fund had an increase in fund balance due to the repayment of internal financing by the Sewer Fund. The

street construction Fund had an increase in fund balance due to increased road use taxes. The Bond Fund had the largest

decrease in fund balance due to Downtown Streetscape, Cedar Heights Drive, Viking Road, and City Hall remodel projects'

The other Governmental Funds had an increase in fund balance due to the economic development land acquisition,

increases in hotel/motel tax, and reimbursements in the FEMA fund.

$

-24 -
38

Item 2.



The following schedule presents a summary of the governmental fund revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 and June 30, 2021

Revenues

FY22

Amount

Percent

of Total

50.65 %

15.48

1.77

1.86

17.60

4.77

0.64

2.67

FY21

Amount

lncrease
(Decrease)

from FY21

Percent of
lncrease
Decrease

Property taxes and

assessments

Other city taxes

Licenses and permits

Use of money and ProPertY

lntergovernmental

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous

Utility contribution in lieu of

taxes

$ 29,056,384

8,875,750

1,012,235

1 ,065,179
10,090,582

2,732,528

369,403

1,530,142

$ 26,907,831

6,955,026

1,530,582

1,314,163

10,605,383

2,150,458

209,676

1,994,030

$ 2,148,553

1,920,724

(518,347)

(248,e84)

(514,801)

582,070

159,727

(463,888)

71.01 Yo

63.48

(17.13)

(8.23)

(17.02)

19.24

5.28

(15.33)

2,651,632 (3e,33e) (1.30)

318,781 $ 3,025,715 100.00 %$ 57,344,496 100.00 % $ s+,

2,612,293 4.56

The most significant increase in revenues was in property taxes. The increase was due to the increase in residential

rollback and increased TIF revenues. One of the largest decreases was in licenses and permits due to the timing of

building permits.

Governmental Revenues
FY22

Use of Money&
PropertY
1.86%

Licenses & Permits
1.77o/o

lntergovernm ental
17.600/o

Other CityTaxes
15.480/o

Charges for Services
4.770

Fines & Forfeitures
O.640/o

Miscellaneous
2.67o/o

Utility Contributions
4.560/o

PropertyTaxes
50.65%

25 39

Item 2.



The following schedule presents a summary of governmental expenditures for the fiscal years ended June 30,2022

and June 30,2021

FY22

Amount

Percent

of

Total

FY21

Amount

lncrease

(Decrease)

from FY21

Percent of

lncrease

Decrease)
Expenditures

$ 12,410,233

13,858,681

25,776

7,000,740

3,104,803

4,831,771

1,062,100

14,462,964

21.87 Yo

24.42

0.05

12.33

5.47

8.51

LB7

25.48

$ 12,055,532

11,492,908

216,757

7,092,995

2,991,681

4,956,324

882,344

9,822,160

354,701

2,365,773

(1e0,e81)

(92,255)

113,122

(124,553)

179,756

4,640,804

4.90 o/o

32.65

(2.64)

(1.27)

$Public Safety

Public Works

Health & Social Services

Culture & Recreation

Community and Economic

Development

General Government

Debt Service

Capital Projects

1.56

(1.72)

2.48

64.04

$ 56,757,068 100.00 % $ 49,510,701 $7, 246,367 100.00 %

The most significant increases in expenditures occurred in the capital Projects and the Public woks functions' This

was due to several large projects under construction'

Gove rntrental ExPe nditures
FY2,

Public Works
24.42%

Health & Social

Senices
0.05%

Culture and

Recreation

12.33o/o

Public Safety

21.87%

Community and

Economic

Delelopment
5.47o/o

GenenalGorcmment
8.51%

Debt Senice
1.87o/o

Capital Projects

25.48%

26 40

Item 2.



Proprietary Funds

City of Cedar Falls proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial

statements, but in more detail.

Net position of the Sewer, Refuse and Storm Water funds at the end of the year amounted to $96'047,622. Net

position in the GovernmentalActivities lnternal Service funds was $14,448,26'l'

These funds were established for the City operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private

business enterprises. The cost of providing the services to the general public is recovered, in whole or in part, through

user charges.

The City,s enterprise operations are comprised of three separate and distinct activities: Sewer, Refuse and Storm

Water. Results of operations for these funds for the years ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Sewer Refuse Storm Water

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Operating Revenues $ 7,694,631 $

Operating Expenses 5,211,623

Non-Operating Rev (Exp) (330'905)

Capital Contributions 17,920

OperatingTransfers,net 1,272,408

Change in Net Position 3,442,431

7,300,595

4,412,434
(520,979)

647,193

6B6,345

3,700,720

$ 3,271,061 $

3,429,314
2,079

3,086,774 $

3,235,095

(e,1 1 1)

1,070,344 $

1,012,426

41,425

21,366
(55,1 18)

6s,591

1,051,594

1,025,140

(15,273)

887,184

418,079

1,316,444
113,784
(42,390)

133,604

(23,828)

Proprietary Fund Operating Revenues & Expenses
FY22

7,000,000
6,000,000
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000

0

Sewer Refuse Storm Water

Operating Revenue tr Operaling E<penses

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

over the course of the year, the city Council revised the budget once in May 2022. The amendment was needed due

to several large projects under construction. At the end of the year, the City did not exceed the amended budgeted

amounts in any of its functions.

27- 41

Item 2.



CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

GapitalAssets
At the end of June 30, 2022, the City had approximately $341 million invested in capital assets including police and fire

equipment, public buildings, park facilities, roads, bike trails, bridges, water treatment facilities, sanitary sewer lines,

and storm water improvements. (See Table following.) This represents a net increase of approximately $5.7 million or

1.7oh over last year.

GitY of Gedar Falls GaPitalAssets
(net of dePreciation)

Governmental activities activities Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Land

Buildings

lmprovements
other than

buildings

Machinery and

equipment

lnfrastructure

Construction

in progress

$ 43,116,319

21,930,531

$ 43,116,319

22,820,752

$ 1 ,612,581

40,438,019

$ 1,612,581

41,648,387

$ 44,728,900

62,368,550

$ 44,728,900

64,469,139

11,315,224 1 1 ,997,058 11,315,224 1 1,997,058

7,474,911

141,688,504

7,515,175

144,984,626

4,980,290

44,069,807

5,1 1 9,1 09

43,102,118

12,455,201

185,758,31 1

12,634,284

188,086,744

23,380,432 12,137,611 809,313 1 ,073,757 24,189,745 13,211,368 '

Total $ 248,905,921 $ 242,57 1,541 $ gr,910,010 $ 92,555.952 $ 340,815,931 $ 335,127,493

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

o Viking Road

o Downtown Streetscape

r Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction

. City Hall Remodel

More detailed information about the City's capital assets is presented

statements.

Gapital Assets Net of Depreciation
Buildings

18.30o/o
Land

13.12o/o

in Note 3 to the financial

lmprovenents
332%

Construction ln Progress
7.10o/o

Machinery & Quipnent
3.65o/o

lnfrastructure
54.51o/o

-28 - 42

Item 2.



Debt

At year-end, the City had$16,242,000 in outstanding debt compared to $18,315,000 last year. That is a decrease of

$2,073,000 or 11.3%.

City of Gedar Falls Outstanding Debt

General Obligation Debt and Revenue Debt

Governmental activities activities Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 202 2021

General obligation

bonds/notes $ 5,995,000 $ 6,g65,000 $ 5,855,000 $ 6,730,000 $ 11,850,000

State Revolving Loan 4,392,000 4,720,000 000

Total $ 5,995,000 $ 6,865,000 $ 1o,v+7,ooo $ 11,450,000 $ 16,242,000 $ 18,315,000

The City of Cedar Falls received an upgrade to the Aaa rating from Moody's lnvestor Services in June 2020 for all

general obligation issuances. This was a major achievement by the City. The Aaa rating was confirmed by Moody's in

June 2022 as well.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a government entity may issue to 5o/o of its total assessed

valuation. As of June 30,2022, the City's legaldebt margin was $162,699,627'

More detailed information about the City's long-term debt is presented in Note 3 to the financial statements'

Gity of Gedar Falls Outstanding Debt
FY22

GO Bonds/Notes
730h

State Rewlving Loan

27%

$ 13,595,000

4,720,000

-29- 43

Item 2.



ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND R^ATES

COVID-1g had a major operational impact on city operations for the past two years. COVID relief funds, CARES Act

funding, and American Rescue Act funding have helped with revenue reductions and future infrastructure

improvements. ln addition, revenues increased in FY22 back to pre-pandemic amounts. The City will continue to

monitor the continued effects of the pandemic and continue to look for grant funding opportunities.

During the state legislative session in2014, the legislature reduced the taxable valuation of commercial property and

created a new class of property for multi-residential. This greatly affects the City's general operating fund' ln 2022 the

state legislative session established a phase out of the backfill revenue the City receives.

Even with the State reductions, the City Council did establish a balanced budget in the General Fund for FY23. The

tax levy rate per $1,000 of taxable valuation for FY23 is provided below:

General levy

Trust and Agency levY

Debt Service levy

Transit levy

Library levy

Liability lnsurance levy

Emergency Management levY

Municipal Band levy

Total levy

$ s.to

2.04

.47

.22

.27

.12

.28

.01

$ 11.51

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a general overview of

the City,s finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. The City's discretely presented

component units, Cedar Falls Utilities, have separately issued financial statements. lf you have questions about this

report or need additional information, contact the Department of Finance and Business Operations,220 Clay Street,

Cedar Falls, lowa 50613.

-30- 44

Item 2.



City of Gedar Falls, lowa

Statement of Net Position
June30,2022

Governmental Business-tyPe
Total

$ 106,174,015 $ 24,878'521 $ 131'052,536ASSETS
Cash
Certificates of dePosit
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts

Property taxes
Lease Receivable
Other city taxes
Accrued interest
Special assessments
Customers
Human & leisure services contributions

Other
Due from component unit
lnternal balances
Due from other governments

lnventories
Prepaids and other assels
Restricted assets:

Cash
Certificates of deposit

Capital assets:
Land
Land Rights
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equiPment
lnfrastructure
Construction in Progress
Accumulated dePreciation

Total assets

30,062,422
1,251,295

955,858
109,528
143,692

4,403,671
1,340,040
1,377 ,721
8,965,000
4,246,856

710,696

43,1 16,3 1 9

21,100,815
36,936,789
22,376,777

273,462,096
23,380,432

1,805,234

(8,e65,000)
52,500

I 10,889

1,612,581

56,271,588
10,499,694
69,804,681

809,3'13
(47,O87,847\

1.067

30,062,422
1,251,295

955,858
128,441
143,692

4,403,671
3,145,274
1,377 ,721

4,299,356
821,585

44,728,900

21 ,100,81 5
93,208,377
32,876,471

343,266,777
24,189,745

(218,555,1 54)

$ 518,457,782

4,280,727
1,304,946

$ 5,585,673

$ 12,490,478
3,329,151
1,920,374

2,134,OOO

1,379,606

14,810,105
1,329,883
3,410,500
4,137,916

$ 44,942,013

$ 29,868,798

170,648
14,313,700
1,218,514

$ 45,571,660

28,985,485
401,055

6,629,145
81,956

2,356,802
71,203,513

$ 433,529.782

18,9'13

n71 307\
$ 715 $

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related deferred outflows

OPEB related deferred outflows
Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounis payable
Grant proceeds received in advance

Accrued liabilities
Due to primary government
Long-term liabilities:

Poriion due or payable within one year:

Bonds PaYable
Compensated absences

Portion due or payable after one year:

Bonds PaYable
ComPensated absences
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability
Total liabllities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Succeeding Year ProPerty taxes

TIF related deferred inflows

OPEB related deferred inflows

Pension related deferred inflows

Leases
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted:
Streets
Debt service
Employee retirement system

TIF
Other

Unrestricted
Total net Position

$ 10,878,186
3,329,151
1,746,260

895,000
1,225,319

5,492,637
1,1 53,986
3,410,500

$ 29,868,798 $

't70,648
13,O50,257

1.218.514
$ 44.308.217

28,985,485
401,055

6,629,145
81,956

2,315,262

3,935,140
1.304.946

$ 5.240,086

56.550.973
$ 337.482,160

345,587

s

$ 1,612,292

174,114

1,239,000
154,287

9,317,468
175,897

172.531

$ 't 2,845,589

1,263,443

$1

$ 242,518,284 $ 81,353,542 $ 323'871'826

41,540
14,652,540

s 96.047,622

See notes to financial statements

-31- 45

Item 2.



I lnils

Electric Gas Water Communications

$ 39,669,613
2,990,000

5,084,370
746,O91

5,274.958
110,000

1,878,208
255,094

43,53'l,340
21,673,334

209,567,977
2,562,931

698,680
256.901

10,243,106
746,754

1,019,414
126,192

5,035,757

10,765,742 1,431,606

O,OJJ

$ 8,048,734 $ 6,055,992

930,846

291,437
137,040

445,264
40,000

4,280,284
512,576

26,237,946
66,259

242,521

164,539
202J08

44.325
$ 3.116,771

$
135,708

6,5'11

1,650,613

130,732
67,072

294,278
30,000

63,466

2,754,195
1 ,379,133

44,117,816
360,524

$ 17,672,218
1,000,000

2,245

2,454,747

486,166

1,507,086
438,785

556,755
50,000

24,856,362
21,076,968

89,459

327,434
81,770

6483

7,929,541 678,140

25,61

{20.578.825)
$ 49.614,143

60.273

$ 2,514,038

(112,s72,505]J (15'705"!F)
g zeo,izg,s+s g 33'741'204 $ 42.216

s c55 581
40.9.204

$ 4,166,214 $ 2,145,883 $ 448,511 $ 1',375',474

6,068,274
2,700,000

559,916 207,614 536,258

2,895,000

56.435 39'075-$-- zgs,gso $ 192'190

153,1 15

113,912
150,632
2A.238

s 948.907

$*
882,310

4,507
1,051,609

240,480
30'1,553

95,916
9,515

2,244,501

s

s27

$
$

10,017,358
29,549

4,699,256

s 14.746.163 $ s 1.938.426 $ 2

$ 153,582,323 $ 15,417,4gs $ 94,029,277 $ 25'446'142

548,455

3,880,750

't,196,739 437,564 292,378

3=s#Hsr #€g#35,764,195 13'275'494

@- $ ,rJ30"55,

-32-
46

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30' 2022

Expenses

Charges for
Services

Operating
Grants and

Gontributions

CaPital
Grants and

Contributions

Functions/Programs

Primary government:

Governmental activities:

Public safetY

Public works

Health and social services

Culture and recreation

Community and economic development

General government

lnterest on long-term debt and related fees

Total governmental activities

Business-tyPe activities:

Sewer

Refuse

Storm Water

Total business{YPe activities

Total primary government

Component units

Electric UtilitY

Gas UtilitY

Water UtilitY

Communications UtilitY

Total component units

$ '10.080,331 s 12,036,036

$ 1 1 ,596,217

18,503,503

174,754

7,989,443

4,637,338

5,012,842

$ s4,742 $

402,545

2,258,777

3,779,014

(1,047,859)

$ 579,1 55

234,458

'1,761,001

1,539,552

5

$2. $2, 731j55s 48.042,612

$ 5,594,416

3,451,795

$ 7,694,631

3,271,061

$ $ 17,920

73,866
1 120

s9 1.786

$ 58j122. $ 16.150.202 s 2.746,064 $2

$ 53,776,708

33,208,070

3,836,035

58,925,035

34,1 1 9,566

5,771,981

$ $ $ 1,330,761

1,815

27,275

s2.827
17 19.538 777

-$-lqql4oJfl- -q------?qg49q9-
$

General revenues:

Property taxes and assessments

Local oPtion sales tax

Hotel/motel taxes

Other city taxes

Use of moneY and ProPertY

lntergovernmental, not restricted to specific programs

Gain/Loss on sale of assets

Miscellaneous

Utility contribution in lieu of taxes

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net Position

Net position - beginning, as restated

Net position - ending

$1

See notes to financial statements

-33- 47

Item 2.



in Net PositionNet Revenue and Chanqes
Component Units

Governmental
Activities

$ (10,932,320)

(14,490,031)

(174,754)

(6,873,756)

(2,378,561)

(3,473,290)

(128,515)

Business-tYPe
Activities

Communications
UtilitvUtilitY

$

Prim
Electric Gas Water

Total

$ $
$ $ (10,932,320) $

(14,490,031)

(174,754)

(6,873,756)

(2,378,s61)

(3,473,290)

15)

$ $ $
(38.451 $ $ (38-451 . $

$

$ $ 2,118,135

(180,734)

1 10.090

2,1'18,135

(180,734)

110,090

$ $ $ $ $

$ 2.047,491 $ 2.047,491 $-
s-

s $ $
s

$ $ $
.227\ $ 2.O47 $ 736)$

$ 6,479,088 $ $ $
$ $ $

913,31 1

1,963,221

13.311 $ 1 $
$ $ $ 79.088 $ I

$

29,063,485

7,360,971

1,398,274

116,505

1,065,179

6,948,043

$

4,364

1,476,082

2,612,293

(,331.074) 'l.331,074

29,063,485 $

7,360,971

'1,398,274

116,505

1,147,882

6,948,043

4,364

1,476,082

2,612,293

$ $ $ $
$

77,098 9,768 5,111 15,359
82,703

$ 48,709,758

$ 10,2s8,531

327,223,629

$ 1.418.14 1 $ 50.127,899

$ 3,465,632

92.581.990

$ 13,724,163 $ $ 923,079 $ 1,968,332

25,207,4f I 37,552,92819

6,556,186

187.867,821

$ 77.O98 $ 9,768 $ 5.111 $ 15,359

$ 4,875,425

40.283,952

$ 194.424,007
$ 337.482.160 $ 96 7.622 $

41

.782

-34-

$ 29.1 30.557 $ .260 $ 45.1

48

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 3O,2022

Special Revenue

General HosPital

Fund Fund

TIF
Fund

Street
Construction

Fund

Street
Repair
Fund

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables, net of allowance

for uncollectible amounts:
Property taxes
Lease Receivable
Other city taxes
Accrued interest
Special assessments
Human & leisure services contributions

Other
Due from component unit

Due from other funds
Advance to other funds
Due from other governments

lnventories

Total assets

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Succeeding year Property taxes
Amounts held in community foundation

Amount due at end of lease
Other

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANGES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

$ 12,047,332 $ 12,414,599 $

21 ,857,864
't20,307

$ 10,93s,534 $ 22,289,588

5,994,456

202,191
21,336

2,836
4,403,671

222,994
1,377,721

14,124

540,306

6,815,000

551 ,476
16,998

338,250

36,1 36
101,762

430,811
545,985

$ 40.273.843 $ 19,904,336 $ 5,994,456 $ 11 12.330 $ 23. 196.3'.12

LIABILITIES,DEFERREDINFLOWSOFRESOURCES,ANDFUNDBALANCES
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 616,187 $ -- $

Grant proceeds received in advance

Accrued liabilities 1'023'834

Due to other funds

Total liabilities $ 1,640,021 $ $

$ 247 ,718 $ 5,682,1 85

75,622

$ 323340 $ 185

$ 21,758j72
4,403,671

$ $ 5,912,500 $ $

651,093
55,607

$ 651,093$ 7.450 T FB1r"5oo

70.000

$ 7q-Qq0

$ 101 ,762 $ $ $
81,956

545,985
11,043,005 17,444,127

$

19,253,243
3,381,002
8,933,608

$ 12,41 6.372 $ 19, 253.243 $ 81,956 $ 11,588,990

$ 11,912,330

$ 17,444,',t27

$ 3.843 $ 19,904,336 $ 5,994,456 $ 23, 196.312

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds'

other long-term 
"rrata "r" 

not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are reported as defened inflows of resources'

lnternal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet management, management information

systems and risk r"n"g"r"nt 
"ctivities 

to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds

areincludedingovernmentalactivitiesinthestatementofnetposilion.
Accrued interest payable is not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, is not

reported in the funds.
Accrued compensated absences, other postemployment benefits and net pension liability are not due and payable in the current period and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds'
Bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds'

pension related deferred outflows of ,e"orrc"" and deferred inflows of resources, are not due and payable in the current year and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds,

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources
Net position of governmental activities

See notes to financial statements

-35- 49

Item 2.



cenital Proiects
Other

Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental

F

$ 25,637,625 $ 92,719,344$ 397,359 $ 8,997,307 $

1,065,318
1 ,1 30,988

24,438
90,580

14,599

18,654,534
2,150,000

Debt
Service

Fund
Capital

lmorovements

Bond
Fund

1,144,784

202,191
20,791
50,276

245,711

30,062,422
1,251,295

955,858
97,687

143,692
4,403,671
1,191,469
1,377,721

18,900,245
8,965,000
4,246,856

681,539

75,320

3,415,000 364,909
33,792

$31 .446 $ 3.490.320 $ 27,700,079 $ 795$1

$ 955,126 $ 2,375,600
74,781

275,958
3,254,370

22,750
245,711

10,152,774
3,329,15'l
1,122,206

18,900,245

$ $$

18,654,534

$ 955,126 s 21.1 04.915 $ 3.798.789 $
$

$ 1,061,622 $ $

$

$ 1 ,1 36,504 $ 29,868,798
4,403,671
1,750,301

061.622 $ 1, 189.788
3,415,000 96,482

s e,+rs,ooo $ 1,232,986

1,099,208
90 580 3, 727.669

$ 39 750.439$ 1,

$ $ $ 33,792 $
8,861,167

551 ,220
13,244,415

(22,290\

681,539
37,831 ,310
19,804,463
45,542,949

(12,118,277)

401,055

28,917,532
(21, 029,595)

$ 401,055 s 7.532 s (21 $ $ 91,741 ,984

$1 .677 $ 31 s 3.490.320 $ 27,700,079

246,428,980
8,663,127

14,448,261

(13,8e6)

(9,774,696)
(6,387,637)

5,119,532
.743.455\

$

-36-

(1

.4A2t60

50

Item 2.



Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa
statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Special Revenue

General
Fund

Hospital
Fund

TIF

Street
Construction

FundFund

Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments

Other city taxes

Licenses and Permits
Use of money and ProPertY

lntergovernmental
Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous
Utility contribution in lieu of taxes

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safetY

Public works

Health and social services

Culture and recreation

Community and economic development

General government

Debt service

Capital projects

Total exPenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) exPenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers:
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning, as restated

lncrease (decrease) in reserve for inventories

Fund balances, ending

$ 436 $ 6,734,247 $ 5.474,613

$ 20,041,556 $

813,109
1,012,235

104,178
1,902,284
2,717,953

134,946
66,460

1,162,988

$ 6,628,886 $

105,361
436,298

5,408,595

66,018

$ 27,955,709

$ 10,777,802 $

1,425,537

13,000

6,371,946
1,160,566

4,831,771

$ $
3,135,690

12,776

$ 24,580,622

$

I 776 $ $ 3.1

$3, 375.087 $ 423,522 $6. 734.247 $ 2.338. 923

862,377

(3,893,253)
$ $ $

(6,716,738)

633,116

(2,361,588)

$ (3.030,876)

$ 344,211

12,093,132
(20,97',|)

$ (6.716.738) $ (1 ,728,472\

$ 610,451

10,879,596

98,943

$

$ 423,522 $

18.829,721

17,509

64,447

$ 12.416.372r-

See notes to financialstatements

-37 -

$ 19, 253.243 $ 81,956 $ 11.588,990

51

Item 2.



Capita I Proiects

Street
Repair
Fund

Debt
Service

Fund lm ents

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds
Capital Bond

Fund

$$
7,360,971

74,923

544,300

659,560 $

2,533

17,366

1,409 $

254,295

1,724,973 $
699,137

195,485

2,350,793

14,575

234,457

140,441

30,000

29,056,384

8,875,750

1,012,235

1,065,179

10,090,582

2,732,528
369,403

1,530,142

2,612,293

$

14,666

1,419,305

306,183

698,257

$ 7,980,194 $ $1 675 $ 1. .440 $ .861 $ 57,344,496

$ $ $$ $ 1,632,431 $

281,368

628,794
1,944,237

12,410,233

13,858,681

25,776

7,000,740

3,104,803

4,831,771

1,062,100

14,462,964

9,016,086

1,062,100
2,381,968 10,490,614 1,590'382

$ 1,062,100 $2, .968 $ 10,490,614 $6, 077,212 $ 56,757,068
$ 9.016,086

$ (1,035,892) $ (382.64 1) $(9 174\ $ (687 .35'1) $ 587,428$ (692,293)

$ 949,863 $ 201,000 $ 1,463,150

(271,020)
$ 4,729,349 $

(6o,0oo)

2,514,328 $
(281,658)

1 1 ,353,1 83

(13,584,257)

$ 949 $ 201 .000 $ 1, 192.130 $ 4,669 ,349 $ 2,232,670 $ (2,231,0741

$ (86,029) $

17,530,156

(181 ,641) $

582,696

499,837 $

28,417,695

(4,816,825)$ 1,545,319$ (1,643,646)

(16,212,710_)_ 21ril:,|?!, rr,rll:l3l

917.532 s (21.029,595)
#$ 17 127 $ 401,055 $ 28,

-38-

$22 304 $ 91 .741,984

52

Item 2.



City of Gedar Falls, lowa

Reconciliation of the statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Ghanges in Fund Balances -

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net change in fund balances - total governmentalfunds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are

different because:

Governmentfundsreportcapitaloutlaysasexpenditureswhile
governmental activities report depreciation expense to allocate those

expendituresoverthelifeoftheassets'Capitaloutlayexpenditures
exceeded depreciation expense in the current year' as follows:

Net acquisition of caPital assets
DePreciation exPense

Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after the

City'syearend,theyarenotconsideredavailablerevenuesandare
reportlO as deferre'd inflows of resources in the governmentalfunds' as follows

ProPertY tax
Other

Proceeds from issuing long-term liabilities provide current financial

resources to governm-entalfunds, but issuing debt increases long-term

liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of longterm

liabilities is an expenditure in the governmentalfunds, but the repayment

i"Jr""r long{erm liabilities in the statement of net position. Current year

repayments exceeded issues' as follows:' 
Premium on generalobligation bonds

Repaid
Accrued interest

some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the

useofcurrentfinancialresourcesand,therefore,arenotreportedas
expenditures in governmental funds, as follows:

ComPensated absences
Other Postem PloYment benefits
Pension expense
Change in inventory

lnternal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of

fleet management, management information systems and risk

managerelnt activitles tolndividual funds. The net revenue of certain

activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities

Change in net position of governmental activities

16,566,503
(10.193.126)

$ (1,643,646)

6,373,377

2,220,643

933,585

2,899j53

(524,581)

$ 10.258.531

2,2
7,096

13.547

61,472
870,000

2,113

285,495
(129,317)

2,673,281
69,694

See notes to financial statements

-39- 53

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2022

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts:

Accrued interest
Other

Due from other governments
lnventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capitalassets:

Land
Buildings
Machinery and equiPment
lnfrastructure
Construction in Progress
Accumulated dePreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Totalassets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related deferred outflows

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts PaYable
Accrued liabilities
Bonds PaYable - due within one Year
Compensated absences - due within one year

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds PaYable- after one Year
Advance from other funds
Compensated absences - after one year

Net pension liabilitY
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related deferred inflows

NET POSITION
Net investment in caPitalassets
Restricted for Post closure costs

Unrestricted
Total net Position

See notes to financial statements

BusinesstyPe Activities -

Enterprise Fund
Sewer Fund Refuse Fund

$ 16,284,717 $ 5,503,093

11,828
1,322,198

4,695
441,819

23.04487.845
$ 17.706 $ 5,972,651

$ 779,878
43,387,182
6,271,811

46,058,120
708,936

(31 .s83.151)
$ 65,822,776

$ 2A4,845
12,884,406
4,227,883

(6. 146.337)
11 170 797

$ 83.529,364 $ 17.143

$ 151 $ 156,365

$ 158,570
70,570

$ 1,420,083
89,205

1,149,000
87.227

$ 2.745,515

$ 8,740,757
8,965,000

46,382
101,420

$ 17,853,559

$

59,410

$ 288,550

129,515
18,973

$ 148,488

$20 .599 4 $ 437.038

$ 557 51$ 596.829

$ 55,933,019

6.591. 166

$

$ 11,170,797
41,540

5.053.609
$ 16,265,946

-40-

62.524.1 85

54

Item 2.



Business-tYPe Activities -
Governmental

Activities -
lnternal

Service Funds
Fund

Storm Water F T

$ 3,090,711 $ 24,878,521 $ 13,454,671

2,390
41,217
52,500

18,913
1,805,234

52,500
110,889

11,841
148,571

$ 186.818 $ 26,866 .o57

29.157
$ 13,644,240

$
90,302

7,804,780

$ 627,858 $ 1,612,581
56,271,588
10,499,694
69,804,681

809,313
23,746,56',1

100,377
(9.558,359 u7.087.847) $.418.14 ;;
14 916
18 103

$ 37.376 $ 345.587 $ 120.554

$ 33,639
14,339
90,000

7.650

$

154

$ 145,628 3J79$

1,612,292
174,114

1,239,000

725,412
610,158

37 744

$

87
$ 1.373.314

$ 576 9,317,468
9,965,000

175,897
172.531

,711 $ $

52.138

$ 1.263,443 $4

16,971
04.221\

77.410

$
$ 774,477

$ 18.630,896
$ 21,810,589

$ $7,250)
$ 1.316,064

$ 108,663

$ 14,249,726 $ 81,353,542
41,540

14.652.540

$ 2,476,941

11 971 3203,007,765
$ 14.448,261$ 17.257.491 $ 96.047,622

-4L- 55

Item 2.



GitY of Cedar Falls, lowa

statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Ghanges in Fund Net Position

ProPrietary Funds
FortheYear Ended June 30,2022

Busi ness-tYPe Activities -

Enterprise Funds

Sewer Fund Refuse Fund

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other

Total oPerating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Contractual services
SupPlies and equiPment
Depreciation

Total oPerating expenses

OPerating income(loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

lnterest revenue
lnterest expense
lntergovernmental
Gain (loss) on disposal of equipment

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)' net

lncome(loss)beforecontributionsandtransfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Contributions and transfers, net

Change in net Position

Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

See notes to financial statements

$ 7,692,526
2,105

$ 2,940,829
330,232

$ 7.694,631 3 1 061

$ 1,156,248
1,058,435
1,083,726
1,913,214

$ 1,270,983
1,371,587

263,437
523,307

$ 5,211,623 $ 3.429,314

$ 2.483,008 s (158,253)

$ 51,888
(382,793)

$ 20,196

(18,117)

$ (330, 905) $ 2,079

$ 2.152,103 $ (156, 1741

$ 17,920
2,256,992
(984,584)

$ 1.290,328

$ 3,442,431

59,081,754

283,440
(169,656)

$ 113.784

$ (42,390)

16,308,336

$

-42-

$ 62,524 ,185 $ 16.265,946

56

Item 2.



Business-tYPe Activities -
Governmental

Activities-
lnternal

Service Funds
Enterprise Funds

Storm Water Fund Total

$ 1,070,284
60

11,703,639
332,397

7,325,032
148,003

$ $

344 $ 12,036,036 $ 7,4

$

73,035
1

$ 207,665
121,783
29,508

653,470

2,634,896
2,551,805
1,376,671
3,089,991

1,334,782
5,919,727
1,260,040

432,895

$

$ 1,012 26 $ 9.653,363 $ 8.947.444

57 e18 $ 2,382,673 $ (1,474,409\

$ 10,619 $
(21,694)
52,500

82,703 $
(404,487)

52,500
(18,117)

49,410

418

$ 41 5$ e87.2 401) $ 49,828

99 343 $ 2,095,272 $ n,424, 581 )

$ 21,366
134,489

(189,607)

39,286
2,674,921

(1,343,847)
900,000

$ $

752 $ 1.370.360 $ 900,000

$ 65,591

17 ,191,900

3,465,632

92,581,990

(524,581)

14,972,842

$ $

14.448,261$ 17,257,491 $ 96.047,622 $

-43- 57

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Statement of Gash Flows

Proprietary Funds
Forthe Year Ended June 30,2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers and users

Receip[s from interfund services
Payments to suPPliers
Payments to emPloYees

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net acquisition of property and equipment
Capital contributions
Principal Paid on debt maturities
Payments on advance from other funds

lnterest paid
Net cash (used for) capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
lnterest received on investments

Net increase (decrease) in cash

CASH BALANCES, Beginning
CASH BALANCES, Ending

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation
(lncrease) decrease in:

Customer and other receivables
lnventories

lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued and other liabilities

(lncrease) decrease in deferred outflows of resources

lncrease (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources

Net cash provided by operating activities

See notes to financialstatements

Business-tyPe
Activities -

Enterprise Funds
Sewer
Fund

$ 7,554,174

(876,367)
(.273,435)

$5 72

$ 2,256,992
(984.584)

$ 1,272,408

$ (2,100,975)
17,920

(1 ,1 18,000)
(855,000)
433.200)

$ (4.489

$ 48,400

$ 2,235,925

14,048,792

-$ 16,29!:11?

$ 2,483,008

1,913,214

(40,997)
5,061

467,145

44,178

532,763
$ 5,404,372

-44- 58

Item 2.



Total

$ 2,g0g,758 $ 1,071,094 $ 11,535,026 $

Refuse
Fund

(1,193,372)
(,427 .971)

$ 288,415

$

Storm Water
Fund

Business-tyPe Activities -

Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -

lnternal
Service Funds

7,325,738
(6,982,450)
(1, 509.019)

165 731

900 000

(160,387) (2,230,126)
(2,983,123)

$6, 321.777
(281.717\

$ 628 I

283,440
169.656)

134,489
189,607) n3$,847\

$ $ 2,674,921 $ 900,000

(

$ 113.784 $ (55, 1 18) $ 1,33 1.074

$ (239,447) $ (121,742)
21,366

(85,000)

(31, 500)

$ .239.447\ $ 876) $ A.e16.

$ 19.090 $ e.735 $ 77,225

$ (2,462,164)
39,286

(1,203,000)
(855,000)

$ (393,477)

464.700\
78) $ (393 .477\

$ 48.075

$ 2,784,498 $ (61 1,133)

22, 094.023 14,065,804

$ 24, 878.521 $ 13.454.671

$ 366,731

723.980
$ 181,842

5,321,251
$ 5,503,093

(24,244)
12,193

(676,610)

36,450

575.572

$3, 090,711
2,

$ (158,253) $ 57,918 $ 2,382,673 $ (1,474,409)

523,307 653,470 3,089,991 432,895

(2O8,432)

24,730
100.494

$ 628,990
'

(64,431)
17,254

(417,897)

105,358

1.208,829
$ 6.321,777

(46,867)
27,288

(625,086)

58,465

461 983

810

$ 288,415

-45-

$ (1 .165.731)#

59

Item 2.



NOTE I.

NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEX

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting EntitY

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows of Resources, and Net position or Equity

E. lmplementation of GASB Statement No. 87

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetarylnformation
B. Deficit Fund Balances

DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Deposits and lnvestments

B. Receivable

C. CapitalAssets
D. Leases

E. Non-CurrentLiabilities
F. Pension Plans

G. Other PostemPloYment Benefits

H. lnterfund Balances

l. lnterfundTransactions

OTHER NOTES

A. Due To/From ComPonent Unit

B. Risk Management

C. Commitments and Contingencies

D. Urban Renewal Development Agreements

E. Restatement
F. Subsequent Events

G. New GovernmentalAccounting standards Board (GASB) Standards

46
60

Item 2.



Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting EntitY

The city of cedar Falls is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and seven-member

council. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

these financial statements present the City and its component units, entities for which the City is

considered to be financially accountable. The discretely presented component units are reported in a

separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate

from the City. The discretely presented electric, gas, water, and communications utilities each have a

December 31 year end.

Discretety presented Component Unifs. The electric, gas, water, and communications utilities serve

all the citizens of the City and are governed by a five-member board appointed by the mayor of the

city of cedar Falls. The rates for user charges and bond issuance authorizations are approved by

the city council, and the legal liability for the general obligation portion of the Utilities' debt remains

with the City.

Complete financial statements for the Utilities may be obtained at the administrative offices.

Cedar Falls Utilities
UtilitY ParkwaY
Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Jointty Governed organizations. The city also participates in severaljointly governed organizations

ror wnicn the City is not financially accountable or that the nature and significance of the relationship

with the City are such that exclusion does not cause the City's financial statements to be misleading

or incomplete. City officials are members of the following boards and commissions: Black Hawk

County Consolidated public Safety Communications Center, Black Hawk County Solid Waste

Management Commission, Black Hawk County Criminal Justice lnformation Systems and

Metropolitan Transit AuthoritY'

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of

activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and its component units'

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements'

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are

reported separately from businesstype activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and

charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally

separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable'

The statement of net position presents the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and

deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Net position are reported

in three categories.

Net investment in capita/ assefs consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and

reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributed to the

acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets'

Restricted net position result when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally

imposed or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation'

-47 - 61

Item 2.



G

unrestricted net position consist of net position that do not meet the definiiion of the two

preceding categories. Unrestricted net position often have constraints on resources that are

imposed by management, but can be removed or modified'

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function

or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable

with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants

who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function

or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital

requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among

program revenues are reported instead as general revenues'

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major

individual governmental funds and major individual proprietary funds are reported as separate

columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and

reported as other governmental funds'

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement

focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements'

Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,

regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the

year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all

eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon

as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are

collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.

For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60

days of the end of the current fiscal period, or if the payments are from the City's component unit'

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting'

However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and

claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due'

property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest, fines and forfeitures, and special assessments are

susceptible to accrual. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the City

are also recognized as revenue. Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when

cash is received by the City and are recognized as revenue at that time'

Entiilements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to

accrual criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying

expenditures have been incurred, all other grant requirements have been met, and the criteria for

accrual has been met.

The City reports the following major governmentalfunds:

The generatfund isthe City's primary operating fund. lt accounts for all financial resources of the

general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund'

-48-
62

Item 2.



The hospifa lfund accounts for the lease income derived from Sartori Memorial Hospital.

The TtF fund accounts for property taxes received through tax increment financing.

The sfreef construction fund accounts for the road use tax revenues received to the City by the

state of lowa for the operation and maintenance of the city's streets.

The sfreet repair fund accounts for local option sales tax received from the state to be used to

repair streets.

The debf seruice fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by

proprietary funds.

The capital improvements fund accounts for the acquisition of capital assets or construction of

major capital projects not being financed by proprietary funds'

fhe bond fund accounts for all bond proceeds not related to proprietary funds and all the related

capital projects associated with the bond sales'

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The seurerfund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the City's sanitary sewer system.

The refuse fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the City's garbage collection.

The storm water fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the City's storm water

system.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type:

lnternal service funds account for operations that provide services to other departments or

agencies of the City, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. These include

data processing, vehicle maintenance, health insurance, health insurance severance, payroll, and

risk management activities.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide

financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments between the government's refuse

and sewer functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of the charges would

distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,

services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and

contributions. lnternally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as

program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include alltaxes.

proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating

revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods

in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues

of the refuse fund, sewer fund, and the government's internal service funds are charges to customers

for services. operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of

services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses

not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to

use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed'

-49-
63

Item 2.



D Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred lnflows of Resources, and Net

Position or EquitY

1. Deposifs and lnvestments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and

short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of

acquisition.

state statutes authorize the City and the Utility to invest public funds in obligations of the United

States government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences

of deposit at federaly insured depository institutions approved by the City Council; prime eligible

bankers acceptances; certain high-rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements;

certain registered open-end management investment companies; certain joint investment trusts;

and warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage district. lnvestments of the City and the

Utility are reported at fair value. Due to legal and budgetary reasons, the General Fund is

assigned a portion of the investment earnings associated with the other funds' These funds are

Street Construction, Debt Service, and the Cemetery Perpetual Care Funds'

2. Receivables and PaYables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at

the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e', the current

portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of

interfund loans).

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles'

The County Treasurer bills and collects taxes for the City. Taxes for the year ended June 30,

2022,werecertified with the County during the preceding fiscal year and were due in two equal

installments by September 30,2021and March 31,2022. Property tax receivable is recognized

on the levy or lien date, which is the date the tax asking is certified by the City to the County

Board of Supervisors. Any County collections on the 2021-2022 tax levy remitted to the City

within sixty days subsequent to June 30, 2022, are recorded as property tax revenues. Taxes not

collected and remitted to the City within sixty days subsequent to June 30,2022, are delinquent

and have been recorded as receivables and unavailable revenues.

By statute, the City is required to certify its budget in March of each year for the subsequent fiscal

year. However, by statute, the tax asking and budget certification for the following fiscal year

becomes effective on the first day of that year. Although the succeeding year property tax

receivable has been recorded, the related revenue is reported as a deferred inflow and will not be

recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied'

Leases

A lessor should recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources at the

commengement of the lease term, with certain exceptions for leases of assets held as

investments, certain regulated leases, shortterm leases, and leases that transfer ownership of

the underlying asset. A lessor should not derecognize the asset underlying the lease' The lease

3.

-50-
64

Item 2.



4.

receivable should be measured at the present value of lease payments expected to be received

during the lease term. The deferred inflow of resources should be measured at the value of the

lease receivable plus any payments received at or before the commencement of the lease term

that relate to future Periods'

lnventories and PrePaid ltems

lnventories in the governmental fund types are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out method'

The costs of governmental fund type inventories are recognized as expenditures when

purchased. lnventories in the proprietary fund types are valued at the lower of first-in/first-out

cost or market. The inventories for the component unit are valued at the weighted average cost'

The cost of proprietary fund type and component unit inventories are recognized as expenses

when consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are

recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

5. Restricted Assefs

Certain assets of the component units are restricted because of applicable bond provisions'

6. CapifalAssefs

capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e'g', roads,

bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-

type activities columns in the government-wide statement of net position. Capital assets are

defined by the government as equipment with initial, individual cost of $5,000 or greater or a

purchase of land, land improvements, building, or infrastructure with a value of $5,000 or greater

and an estimated useful life of greater than one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost

or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at

acquisition value. Acquisition value is the price that would have been paid to acquire a capital

asset with equivalent service potential.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or

materially extend asset lives are not capitalized'

Major oulays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed'

lnterest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of businesstype activities is

included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful

lives:

Computer EquiPment

Equipment

Office EquiPment

Vehicles

Parking Lots

Furniture

Large Vehicles

Traffic Signals

5 years

10-30 years

10-30 years

10-20 years

15 years

20 years

20-40 years

20 years

Streets

Buildings

Land lmprovements

Storm Water

Bridges

Lift Stations

Sewer

Historic Buildings

30 years

40-50 years

20-40 years

40 years

45 years

50 years

50 years

1 00 years

-51 -
65

Item 2.



7. Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred Outflows of Resources represent a consumption of net assets that applies to a future

period(s) and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then'

Deferred outflows of resources consist of unrecognized items not yet charged to pension and

OpEB expense and contributions from the employer after the measurement date but before the

end of the employer's reporting period'

8. CompensafedAbsences

City employees accumulate vacation, sick leave, and comp-time hours for subsequent use or for

payment upon termination, death, or retirement. Earned vacation pay and a maximum of one-half

of all unused sick leave may be paid upon termination of employment. The compensated

absences liability attributable to the governmental activities will be paid primari[ by the General

Fund.

All severance is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial

statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental fund financial statements

only for employees that have resigned or retired. The compensated absence liability has been

computed based on rates of pay in effect on June 30,2022'

9. Long-termObligations

ln the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term

debt and other longterm obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental

activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position' Bond

premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-

line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount'

ln the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premium and

discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt

issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums on debt issuances are reported as other

financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

lssuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as

debt service expenditures.

10. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary

net position of the lowa public Employees' Retirement System and the Municipal Fire and Police

Retirement System (Systems') and additions to/deductions from the Systems' fiduciary net

position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Systems'. For this

purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when

due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. lnvestments are reported at fair value.

The net pension liability attributable to the governmental activities will be paid primarily by the

General Fund.

-52- 66

Item 2.



11. Total OPEB LiabilitY

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources related to

opEB and OpEB expense, information has been determined based on the city's actuary report'

For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the

benefit terms. The total opEB liability attributable to the governmental activities will be paid

primarily by the General Fund.

12. Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future

period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time' Although

certain revenues are measurable, they are not available. Available means collected within the

current year or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the

current year. Deferred inflows of resources in the governmental fund financial statements

represent the amount of assets that have been recognized, but the related revenue has not been

recognized since the assets are not collected within the current year or expected to be collected

soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current year' Deferred inflows of

resources consist of property tax receivable and other receivables not collected within sixty days

after year end.

Deferred inflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position consist of succeeding year

property tax and tax increment financing receivable that will not be recognized as revenue until

the year for which they are levied, deferred amounts related to leases, the unamortized portion of

the net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments and other

unrecognized items not yet charged to pension expense'

13. Fund Balance Policies

The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

o Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in spendable form (such as

inventory) or are required to be maintained intact'

. Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers

(such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional

provisions, or by enabling legislation'

o Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by the City inself'

using its highest level of decision-making authority (i.e., City Council by adoption of an

ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year). To be reported as committed, amounts

cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City takes the same highest level action

to remove or change the constraint'

. Assigned fund balance - amounts the City intends to use for a specific purpose' lntent

can be expressed by the City Council or by an official or body to which the City Council

delegates the authority. The City Council has by resolution authorized the Finance

Manager to assign the fund balance'

. Unassigned fund balance - amounts not included in other spendable classifications

reported. The City would typically use Restricted fund balances first, followed by

Committed resources, and then Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise'

but reserves the right to selectively spend Unassigned resources first to defer the use of

-53-
67

Item 2.



these other classified funds. The General Fund is the only fund that reports a positive

unassigned fund balance amount.

As of June 30,2022, fund balances are composed of the following

Fund Balance
Classification

Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigned

Purpose

lnventory
lnventory
lnventory

TIF Debt

Street Construction
Street Repair
Debt Service
Community Block Grant

Housing Assistance
Employee Retirement SYstems

Visitors & Tourism

Cemetery PerPetual Care

Health Services
Parking

Cultural Services
Recreational Services
Capital Projects

CapitalProjects

Fund

General
Street Construction
Non-major Governmental Funds

TIF

Street Construction
Street Repair
Debt Service
Non-major Governmental Funds

Non-major Governmental Funds

Non-major Governmental Funds

Non-major Governmental Funds

Non-major Governmental Funds

Hospital
Non-major Governmental Funds

General
General
Gapital lmprovements

Non-major Governmental Funds

Amount

$ 101,762
545,985

33 792

$

$

681,539

81,956
1 1,043,005
17,444,127

401,055
67,421

730,167
6,629,145

956,681

477,753

$ 37,831,310

-

$ 19,253,243

551,220

$ 19.804,463

$ 144,315
3,236,687

28,917,532
13,244,415

$ 45,542,949

The City Gouncil has adopted a minimum cash reserve policy. Those amounts are as follows

General Fund: 15-2 5o/o of next year's expenditures and preferably at the 20-25% level

Refuse Fund: 20-30%, but no less than $500,000'

Sewer Fund: 65-75%, but no less than $1,500,000'

Street Fund: 20-30%, but no less than $1,000,000'

Storm Water Fund: 10-20%, but no less than $200,000'

EmergencY Fund: $1,500,000 minimum'

14. Fund Balance FIow AssumPtions

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and

unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance)' ln order

to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund

balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about

-54-
68

Item 2.



the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. lt is the government's policy to

consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of

unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be

used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund

balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last'

lmplementation of GASB Statement No. 87

As of Juty 1 , 2021, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of the

Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving

accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. The impact to the City resulted in the

reporting of lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources related to leases. The effect of the

implementation of this standard on beginning net position is disclosed in Note 4 E.

Note 2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Budgetary information

The C1y prepares and adopts an annual budget on a function basis for the City as a whole, rather

than at the fund level, as prescribed by lowa statutes. The state of lowa mandates that annual

budgets for the fiscal year beginning July 1 be certified to the County Auditor no later than March 31

preceding the beginning of the fiscal year. The review and adoption of the budget for the City is in

accordance with state laws and City budget procedures as stated in City Code, recodified November

1g71, andamended by ordinance adoption thereafter. Budget proposals for all operating department

requests are conducted by the Department of Finance and Business Operations who prepares, for

the Mayor's consideration, a preliminary budget by January 1 of each year for the coming fiscal year'

The budget proposal presented to the City Council by the Mayor, City Administrator, and Director of

Finance and Business operations is a complete financial plan for the upcoming fiscal year. The

proposal is submitted on or before the first Monday of February. The City Council holds various

budget meetings with the Mayor, City Administrator and department heads as well as holding public

hearings prior to adopting the budget. The council adopts the budget by resolution and certifies it to

the County Auditor by the 31st of March preceding the beginning of the fiscal year' This budget

becomes the appropriation for operations of the City'

The adopted budget presents expenditures in nine functions- Public Safety, Public Works, Health and

social services, culture and Recreation, community and Economic Development, General

Government, Debt Service, Capital Projects, and Businesstype Activities. The legal level of control

(the level on which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the function level'

Appropriations as adopted lapse at the end of the fiscal year'

Amendments to the City budget are considered annually as funding sources are available.

Management is not authorized to amend the budget or to make budgetary transfers between

functions without the approval of the city council. An additional levy of property taxes is not allowed

by state law. The City budget for the current year may be amended for any of the following purposes:

. To permit the appropriation and expenditure of unexpended, unencumbered fund

balances on hand at the end of the preceding fiscal year'

o To permit the appropriation and expenditure of amounts anticipated being available from

sources other than property taxation.

To permit transfers between funds as prescribed by state law

E.

a

-55-
69

Item 2.



. To permit transfers between functions'

The council adopts the amended budget by resolution and certifies it to the county Auditor by May

31 of the budget year. The amended budget becomes the appropriation for operations of the City'

The City Council adopted one budget amendment resolution during the year ended June 30' 2022'

Due to the emphasis placed on monitoring budgets, as a result of limited resources to provide city

services, major classifications such as personal services, capital outlays, contractual services' and

commodities are monitored throughout the year by the Department of Finance and Business

Operations.

Monthly reports are prepared by department and activity. Any major deviations must be approved by

the Department of Finance and Business Operations and the Mayor. While the legal level of control

is the program level of expenditure, departments are responsible for not expending more than the

amount of the appropriation for each activity within their area of responsibility, unless approved by the

Department of Finance and Business operations and the Mayor.

The City budgets all receipts, disbursements, and interfund and intrafund transfers on the cash basis

plus recorded accounts payable. The budget amounts included in this report are the final cash basis

budget for the year for all funds excluding the fiduciary funds, which are not budgeted for by the City'

Budgeted interfund transfers and intrafund transfers have been eliminated in the following statement

of program disbursements - budget and actual'

lndividual fund budgets are, in all cases where appropriations are required, the same as the

appropriation amounts. ln the case of the General Fund and most of the special revenue funds'

unexpended budgeted amounts lapse at the end of the budget year'

Deficit Fund Balances

The Bond Fund, a major fund, had a deficit fund balance as of June 30, 2022 in the amount of

$21,02g,5g5. The Sidewalk Assessment Fund, a non-major capital projects fund, had a deficit fund

balance of $22,290 as of June 30, 2022. These balanceS are expected to be recovered through

future bond proceeds, TIF reimbursements, and assessments'

Note 3. Detailed Notes On All Funds

Deposits and lnvestments

The City,s deposits in banks and credit unions at June 30, 2022 were entirely covered by federal

depository insurance, collateralized with securities or letters of credit held by the City or the City's

agent in the city's name or by the state sinking Fund in accordance with chapter 12C of the code of

lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will

be no loss of Public funds.

The City is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States government,

its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at federally

insured depository institutions approved by the city council; prime eligible bankers acceptances;

certain high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end

management investment companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement

certificates of a drainage district.

B.

A.

-56-
70

Item 2.



The City has no investments meeting the disclosure requirements of Governmental Accounting

Standards Board Statement No. 72.

Cash balances as of June 30, 2022, consist of the following:

Cash - unrestricted $ 131 ,052,536

A reconciliation of cash as shown on the combined balance sheet for the primary government follows

Carrying amount of dePosits

Cash - Governmental Activities

Cash - BusinesstYPe Activities

Total

$ 131 ,052,536

$ 106,174,015

24,878,521

$ 131 ,052,536

tnterest Rate Risk: The City's investment policy limits the investments of operating funds (funds

expected to be expended in the current budget year or within fifteen months of receipt) in instruments

that mature within 3g7 days. Funds not identified as operating funds may be invested in instruments

with maturities longer than 397 days, but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and use of

the City.

creditRisk; The city's investment policy limits investments in commercial paper and other corporate

debt to the top two highest classifications. The city did not invest in any commercial paper or other

corporate debt during the Year.

Concentration of credit risk: The City's investment policy does not allow for a prime bankers'

acceptance or commercial paper and other corporate debt balances to be greater than ten percent of

its total deposits and investments. The policy also limits the amount that can be invested in a single

issue to five percent of its total deposits and investments. The City held no such investments during

the year.

Custodiat credit risk - deposifs: ln the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank

failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to it. The City's deposits are entirely covered

by federal depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the

Code of lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure

there will be no loss of public funds.

Custodiat credit isk - investmenfs: For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure

of the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or

collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City did not hold any

investments during the Year.

The component units' deposits were entirely covered by Federal depository insurance, collateralized

with securities or letters of credit held by the entity or its agent in the entity's name, or by a multiple

financial institutioncollateral pool inaccordancewithChapterl2Cofthecodeof lowa' Thischapter

provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will be no loss of public

funds.

-57 -
71

Item 2.



cash balances as of December 31,2021, consist of the fOllowing

Electric
Utilitv

Gas
Utility

Water
Utilitv

Communications
Utilitv

Cash - unrestricted

Cash - restricted

$ 39,669,613 $ 8,048,734 $

445,264

6,055,992

294,278

$ 17,672,218

556,7555,274,958

$44 571 $ I 998 $ 6,350,270 $ ta 973

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the statement of net position for the component

units follows

Carrying amount of dePosits

Carrying amount of certificates

Total $ 48.044.571 $ $ 6,380,270 $ tg 973

Electric
Utilitv

$ 44,944,571

100

Gas
Utility

$ 8,493,998

40

Water
Utilitv

$ 6,350,270

30

Communications
Utilitv

$ 18,228,973

0001

8.533,998

Cash

Cash - Restricted

lnvestments:

Certificates of dePosit

Certificates of dePosit -

restricted

Total

$ 39,669,613

5,274,958

$ 8,048,734

445,264

$ 6,055,992

294,278

$ 17,672,218

556,755

2,990,000 1,000,000

110 40 30 50 000

$ 48.044.571 $ 8.533,998 $ 6,380,270 $ 19 973

Receivable

on June 30,2}22,the city has recorded a $4,403,671 receivablefor library, recreation, and cultural

contributions held by the cedar Falls community Foundation. The funds will be used to support

library services, recreation services, and the cultural center, therefore is reported as an asset to the

General Fund.

-58-
72

Item 2.



c. GapitalAssets

capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2O22was as follows:

Primarv Government

Beginning

Balance lncreases Decreases

Ending
Balance

Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being

depreciated:

Land

Construction in Progress

Total caPital assets, not being

depreciated

Capital assets, being dePreciated

Buildings

Land lmprovements

Machinery and equiPment

lnfrastructure

Total caPital assets, being

depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Land lmprovements

Machinery and equiPment

lnfrastructure

Total accu mulated dePreciation

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net

Governmental activities caPital

assets, net

$ 43,116,319 $ $ $ 43,116,319

380.43212, 137,611 14,752,595 3,509,774 23,

$ss 930 $ ra,752,595 $ a, 509,774 $ 66,496,751

$ 36,936,789 $ --

21,077,715 23j00
21,936,957 1,136,228

268,834,004 4,628,092

$

696,408

$ 36,936,789

21,100,815

22,376,777

273,462,096

$ 348,785,465 $ S, 787,420 $ 696,408 $ 353,876 .477

$ 14,116,037

9,080,657

14,421,782

$ 890,221 $

704,934

1 ,106,652

$ 15,006,258

9,785,591

14,901,866626,568

123 378 7, 924.214 131,773,592

$ 161,467 ,854 $ 10,626 ,021 $ 626,568 $ 171,467,307

$ 187 ,317 ,611 $ (4,838,601) $ 69,840 $ 182,409 ,170

$ 242,5 71.541 $ 9,913,994 $ 3,579,614 $ 248, 905,921

-59-
73

Item 2.



Beginning
Balance lncreases Decreases

Ending

Balance

Business-tyPe activities:
Capital assets, not being

depreciated:

Land

Construction in Progress

Total capitalassets, not being

depreciated

Capital assets, being dePreciated

Buildings

Machinery and equiPment

lnfrastructure

Total caPital assets, being

depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Machinery and equiPment

lnfrastructure

Total accumulated dePreciation

$ 1 ,612,581 $ $ $ 1,612,581

809,313073 757 2,1 289,786 2 230

$2, 686,338 $ Z, 289,786 $ 2,554,230 $ 2,421,894

$ 56,337,385 $

10,284,904

$ 65,797 $

35,000

56,271,588

10,499,694249,790

67,3 17.517 2,487 ,164 69,804 ,681

$ 133,939 ,806 $ 2, 736,954 $ 100,797 $ 136,5 75,963

$ 14,688,998

5,165,795

$ 1,187,886 $

3B2,630

$ 15,833,569

5,519,404
43,315

29,021

24,2 15,399 1, 519,475 25,734,874

$ 44.070,192 $ 3,089,991 $ 72,336 $ 47, 087,847

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net $ 8e, 869,614 $ 037) $ 28,461 $ 89,488,116

Business-type activities capital

assets, net $e2 952 $ 1,936,749 $ 2,582 ,691 $ gt ,910,010

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows

Public safety

Public works

Health and social services

Culture and recreation

Community and economic development

General government

Capital assets held by government's internal service funds are charged to

the various functions based on their usage of the assets

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

$ 350,145

8,141,753

148,978

1,220,351

158,641

173,258

432,895

$ 10,626,021

-

Business-tyPe activities

Sewer

Refuse

Storm Water
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

$ 1,913,214

523,307

653,470

-60-

$ 3,089,991

- 74

Item 2.



Construction Commitments

The City has active construction projects as of June 30,2022. At year-end the City's commitments

with contractors are as follows:

Resilience Plan

2021 Reconstruction

2022 Reconstruction

2021 Street Patching

Main Street Reconstruction

Union Road Reconstruction

West Viking Road Reconstruction

Streetscape Maintenance

Downtown Levee Certification

Dam Safety lmProvements

Cedar Heights

Union Rd. Trail

GreenhillRd. & Main

W. Viking Road lnd. Park

I ntersection I mProvements

Olive St. Box Culvert

W. 27th St. Reconstruction

Cyber Lane

2021 Sidewalk RePair

Cotlege Hill Vision Plans

CDBG Sewer Lining

Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction

Lake Street Trail

City Hall Remodel

2021Permeable AlleY

2022 Bridge I nsPections

2022 Alley Reconstruction

Center Street StreetscaPe

CDBG Sidewalk

Project
Authorization

85,500

4,077,321

3,373,917

161,198

1,959,241

516,803

253,100

2,832,997

73,500

284,420

243,500

655,149

3,725,829
8,440,052

376,800

197,500

8,319,851

351,274

160,388

165,000

286,395

7,491,157

340,500

4,143,956
102,916

31,000

508,133

1,540,598

194,156

$ 50,892,151 $ 23,168,473 $ 27,723,678

Expended
to Date

Remaining
Commitment

$$ $ 81,225

4,030,921
967,014
144,234

1,316,237

423,986

211,275

2,257,802
72,211

284,327

60,476

540,038

1,191,907

1,778,070

92,614
197,495

706,127

314,524
113,630

125,750

267,125

5,295,337

46,347

2,317,914
1 00,1 07

28,539

16,625

0

186,616

4,275

46,400

2,406,903

16,964

643,004

92,817

41,825

575,195

1,289

93

183,024

115,111

2,533,922

6,661,982

284,186
5

7,613,724

36,750

46,758

39,250

19,270

2,195,820
294,153

1,826,042
2,809

2,461

491,508

1,540,598

7,540

-61 -
75

Item 2.



Discretelv Presented Comoonent Units

Activity for the Electric Utility for the year ended December 31,2021, was as follows

Beginning
Balance lncreases Decreases

Ending
Balance

Capital assets, not being

depreciated:
Land

Construction in Progress
Total capital assets, not

being depreciated

Capital assets, being dePreciated:
Buildings
Machinery and equiPment
Land Rights
lnfrastructure
Total capital assets, being

depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings
Machinery and equiPment

Land Rights
lnfrastructure

$ 1,878,208 $
3,968,161

$ 1,878,208

8,048,525 9,453,755 2 931

$ 5,846,369 $ B, 048,525 $ 9,453,755 $ 4,441 139

$ 42,162,262
21,054,934

255,094

$ 1,690,153 $
837,656

321,075 $
219,256

43,531,340
21,673,334

255,094
209,567,977203,712,916 6, 925.946 1,070,885

$ 267,185,206 $ g 755 $ 1,611,216 $ 275,027,745

$ 1,238,472 $ 414,843 $

1,614,342 219,256
3,401

5,903,971 1,160,500

$ 8,760,186 $ 1,794,599 $ 112,972,505

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net

Electric Utility capital assets, net

$ 161, 178,288 $ 693,569 $ (183,383) * $ 162,055,240

$ 167 $s, 742.094 $ 9,270,372 $ 166,496,379

*Cedar Falls Utilities uses FERC utility accounting which allows for depreciation calculated using the

composite straight-line method. Under this method it is common for accumulated depreciation

deletions to exceed the cost removed.

$ 14,832,624
11,042,470

17,006
80,1 14,818

$ 106,006,918

15,656,253
12,437,556

20,407

84,858,289

-62- 76

Item 2.



Activity for the Gas Utility for the year ended December 31,2021 was as follows:

Beginning

Balance lncreases Decreases

Ending

Balance

Capital assets, not being

depreciated:

Land

Construction in Progress
Total caPital assets, not

being depreciated

Capital assets, being dePreciated

Buildings

Machinery and equiPment

lnfrastructure

Total capital assets, being

depreciated

Less accumulated dePreciation

Buildings

Machinery and equiPment

lnfrastructure

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net

Gas Utility caPital assets, net

$ 25,617 $ $ $ 25,617

66,259135 746 1, 135,564 1,205,051

$ 161,363 $ 1,135,564 051 $ 91,876$1

$ 4,291,890

512,408

25,241,005

$ 47,420

19,835

1,137 ,797

59,026

19,667

140,856

$ 4,280,284

512,576
$

26,237,946

$ 30,045,303 $ 1,205,052 $ 219,549 $ 31,030,806

$ 846,757 $
305,332

103,870

52,344

710.494

$ 5e,026

19,667

155,763

$ 234,456

891,601

338,009

$

13 842 14,475,573

$ts e31 $ 866,708 $ 15, 705,183

$ 14, 972,372 $ 338.344 $ (1 4.907) . $ 15, 325,623

$ 1,473,908 $ t, 190,144 $ 15.417,499$ 15,133,735

*cedar Falls utilities uses FERC utility accounting which allows for depreciation calculated using the

composite straight-line method. Under this method it is common for accumulated depreciation

deletions to exceed the cost removed.

-63-
77

Item 2.



Activity for the water Utility for the year ended December 31,2021was as follows:

Beginning

Balance lncreases Decreases

Ending

Balance

Capital assets, not being

depreciated:

Land

Construction in Progress

Total capital assets, not

being depreciated

Capital assets, being dePreciated:

Buildings

Machinery and equiPment

lnfrastructure

Total capital assets, being

depreciated

Less accumulated dePreciation

Buildings

Machinery and equiPment

lnfrastructure

Total accum ulated dePreciation

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net

Water Utility caPital assets, net

857,571

826 $r 735 $ 857,571 $ 423,990

$ 63,466

14,360

$-
1,203,735

$ $ 63,466

360,524

$ 77

$ 2,744,137

1,372,468

43,410,716

$ 42,787 $

47,267

767,517

$ 2,754,195

1,379,133

44.117,816

32,729

40,602

60,417

$ 47, 527.321 $ 857,571 $ 133.748 $ 48,251,144

$ 647,788 $

644,067

1 670

61,895

39,264

842,183

$ 32,728

40,602

59,682

$ 676,955

642,729

13,326,171

$ 13 525 $ 943,342 $ 133,012 $ 14

$ 33,691,796 $ (85 ,771\ $ 736.$ 289

$ 33,769,622 $ t,t 17,964 $ 858,307 $ 34,029,279

*cedar Falls Utilities uses FERC utility accounting which allows for depreciation calculated using the

composite straight-line method. Under this method it is common for accumulated depreciation

deletions to exceed the cost removed.

-64-
78

Item 2.



Activity for the Communications Utility for the year ended December 31,2021was as follows

Beginning

Balance lncreases Decreases

Capital assets, not being

depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress

Total capital assets, not

being dePreciated

Capital assets, being dePreciated:

Machinery and equiPment

lnfrastructure

Total caPital assets, being

depreciated

Less accum ulated dePreciation

Machinery and equiPment

lnfrastructure

Total accum u lated dePreciation

Ending

Balance

$ 2,177 $ $ $ 2,177
89,459976 119 4,271,398 5, 158,058

$ 978,296 $ 4,271,398 $ S, 158,058 $ 91,636

$ 24,856,362$ 22,825,078

20,594,870

$ 4,662,563

495.494

$ 2,631,279

13,396 21 968

$ 43,419,948 $ S, 158,057 $ z, 644.675 $ 45, 933,330

$ 14,203,980 $

5,388 ,383

$ 19,592 $ 3,631,087 $ 2,644,625 $ 20, 578.825,363

2,855,135

775,952
$ 2,631,245

13,380

$ 14,427,870

6,150,955

D.

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net

Communications UtilitY caPital

assets, net

$ 23,827 ,585 $ 1,526,970 $ 50 . $ 25,354,505

$ 24,805,881 $ S,798,368 $ S, 1 58,1 08 $ 25,446,141

*cedar Falls Utilities uses FERC utility accounting which allows for depreciation calculated using the

composite straighlline method. Under this method it is common for accumulated depreciation

deletions to exceed the cost removed.

Leases

Lessor:

Sartori Memorial HosPital

On January 1,1gg1,the operations of Sartori Memorial Hospital (Hospital) were sold to MercyOne

Health Systems, lnc. As part of this sale, the City entered into a lease agreement with Sartori

Memorial Hospital, tnc. (SMH), whereas the City will lease to SMH the land and buildings owned by

the City and used in the Hospital's operations. The initial term of the lease was for a period of 25

years, with each additional term being for a period of five years. MercyOne has already exercised its

right for the first extension, however, is not expected to renew for the additional two terms'

During the fiscal year, the city recognized $29,826 in lease revenue and $2,970 in interest income

related to these agreements. At July 1,2021, the city recorded $149,132 in a lease receivable and

deferred inflow of resources for this arrangement. The city used an interest rate of 2.17o/o based on

the average rate of interest received on the Hospital Fund investments.

MercyOne Health systems, lnc. also pays to the city an annual amount of $140'000 for five years'

which represents the liability arising from accrued vacation of Hospital personnel as of December 31,

1996. The present value of this liability as of June 30,2022, is recorded as a receivable and deferred

inftow of resources in the Hospital Fund in the amount of $540,306.

65

79

Item 2.



Cellular Towers
The City licenses (leases) 2 parcels of land for cellular tower antenna sites. One of the licenses is for

a non-cancelable period of 25 years ending on February 15,2026 with five (5) renewal periods of five

(5)years. The City believes the licensee will exercise the renewaloptions with reasonable certainty'

The agreement allows for annual increases in lease payments of 4%. The second license is in the

middle of its fourth renewal period ending February 28,2025, and the licensee has one additional

renewal period of five years remaining which the City is reasonably certain will be exercised. The

agreement allows for annual increases in lease payments at the greater of 3% or the percentage

increase in the CPI over the CPI for the month 12 months prior to the adjustment date. During the

fiscalyear, the City recognized $57,625 in lease revenue and $25,845 in interest revenue related to

these agreements. At July 1,2021, the City recorded $1 ,156,833 in lease receivables and deferred

inflows of resources for these arrangements. The City used an interest rate of 2.5% based on

comparable interest rates for investments in the current market'

Leases receivable

Balance

at July 1,2021
as restated Additions Deletions

Balance at

June30,2022

Lease agreements $1 305,965 $ $ 54,670 $ 1, 251,295

Total leases receivable $ 1,305,965 $ $ 54,670 $ 1,251,295

Remaining amounts to be received associated with these leases are as follows

FiscalYear
Ended June 30 Lease Revenue

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028-2032

2033-2037

2038-2042

2043-2047

2048-2052

Total

54,394

57,537

60,811

63,969

36,047

155,941

113,748

177,223

259,615

272,010

$

$ 1.251,295

-66-
80

Item 2.



E Non-Current Liabilities

Following is a summary of the city's changes in long-term liabilities for the year-ended June 30' 2022,

and the total liability of the city as of that date as reported on the government-wide statement of net

position:

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending

Balance

Amounts

Due Within

One Year

Governmental Activities:

CapitalLoan Notes:

Series 2016

Series 2018

Series 2020

Totalnotes
Add: Unamortized

premium

Total long{erm debt

Compensated absences

Total non-current

liabilities

$ 1,400,000

2,165,000

3,300,000

$ 270,$ 000

000

000

$ 1,130,000 $ 275,000

1,900,000 280,000265,

335, 2 340,000

$ 6,865,000 $

454 109

7,319,109 $

2,665,701

61,472 392,637

$ 870,000$5,995,000$895,000

$ 931,472

292,208

$ 6,387,637

2,379,305

$ 895,000

1,225,3195,812

$e, 984,8'10 $ 5,812 $ 1,223 ,680 $ 8,766,942 $ 2,120,319

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending

Balance

Amounts

Due Within

One Year

Business-Type Activities:

Capital Loan Notes:

Series 2016

Series 2018-Strm Wtr

Series 2018-Sewer

Total notes

State Revolving Loan

Add: Unamortized
premium

Total long-term debt

Compensated absences

Total non-current

liabilities

$ 4,405,000

695,000

1,630,000

$ $ 590,000

85,000
200,000 1,430 ,000

600,000

90,000

210,000

$ 3,815,000 $

610,000

$ 6,730,000 $

4,720,000

361,045

$ 875,000 $

328,000

5,855,000 $

4,392,000

900,000

339,000

51

1,254,577

50,587

$ 10,556,468

330,184

$ 1,239,000

154,287

577 309,468

$ 11,811,045 $

380,771

$

$ 12,191,816 $ $ 1,305 164 $ 10,886,652 $ 1,393,287

67
81

Item 2.



General Obligation Bonds/Notes

Three issues of unmatured general obligation bonds/notes totaling $12,552,105, net unamortized

premium of $702,10S are outstanding as of June 30,2022. These notes bear interest at rates of

2.Ooo/oto 5.00%; mature in varying annual amounts through June 30, 2030; and were originally

issued for $1 9,025,000.

Details of general obligation bonds/notes payable at June 30,2022 are as follows:

Date of

lssue

lnterest

Rates

Annual

Payments

Amount

Originally

lssued

Outstanding

30-Jun-22

Final

Due

Date

Governmental Activities:

General Obligation

Capital Loan Notes

General Obligation

Capital Loan Notes

General Obligation

Capital Loan Notes

Total Governmental Activities

Business Activities:

General Obligation

Capital Loan Notes

General Obligation

Capital Loan Notes-Sewer

General Obligation

Capital Loan Notes-Strm. Wtr

Total Business Activities

711912016 2.OOo/o 61112026 245,000'440,000 $2,865'000 $1'130'000

7t1st2o18 4.00-5.00% 6t1t2028 200,000-350,000 2,860,000 1,900'000

7l21t2O2O 2.OOo/o 611t2O3O 130,000'405,000 3,430,000 2'965'000

$5,995,000

7t1912016 2.000/o 611t2028 125,000-670,000 $6,790,000 $3,815'000

7t1g120184.00-5.00%6t1t202s150,000-260,0002,160,0001,430'000

711st20184.00-5.00%6t11202865,000-110,000920,000610'000

$5,855,000

68
82

Item 2.



Annual debt service requirements to maturing for general obligation bonds/notes are as follows

Year Ending

June 30,

Goven mental Activities Business-type Activities

Principal lnterest Principal lnterest

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028-2030

Total

$ 895,000 $

925,000

950,000

980,000

715,000

$ 167,450

140,450

112,150

82,800

55,900

28,2001,530 000

$ 5,99s,ooo $ 625,400 $ 5,855 .000 $ 586,950

lnterest

166,750 $

140,450

113,100

84,800

58,700

61,600

900,000

935,000

965,000

995,000

1,020,000

1,040,000

State Revolving Loan

ln July 2011, the City entered into a loan and disbursement agreement with the lowa Finance

Authority for the issuance of sewer revenue capital loan notes under the State Revolving Fund

program. These notes financed the major renovation project at the City's water treatment facility

related to disinfection compliance. The debt is owned by the lowa Finance Authority and; therefore,

constitutes direct borrowing. ln the event of a default, the issuer shall have the right to take any

action authorized under the regulations, the revenue note or the agreement and to take whatever

action at law or equity may appear necessary or desirable to collect the amounts then due and

thereafter to become due under the agreement or to enforce the performance and observance of any

duty, covenant, obligation or agreement of the participant under the agreement. As of June 30,2022'

g4,392,000 is outstanding. These notes bear interest at a rate ol 1.75o/o with a final maturity in fiscal

year 2035. Annual debt service requirements to maturity for this loan are as follows:

Year Ending

June 30,

Business-type Activities

Principal

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028-2032

2033-2035

Total

339,000 $

350,000

361,000

373,000

385,000

2,1 18,000

466,000

87,840

81,060

74,060

66,840

59,380

176,380

9,320

$

$ 4,392,000 $ 554,881

The notes are paid by the Sewer Fund. ln fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Sewer Fund had net

revenue of $4,448,110 and the amount of principal and interest due was $451 ,900.

69
83

Item 2.



Debt Limitation

As of June 30,2022, the outstanding general obligation debt of the City did not exceed its legal debt

margin comPuted as follows:

Estimated actual valuation of taxable property within the city

Debt limit - 5% of total actual valuation

Debt applicable to debt limit:

General obligation bonds/Capital loan notes

Legaldebt margin

$ 174,549,627

$ 162, 699,627

All tax-exempt debt issued by the city is subject to IRS arbitrage rebate unless the city meets the $5

million small issuers exemption in a given year. As of June 30, 2022, the city had no arbitrage

liability.

Non-Current Liabilities - Electric Utility

Non-Current liability activity for the year ended December 31,2021was as follows

Additions Reductions

Amounts

Due Within

One Year

$ 3,490,992 ,530

11,850,000

Beginning

Balance

Ending

Balance

CapitalLoan Notes:

Series 2015

Unamortized Premium
Unamortized discount

Current installments

of long-term debt

Long-term debt

Customer advances

for construction

Landfillclosure
Other liabilities
Net pension liabilitY

Accrued severance
OPEB

$ 14,520,000 $

1,719,115
(17,576)

$ 2,760,000

326,774

(3,341)

$ 11,760,000 $ 2,895,000

1,392,341

(14,235)

(2, 760.000) 135,000 (2,895,000)

$ 13,46 1,539 $ $ 3,218,433 $ tO 106 $ 000

358,500

2,852,269

1,429,236

6,084,396
749,279

1,012,843

69,700

92,956

107,116

1,021,259
35,074

112,681

147,700

71,307

2',13,892

6,979,463
37,599

106,110

280,500

2,873,918

1,322,460

126,192

746,754

1,019,414

Noncurrent liabilities 12,486,523 1 786 7,556,071 6,369,238

$ 16,$ 2b,948,062 $ 10, 612,344 $$ 1, 000
Total

-70 -

438,786 774,504

84

Item 2.



Capital Loan Notes - Electric Utility

The 2015 revenue capital loan notes require annual principal payments, due December 1, and

semiannual interest payments, due June I and December 1' lnterest rates are in a range between

Z.SO%and b.00%. The capital loan notes are secured by the future net revenues of the Utility.

Component Unit -

Capital Loan Notes

Year Princioal lnterest

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

$ 2,895,000 $

3,045,000

3,195,000

1,290,000

1,335,000

455,625

310,875

158,625

78,750

40,050

$ 11 760 $ 1,043,925

Non-Gurrent Liabilities - Gas Utility

Non-Current liability activity for the year ended December 31,2021was as follows

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending
Balance

Customer advances for
construction

Other liabilities
Net pension liabilitY
Accrued severance
OPEB

144,774 $
221,620

2,090,749
162,344
200,660

$ 50,560 $
1 10,810

2,451,531
55,700
23,209

118,634
110,810

44,325
164,539
202,108

$ 24,420

405,107
57,895
24,657

Totalno n-current liabilities $ 2,820,147 $--rlZo-7g $ 2,691,810 $ 640,416

-71 -
85

Item 2.



Non-Current Liabilities - Water Utility

Non-Current liability activity for the year ended December 31,2021was as follows

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Accounts payable - long term $

Net pension liabilitY
Accrued severance
OPEB

$ $ $

Ending
Balance

1,439,658
112,392
149,630

222,874
35,239
17,076

1,634,294
33,719
16,074

28,238
113,912
150,632

Total non-current liabilities $ 1,701,680 $ 275j89 $ t,os4,o8z g 292,782

Non-Current Liabilities - Gommunications Utility

Non-Current liability activity for the year ended December 31,2021was as follows:

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Reductions Balance

Customer advances for
construction

Net pension liabilitY
Accrued severance
OPEB

$ $ $ $

2,926,363
224,784
299,436

475,691
38,769
35,327

3,341,781
23,073
33,210

60,273
240,480
301,553

Total non-current liabilities $ 3,450 .583 $-54q7s7 $ 3,3e8,064 $ 602,306

F. Pension Plans

The primary government participates in two public pension systems, lowa Public Employees

Retirement System (lPERS) and Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa (MFPRSI).

The aggregate amount of recognized pension expense (income) for the period associated with the

net pension liability for all plans is ($477,988) for the primary government. Other aggregate amounts

related to pension are separately displayed in the financial systems. The City's total pension liability

is a liability as of June 30, 2022, however, when allocated to individual funds, the liability may be

displayed as positive or negative.

-72
86

Item 2.



IPERS

plan Description. IPERS membership is mandatory for employees of the City, except for those

covered by another retirement system. Employees of the City are provided with pensions through a

cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by lowa Public Employees'

Retirement System (lpERS). IPERS issues a stand-alone financial report which is available to the

public by mail at PO Box 9117, Des Moines, lowa 50306-9117 or at vuww.ipers'ors'

IPERS benefits are established under lowa Code chapter 978 and the administrative rules

thereunder. Chapter 978 and the administrative rules are the official plan documents. The following

brief description is provided for general informational purposes only. Refer to the plan documents for

more information.

pension Benefits - A regular member may retire at normal retirement age and receive monthly

benefits without an early-retirement reduction. Normal retirement age is age 65, anytime after

reaching age 62 with 20 or more years of covered employment, or when the member's years of

service plus the member's age at the last birthday equals or exceeds BB, whichever comes first.

(These qualifications must be met on the member's first month of entitlement to benefits.) Members

cannot begin receiving retirement benefits before age 55. The formula used to calculate a Regular

member's monthly IPERS benefit includes:

o A multiplier (based on years of service).
o The membei's highest five-year average salary. (For members with service before June 30,

2012, the highesithree-year average salary as of that date will be used if it is greater than the

highest five-year average salary.)

protection occupation members may retire at normal retirement age which is generally at age 55.

The formula used to calculate a protection occupation members' monthly IPERS benefit includes:

. 6Oo/oof averagesalaryaftercompletionof 22yearsof service,plusanadditional 1.5o/oof average

salary for yeais of service greater lhan 22 but not more than 30 years of service.

. The member's highest three-year average salary.

lf a member retires before normal retirement age, the member's monthly retirement benefit will be

permanenly reduced by an early-retirement reduction. The early-retirement reduction is calculated

differengy for service earned before and after July 1,2012. For service earned before July 1,2012,

the reduction is 0.25 percent for each month that the member receives benefits before the member's

earliest normal retirement age. For service earned starting July 1, 2012,the reduction is 0.50 percent

for each month that the member receives benefits before age 65.

Generally, once a member selects a benefit option, a monthly benefit is calculated and remains the

same for the rest of the member's lifetime. However, to combat the effects of inflation, retirees who

began receiving benefits prior to July 1990 receive a guaranteed dividend with their regular

November benefit PaYments.

Disability and Death Benefits - A vested member who is awarded federal Social Security disability or

Railroad Retirement disability benefits is eligible to claim IPERS benefits regardless of age' Disability

_73 _

87

Item 2.



benefits are not reduced for early retirement. lf a member dies before retirement, the member's

beneficiary will receive a lifetime annuity or a lump-sum payment equal to the present actuarial value

of the member's accrued benefit or calculated with a set formula, whichever is greater. When a

member dies after retirement, death benefits depend on the benefit option the member selected at

retirement.

contributions - The contribution rates are established by IPERS following the annual actuarial

valuation, which applies IpERS'Contribution Rate Funding Policy and ActuarialAmortization Method.

Statue limits the amount rates can increase or decrease each year to 1 percentage point. IPERS

Contribution Rate Funding policy requires that the actuarial contribution rate be determined using the

,,entry age normal" actuarial cost method and the actuarial assumptions and methods approved by

the IpERS lnvestment Board. The actuarial contribution rate covers normal cost plus the unfunded

actuarial liability payment based on a 30-year amortization period. The payment to amortize the

unfunded actuarial liability is determined as a level percentage of payroll, based on the Actuarial

Amortization Method adopted by the lnvestment Board'

ln fiscal year 2022, pursuant to the required rate, Regular members contributed 6.29 percent of pay

and the city contributed g.44 percent for a total rate of 15.73 percent. Protective occupation

members contributed 6.21 percent of pay and the City contributed 9.31 percent for a total rate of

15.52 percent.

The City's total contributions to IPERS for the year ended June 30, 2022were $1,072'135.

Net pension Liabilities. pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows

of Resources Related to pensions * At June 30,2022, the City reported a liability of $191,670 for its

proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,

2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an

actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the

City,s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all IPERS participating

employers. At June 30, 2021, the City's collective proportion was -.0555200 percent which was a

decrease of 0.187404 percentfrom its proportion measured as of June 30'2020'

-74 -
88

Item 2.



For the year ended June 30, 2O22,the City recognized pension expense (income) of ($589'124). At

June 30, 2022, the city reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred lnflows
of Resources

Differences between exPected and

actual exPerience

Changes of assumPtions

Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between

City contributions and proportionate share

of contributions

City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Total

145,834 $ 146,426

125,369

6,944,530

452,350 9,422

$

1,072,135

--

$1,072,135 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City

contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net

pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of

resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension

expense as follows:

Year
Ended

June 30 Total

2023
2024

2025
2026

2027

$ (1,572,923)

(1,574,027)

(1,455,918)

(1,804,280)

30,323

$ (6,376,825)

There were no non-employer contributing entities at IPERS'

-75 -
89

Item 2.



Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the June 30, 2021 acluarial valuation was

determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement:

Rate of lnflation
(effective June 30, 2017)

Rates of salary increase

(effective June 30, 2017)

Long-term investment rate of return

(effective June 30, 2017)

Wage growth

(effective June 30, 2017)

2.60 percent Per annum

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2021valuation were baSed On the results of actuarial

experience study dated March 24,2017 and a demographic assumption study dated June 28' 2018'

Mortality rates used in the 2021 valuation were based on the RP-2014 Employee and Healthy

Annuitant Tables, with MP-201 7 generational adjustments'

The longterm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-

block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates (expected returns, net of

pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class' These

ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected

future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation'

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class

are summarized in the following table:

3.25 to 16.25 percent, average, including inflation' Rates

vary by membershiP group.

7.00 percent, compounded annually, net of investment

expense, including inflation

3.25 percent per annum based on 2.60% inflation

and 0.65% realwage inflation.

Long-Term ExPected
Real Rate of ReturnAsset Class Asset Allocation

Domestic equitY

lnternational equitY

Global smart beta equitY

Core plus fixed income

Public credit

Cash
Private equitY
Private real assets
Private credit

Total

22.0 o/o

17.5

6.0

26.0

4.0

1.0
13.0

7.5
3.0

100.0 %

4.43 %
6.01

5.10

0.29

2.08

(0.25)
9.51
4.63
2.87

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0 percent. The

ffiction of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will

be made at the contractually required rate and that contributions from the City will be made at

contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's

fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of

current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension

-76-
90

Item 2.



plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total

pension liabilitY

Rate - The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated

using the discount rate of 7.0 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net

pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower

(6.0 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8'0 percent) than the current rate.

1Yo

Decrease
Discount

Rate
1%

lncrease

(6. 0%) .Oo/o

City's proPortionate share of

the net pension liabilitY: $ 6,783,843 $ 191,670 $ (5,332,990)

pension plan Fiduciarv Net position - Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net

position is availabte in the separately issued IPERS financial report which is available on IPERS'

website at www.iPers.orq'

pavables to the pension plan - At June g0,2022, the city reported no payables to the defined benefit

pension plan for tegalry required employer contributions and legally required employee contributions

which had been withheld from employee wages but not yet remitted to IPERS'

MFPRSI

pension plan Fiduciarv Net position - MFPRSI membership is mandatory for fire fighters and police

officers covered by tne provisions of chapter 411 of the code of lowa' Employees of the city are

provided with pensions through a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan

administered by MFpRSl. MFPRSI issues a stand-alone financial report which is available to the

public by mail at7155 Lake Drive, suite #201, West Des Moines, lowa 50266 or at www'mfprsi'org'

MFPRSI benefits are established under chapter 411 of the code of lowa and the administrative rules

thereunder. chapter 411 ofthe code of lowa and the administrative rules are the official plan

documents. The following brief description is provided for general informational purposes only' Refer

to the plan documents for more information'

pension Benefits - Members with 4 or more years of service are entitled to pension benefits beginning

ut ug" 55. Full service retirement benefits are granted to members with 22 years of service, while

partial benefits are available to those members with 4 to 22 years of service based on the ratio of

years completed to years required (i'e., 22 years)' Members with less than 4 years of service are

entiiled to a refund of their contribution only, with interest, for the period of employment.

.0o/o

-77 -
91

Item 2.



Benefits are calculated based upon the member's highest 3 years of compensation. The average of

these 3 years becomes the member's average final compensation. The base benefit is 66 percent of

the member's average final compensation. Additional benefits are available to members who perform

more than 22 years of service (2 percent for each additional year of service, up to a maximum of B

years). Survivor benefits are available to the beneficiary of a retired member according to the

provisions of the benefit option chosen plus an additional benefit for each child. Survivor benefits are

subject to a minimum benefit for those members who chose the basic benefit with a 50 percent

surviving spouse benefit.

Active members, at least 55 years of age, wilh 22 or more years of service have the option to

participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP). The DROP is an arrangement

whereby a member who is otherwise eligible to retire and commence benefits opts to continue to

work. A member can elect a 3, 4, or 5 year DROP period. By electing to participate in DROP the

member is signing a contract indicating the member will retire at the end of the selected DROP

period. During the DROP period the member's retirement benefit is frozen and a DROP benefit is

credited to a DROP account established for the member. Assuming the member completes the

DROP period, the DROP benefit is equal to 52o/o of the member's retirement benefit at the member's

earliest date eligible and 100% if the member delays enrollment for 24 months. At the member's

actual date of retirement, the member's DROP account will be distributed to the member in the form

of a lump sum or rollover to an eligible plan.

Disability and Death Benefits - Disability coverage is broken down into two types, accidental and

ordinary. Accidental disability is defined as permanent disability incurred in the line of duty, with

benefits equivalent to the greater of 60 percent of the member's average final compensation or the

member's service retirement benefit calculation amount. Ordinary disability occurs outside the call of

duty and pays benefits equivalent to the greater of 50 percent of the member's average final

compensation, for those with 5 or more years of service, or the member's service retirement benefit

calculation amount, and 25 percent of average final compensation for those with less than 5 years of

service.

Death benefits are similar to disability benefits. Benefits for accidental death are 50 percent of the

average final compensation of the member plus an additional amount for each child, or the provisions

for ordinary death. Ordinary death benefits consist of a pension equal to 40 percent of the average

final compensation of the member plus an additional amount for each child, or a lump-sum

distribution to the designated beneficiary equal to 50 percent of the previous year's earnable

compensation of the member or equal to the amount of the member's total contributions plus interest.

Benefits are increased (escalated) annually in accordance with Chapter 411 .6 ol the Code of lowa

which states a standard formula for the increases'

The surviving spouse or dependents of an active member who dies due to a traumatic personal injury

incurred in the line of duty receives a $100,000 lump-sum payment.

Contributions - Member contribution rates are set by state statute. ln accordance with Chapter 411 of

the Code of lowa as modified by act of the 1994 General Assembly, to establish compliance with the

Federal Older Workers Benefit Protections Act, the contribution rate was 9A0% of earnable

compensation for the year ended June 30,2022'

78

92

Item 2.



Employer contribution rates are based upon an actuarially determined normal contribution rate and

set by state statute. The required actuarially determined contributions are calculated on the basis of

the entry age normal method as adopted by the Board of Trustees as permitted under Chapter 411 of

the Code of lowa. The normal contribution rate is provided by state statute to be the actuarial

liabilities of the plan less current plan assets, with such total divided by 1 percent of the actuarially

determined present value of prospective future compensation of all members, further reduced by

member contributions and state appropriations. Under the Code of lowa the employer's contribution

rate cannot be less than 17.00% of earnable compensation. The contribution rate was 26.18o/o for the

year ended June 30, 2022'

The City's contributions to MFPRSI for the year ended June 30, 2022, was $'1 ,546,941 '

lf approved by the state legislature, state appropriation may further reduce the employer's

contribution rate, but not below the minimum statutory contribution rate of 17 '00o/o of earnable

compensation. The State of lowa therefore is considered to be a nonemployer contributing entity in

accordance with the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 67 -
Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, (GASB 67).

There were no state appropriations to MFPRSI during the fiscal year ended June 30,2022.

Net pension Liabilities. pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows

of Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30,2022, the City reported a liability of $3,946,246 for its

proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,

2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an

actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the

City,s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all MFPRSI

participating employers. At June 30, 2021, the City's proportion was 1 .7572130/' which was a

decrease of .102716o/ofrom its proportion measured as of June 30,2020.

-79 -
93

Item 2.



For the year ended June 30, 2022, the city recognized pension expense of $1 1 1 ,136. At June 30'

2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

lnflows
of Resources

Differences between exPected and

actual exPerience

Changes of assumPtions

Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between

City contributions and proportionate share

of contributions

City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

$ 457,755 $

148,625

331,718

1,546,941

44,411

6,593,695

575,216

Total 322

$1,546,941 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City

contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net

pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2O23. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of

resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension

expense as follows:

Year
Ended

June 30, Total

1

2023

2024

2025
2026

2027

$ (1,175,865)

(1i295,093)

(1,627 ,917)
(2,154,369)

(21,e80)

5- 9,275,224)

-80-
94

Item 2.



Actuarial Assumptions The total pension liability in the June 30, 2021, acluarial valuation was

determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement:

Rate of lnflation

Salary increases

Large Cap

SmallCap
lnternational Large CaP

Emerging Markets

Global lnfrastructure

Private Non-Core Real Estate

Private Credit
Private EquitY
Core Plus Fixed lncome
Private Core Real Estate

3.0 percent

3.75 to 15.11 percent, including including inflation

Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

7.49 o/o

8.10 %
7.20 Yo

7.90 %
7.50 o/o

11.50 %
6.40 Yo

10.80 %
4.00 o/o

7.20 %

lnvestment rate of return 7.50 percent, net of pension plan investment expense'

including inflation

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2021valuation were based on the results of an

actuarial experience study for the 1O-year period ending June 30, 2020' There were no significant

changes of benefit terms'

Mortality rates as of June g0,2021, were based on RP 2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant table with

males set-forward zero years, females set-forward two years and disabled set-forward three years

(male only rates), with generational projection of future mortality improvement with 50% of Scale BB

beginning in 2017.

The investment policy and decisions are governed by the Board of Trustees. The longterm expected

rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block method in which

best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan

investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are

combined to produce the long{erm expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates

of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates

of geometric real rates of returh for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset

allocation as of December 31 ,201g (see the discuSSion of the pension plan's investment policy) are

summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

-81 -
95

Item 2.



Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5 percent' The

projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions will be made

atg.4o%of covered payroll and the City contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference

between actuarially determined rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the

pension plan,s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit

payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan

investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension

liability.

The following presents the City's proportionate share of

discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the City's

would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that

higher (8.5 percent) than the current rate.

1%
Decrease

6.5%)

the net pension liability calculated using the

proportionate share of the net pension liability

is 1-percent lower (6.50 percent) or 1-percent

Discount
Rate

(7.5o/o)

'lo/o

lncrease
(8.5%)

City's proPortionate share of

the net pension liabilitY: $ 11,677,769 $ 3,946,246 $ (2,470'471)

pension plan Fiduciary Net position - Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net

porition is available in the separately issued MFPRSI financial report which is available on MFPRSI's

website at wrrvw. mfPrsi.orq.

pavables to the pension plan - At June 30,2022, the city reported no payables to the defined benefit

pension plan for legally required employer contributions and legally required employee contributions

which had been withheld from employee wages but not yet remitted to MFPRSI'

G. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

plan Description - The City administers a single-employer benefit plan which provides medical,

prescription drug and life benefits for all fulltime active employees, retired and their eligible

dependants. Group insurance benefits are established under lowa Code Chapter 509A'13' No

assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No' 75'

The Plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report'

opEB Benefits - lndividuals who are employed by the city and are eligible to participate in the group

health plan are eligible to continue healthcare benfits upon retirement' Retirees under age 65 pay the

same premium for the medical, prescription drug and life benefits as active employees, which results

in an implicit rate subsidy and an OPEB liability'

Retired participants must be age 55 or older at retirement. At June 30,2022, the following employees

were covered bY the benefit terms:

lnactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments

Active emploYees
Total

17
196
213

82

96

Item 2.



Totat OpEB Liabitity - The City's total OPEB liability of $3,410,500 as of June 30, 2022 was

measured as of June g0,2022, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions - The total OpEB liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was

determined using the following actuarial assumptions and the entry age normal actuarial cost method,

applied to all periods included in the measurement.

Rate of lnflation
(effective June 30, 2022)

Rates of salary increase
(effective June 30, 2022)

Discount rate

(effective June 30, 2022)

Healthcare cost trend rate

(effective June 30, 2022)

3.00% percent per annum

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.69% which reflects

the index rate for 2O-year Fidelity government obligation with a AA bonds index as of the

measurement date.

Mortality rates are from the PUB 2010 annuitant distinct mortality table with MP2021 general

projection of future mortality improvement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an

actuarial experience study with dates corresponding to those listed above.

Chanqes in the TotalOPEB Liabilitv

TotalOPEB
Liabilitv

Total OPEB liabili$ beginning of year

Changes for year:

Service cost

lnterest

Difference between Expected & Actual Experience

Change in AssumPtions

Benefit payments

Net changes

3.50% per annum, including

inflation.

3.69% compounded annuallY,

including inflation.

7.58% initial rate decreasing by .35%

annually to an ultimate rate of 4.44o/o

$ 560,585

231,331

123,697

102,348

(190,724)

(416,737],

(150,085)

Total OPEB liability end of Year

-83-

$ 3,410,500

97

Item 2.



sensitivity of the citv's Total opEB Liabilitv to chanoes in the Discount Rate - The following presents

the total OPEB liabitity of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were

calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (2.69o/o) or 1% higher (4.69%) than the current

discount rate.

1o/o

Decrease
Discount

Rate
1o/o

lncrease

(2.69) (3. 69%) (4 .69%)

TotalOPEB liabilitY $ 3,653,862 $ 3,410,500 $ 3,187,403

Sensitivity of the Citv,s Totat OPEB Liability to Chanqes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates - The

foltowing presents the totat OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability

would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1o/o lower (6.58%) or 1%

higher (8.58%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates'

1o/o

Decrease

Healthcare
Cost Trend

Rate
1%

lncrease
(8.58%)(6.58%) (7 .58%)

TotalOPEB liabilitY $ 3,114,221 $ 3,410,500 $ 3,758,948

OPEB Expense and Deferred outflows of Resources Related to OPEB - For the year ended June 30,

2022,1he City recognized OPEB expense of $546,054. At June 30,2022, the City reported deferred

outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following resources:

Outflows Deferred lnflows
of Resourcesof Resources

Differences between exPected and

actual exPerience

Changes in assumPtions
Total

$ 768,939

536,007 170,648
$

-84 -

1,304.946 170.648

98

Item 2.



The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

OPEB will be recognized as OPEB expense as follows:

Year
Ended

June 30 Total

2023

2024

2025
2026

2027

Thereafter

$ 191,026

191,026

191,026

191,026
191,026

1 79,1 68

1.134.298

lnterfund Balances

lndividual interfund receivable and payable balances by fund type as of June 30,2022, were stated in

the fund financial statements as follows:

to/from other funds: Total

$

H

Due

Fund

lnterfund

Receivables

lnterfund

Payables

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Capital lmprovements Fund

Bond Fund
Total

The balances are due to the elimination of reporting negative cash

$ 245,711

18,654,534

$ 18, 900,245

$ 245,711

18,654,534

$ 18,900,245

-
Advances from/to other funds: Total

Fund

Advance to

Other Funds

Advance from

CIher Funds

HospitalFund

Capital lmprovements Fund

Sewer Fund

Total

$ 6,815,000

2,150,000

$

8,965,000

$ 8,965,000 $ 8,965,000

The amount payabte from the Sewer Fund to the Hospital Fund and the Capital lmprovements Fund

relates to internal financing for the large disinfection project at the city's water treatment facility and

other City Sewer Projects.

-85-
99

Item 2.



l. lnterfund Transactions
The following transfers represent individual fund interfund transfers as stated in the Fund Financial

Statements.
Transfer To Transfer From Amount

General Fund

Street Construction Fund

Street Repair Fund

Debt Service Fund

Capital lmprovements Fund

Bond Fund

Non-major Governmental Funds

Sewer Fund

Refuse Fund

Stormwater Fund

lnternal Service Funds

Street Construction Fund
Capital lmprovements Fund
Non-major Governmental Funds
Sewer Fund
Refuse Fund
Storm Water Fund

Sewer Fund

Storm Water Fund

Street Construction Fund

TIF Fund

Bond Fund

Sewer Fund

General Fund

General Fund
TIF Fund
Non-major Governmental Funds

TIF Fund

General Fund
TIF Fund

TIF Fund
Street Construction Fund

Non-major Governmental Funds

Street Construction
Sewer Fund

Street Construction Fund

General Fund

Total

$ 210,707
271,020

36,658
142,626
169,656

31 710

$ 862,377

$ 475,219

157 897

$ 633,1 16

$ 386,720

278,124

60,000

225 019

$ 949,863

$ 201,000

$ 1,381,673
71,477
10,000

$ 1,463 150

$ 729,3494,

$ t ,410,580
103 748

2, 514,328

$ 534,040
1,487,952

235,000
$ 2,256,992

$ 141,720
141,720

$ 283,440

$ 134,489

$ 900.000

$ 14 928J04

-86-
100

Item 2.



Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them

to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move debt service payments from

proprietary or special revenue funds to the debt service fund as debt service payments come due

and, (3) to move receipts from user fee generated funds to the generalfund for certain administrative

and custodial costs in the general fund.

Note 4. Other Notes

A. Due To/From ComPonent Unit

Amounts due from the component unit to the general fund at June 30,2022, were as follows:

Due from

1,202,140
175 581

$__t-T1-72L

This amount differs from the amount reported as due to primary government since the Electric Utility'

Gas Utility, and Communications Utility component units have a calendar year end of December 31,

2021.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of

assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the government

has established various funds to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss.

The City has established a Health lnsurance Reserve Fund for insuring benefits provided to City

employees and covered dependents, which is included in the internal service fund type. Health

benefits were self-insured up to a specific stop loss amount of $85,000 and an aggregate stop loss of

approximately $4,687,3721or 2022. Coverage from a private insurance company is maintained for

losses in excess of the stop loss amounts. All claims handling procedures are performed by a third-

party claims administrator. lncurred but not reported claims have been accrued as a liability based

upon the claims administrator's estimate.

All funds of the city participate in the program and make payments to the Health lnsurance Reserve

Fund based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior-year and current-year claims'

The City has also established reserve funds for insuring workers' compensation, liability, and long-

term disability claims which are included in the general fund type. Liability benefits were self-insured

up to a specific stop loss amount of $100,000 and an aggregate stop loss amount of $260,000. Long-

term disability benefits are self funded for the first six months, and the maximum benefit per individual

is $1g,000. Workers'compensation benefits were self-insured up to an aggregate stop loss amount

of $350,000 with no specific stop loss amount. Coverage from private insurers is maintained for

losses in excess of the stop loss amounts. An independent claims administrator performs all claims

handling procedures. Setiled claims for the above funds have not exceeded commercial coverage in

any of the last three fiscal Years'

Component Unit:

Electric utility
Gas utility
Total

$

B.

-87 -
101

Item 2.



Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the

loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred

but not reported (lBNRs). The result of the process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact

amount as it depends on many complex factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and

damage awards. Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of inflation'

recent claim setflement trends (including frequency and amount of pay-outs), and other economic and

social factors. The estimate of the claims liability also includes amounts for incremental claim

adjustment expenses related to specific claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of

whether allocated to specific claims.

Changes in reported liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are summarized as

follows:
Risk Management Fund

Health

lnsurance
Reserve Fund

Workers'
Compensation

Reserve

Liability

Reserve

Long-Term

Disability

Reserve Total

Glaim liabilities

June 30, 2020

Claims and changes

in estimates during

fiscalyear 2021

Claim payments

Claim liabilities

June 30, 2021

Claims and changes

in estimates during

liscalyear 2022

Claim payments

Claim liabilities

June30,2022

4,691,852
(4,606,852)

$ 323,ooo $ 283,584 $ $ $ 606,584

4,746,715

(4,774,588)
54,863

(167,736)

$ 408,000 $ 170,711 $ $ $ sza,zt t

4,148,492
(4,172,105)

4,040,185
(4,079,185)

108,307

(92,920)

$ 369,000 $ t86,098 $ $ 555,098

Commitments and Contingencies

Legal counsel has reported that as of June 30,2022, there were claims and losses that are on file

against the City. The City has the authority to levy additional taxes outside the regular limit to fund

any uninsured judgment against the City. However, it is estimated that all of these claims and losses

will be covered by insurance when exceeding stop loss limits, and the amounts prior to reaching

these limits would not materially affect future financial statements of the City.

Urban Renewal Development Agreements

The City has entered into various development agreements for urban renewal projects' The

agreements require the City to rebate portions of the incremental property tax paid by the developer

in exchange for infrastructure improvements, rehabilitation and development of commercial projects

by the develoPer.

$

c.

D

-88-
102

Item 2.



E.

The agreements are not general obligations of the City and, due to their nature, are not recorded as a

liability in the City's financial statements. However, the agreements are subject to the constitutional

debt limitation of the CitY.

Certain agreements include an annual appropriation clause and, accordingly, only the amount

payable in the succeeding year on the agreements is subject to the constitutional debt limitation. The

entire outstanding principal balance of agreements not including an annual appropriation clause is

subject to the constitutional debt limitation.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 77 defines tax abatements as a reduction

in tax revenues that results from an agreement between one or more governments and an individual

or entity in which (a) one or more governments promise to forgo tax revenues to which they are

othenvise entiiled and (b) the individual or entity promises to take a specific action after the

agreement has been entered into that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the

governments or the citizens of those governments.

Citv Tax Abatements

The City provides tax abatements, as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board, for

urban renewal.and economic development projects, with tax increment financing as provided for in

Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of lowa. For these types of projects, the City enters into

agreements with developers which require the City, after developers meet the terms of the

agreements, to rebate a portion of the property tax paid by the developers, to pay the developers an

economic development grant or to pay the developers a predetermined dollar amount' No other

commitments were made by the City as part of these agreements.

For the year ended June 30, 2022,the City rebated $967,076 of property tax under the urban renewal

and economic development projects.

Restatement

The following pronouncement was implemented effective July 1,2021

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. This standard establishes a single model for lease accounting

based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset'

The Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously

were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources

based on the payment provisions of the contract. Beginning net position for Government Activities

and the fund balance for the Hospital Fund and the Capital lmprovements Fund were restated to

retroactively adopt the provisions of GASB Statement No. 87 as follows:

Governmental
Activities

Hospital
Fund

Capital
lmprovements

Fund

Net position at June 30,2021, as previously reported

Add lease receivable under GASB Statement No. 87

at July 1,2021
Less deferred inflows of resources under GASB

Statement No. 87 at JulY 1,2021
Net position at Juy 1,2021, as restated

$327 223,629 $18,829,721 $28,417,695

1,305,965 149,132 1,156,833

(1,305,965) (1 49.132\ (1,156,833)

-89-

$327, 223.629 $18,829,721 $28,417,695

103

Item 2.



F Subsequent Events

On Juty 18,2022 the City sold general obligation capital loan notes in the amount of $3,860,000. The

notes were sold at an interest rate of 2.8o/o and will mature in 2035. The proceeds will be used to

fund various projects including street improvements, river improvements, and equipment.

New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Standards

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following statements not yet

implemented by the City. The Statements, which may impact the City are as follows:

Statement No. 91 , Conduit Debt Obligafions, will be effective for fiscal year June 30,2023. The primary

objectives of this statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers

and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements

associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures.

Statement No. 94, Pubtic-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements,

will be effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. The primary objective of this statement is to

improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership

arrangements (PPPs).

Statement No. 96, Subscription -Based lnformation Technology Agreements, will be effective for the fiscal

year ended June 30, 2023. This statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for

subscription-b3sed information technology arrangements (SBlTAs) for government end users

(governments).

GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, issued April2022, the requirements are effective for the City at

issuance of the Statement, and with fiscal years ending after June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2024,

respectively. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial

reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that

have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2)

accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees.

GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - an amendment of GASB

Statement No. 62, issued June 2022 will be effective for the City beginning with its fiscal year ending after

June 30, 2024. The objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting

requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable,

relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability.

GASB Statement No. 101 , Compensated Absences, issued June 2022 will be effective for the City

beginning with its fiscal year ending after June 30,2025. The objective of this Statement is to better meet

the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance

for compensated absences.

The City's management has not yet determined the effect these statements will have on the City's financial

statements.

G

-90-
104

Item 2.



GitY of Cedar Falls, lowa

Budgetary Gomparison Schedule - Function Budget
Forthe Year Ended June 30'2022

Budgeted Amounts

inal Final

Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments
Other City taxes
Licenses and Permits
Use of money and ProPertY
lntergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safetY
Public works
Health and social services
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government

Debt service
Capital projects
Business-type

Total exPenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

lssuance of debt
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

See notes to the required supplementary information'

$ 66,6 59,740 $ 69 ,240

$ 29,076,272
5,709,508
1,036,000
1,442,800

14,460,070
14,166,550

767,540

$ 29,076,272
6,430,758
'1,036,000

1,442,800
15,411,760
14,407,400
1,619,250

$ 13,199,520
21,398,500

45,000
7,985,710
3,127,200
5,469,310
1,062,100

24,751,410
11,377,760

$ 13,234,520
22,471,000

45,000
8,258,840
3,912,340
5,515,940
1,062,100

28,212,410
11,718,190

$ 88,4 16,510 $ e4,430,340

$ (21,757,770\ $ (25,006, 100)

$ 2,133,000 $

13,336,350
(13,336,350)

2,733,000
13,336,350

(13,336,350)

$2, 133,000 $ 2,733,000

$ (19,624,770)

87,695,662

$ (22,273,100)

87,695,662

-91 -

$ 68,070 ,8e2 $ 65,422,562

105

Item 2.



Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
Neg ative)

$ 29,103,855
8,615,81 1

1,012,414
1,073,595

15,929,225
14,267,681
2,350,447

27,583
2,185,053

(23,586)
(369,205)
517,465

(139,719)
731,197

$

$ 72,353,028 $2, 928,788

$ 12,890,191
16,455,069

25,776
7,063,896
3,319,082
4,933,496
1,062,100

14,100,931
9,749,934

344,329
6,015,931

19,224
1,194,944

593,258
582,444

14,111,479
1,968,256

$

$ 6e,600,475 $ 24,829 ,865

$ 2,752,553 $ 27, 758,653

$
15,976,914

(15,976,914)

$ (2,733,000)
2,640,564

(2,640,564)

$ $ (2,733,000)

$ 2,752,553

103,020,762

$ 25,025,653

15,325J00

$ 105,773,315

-

$ 40,350,753

-92- 106

Item 2.



Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa

Notes to Required Supplementary lnformation - Budgetary Reporting

For the Year ended June 30,2022

Note A - Budgetary RePorting

The budgetary comparison is presented as Required Supplementary lnformation in

accordance with Government Accounting Statement No. 41 for governments with significant

budgetary perspective differences resulting from not being able to present budgetary

comlarisons forthe General Fund and each major Special Revenue Fund'

ln accordance with the Code of lowa, the City Council annually adopts a budget on the cash

basis plus recorded accounts payable following required public notice and hearing for all

funds. The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily

prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized on the cash basis budget and

appropriations laPse at Year end.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon 9 major classes of disbursements known

as functions, not by flnd or fund type. These 9 functions are: public safety, public works,

health and social jervices, culture and recreation, community and economic development,

general government, debt service, capital projects, and business-type activities' Function

disbursements required to be budgeted include disbursements for the General Fund, Special

Revenue Funds, debt Service Fund, Capital Project Funds, and Enterprise Funds. Although

the budget document presents function disbursements by fund, the legal level of control is at

the aggregated function level, not by fund. During the year, one budget amendment

increased budgeted disbursements by $6,013,830. This budget amendment is reflected in

the final budget amounts.

-93-
107

Item 2.



Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa

Budgetary ComParison Schedule'
Program Budget

Notes to RSI

Note B - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary sources and uses of

funds and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures for the GAAP General

Fund and Maior Special Revenue Funds

Function
Budget

Sources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total revenues" from the budgetary

comparison schedule - function budget

Adjustments:
TheCitybudgetsforallreceiptsonthecashbasis,ratherthan

the modified accrual or accrual basis

TotalrevenuesforthefunctionbudgetonaGAAPbasisof
accounting

Reclassifications:
TheCityreportsSourcesoffundsinthefunctionbudgetas

revenues in other major and nonmajor funds for GAAP reporting

Debt Service Fund
CaPital lmProvements Fund

Bond caPital Projects Fund

Nonmajor governmental GAAP funds

Business-tYPe enterPrise funds

Total revenues for general fund and major special revenue funds

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds:

General Fund
Hospital Fund
TIF Fund
Street Construction Fund

Street RePair Fund

Total revenues for general fund and major special revenue funds

$ 72,353,028

(2,972,496)

$ 69,380,532

(679,459)
(1,689,675)
(1,004,440)
(5,389,861)

(12,036,036)

$ 48,581,061
---

$ 27,955,709
436,298

6,734,247
5,474,613
7,980,194

-94-

$ 48,581,061

108

Item 2.



Uses

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures" from the budgetary

comparison schedule - function budget

Adjustments
The city budgets for expenditures on the cash basis, rather than on the

modified accrual or accrual basis on all items except payments to suppliers

The City does not budget for depreciation

Total uses for the function budget on a GAAp basis of accounting

Reclassifications:
The city reports uses of funds in the function budget as expenditures in

othermajorandnonmajorfundsforGAAPreporting:
Debt Service Fund
CaPital lmProvements Fund

Bond caPital Projects Fund

Nonmajor governmental GAAP funds

Business-tYPe enterPrise funds

Total expenditures for general fund and major special revenue funds

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues' expenditures'

andchangesinfundbalances-governmentalfunds:
General Fund
Hospital Fund
TIF Fund
Street Construction Fund

Street RePair Fund

Total expenditures for general fund and major special revenue funds

Function
Budget

$ 69,600,475

(3,190,044)

$ 66,410,431

(1 ,062,100)
(2,381,968)

(10,490,614)
(6,077,212)
(9,653,363)

$36 745 174

$ 24,580,622
12,776

3,135,690
9,016,086

$ 36,745,174

-95- 109

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa

Schedule of the Gity's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

lowa Public Employees' Retirement System
June 30, 2022

2022" 2021

City's proportion of the net pension

liability

City's proportionate share of the net

pension liabilitY

City's covered PaYroll

City's proportionate share of the net

pension liabilitY as a Percentage
of its covered PaYroll

Plan fiduciary net Position as a
percentage of the total Pension
liability

2020

(0.0555200) % 0.1318840 % 0.1280748 %

$ 191,670 $ 9,264,499 $ 7,416,373

$ 11,095,706 $ 10,465,436 $ 9,750'115

1.73 0/o 88.52 % 76.06 %

100.81 % 82.90 o/o 85.45 o/o

*The Plan has three groups, regular, sheriff, and protective. ln total, the Plan reported a net pension asset

"i 
j"."lo, zozr. Ho*"uer, the City only participates in the regular group' which reported a net pension

liability at June 30,2021.

ln accordance with GASB statement No. 68, the amounts presented for each

fiscalyearweredeterminedasofJune30oftheprecedingfiscalyear.

See accompanying independent auditor's report'

Note: GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table' However'

until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City will present information for those years for which information

is available.

-96-
110

Item 2.



2019 2018 2017 2016 2A15

0.1259677 o/o 0.1246758 % 0'1279990 o/o 0'1337248 % 0'1421628 o/o

$ 7,971,544 $ 8,304,985 $ 8,055,379 $ 6,606,653 $ 5'638'043

$ 9,473,601 $ 9,302,',153 $ 9'203,649 $ 9,218,654 $ 9'346'040

84.14 % 89.28 0/o 87.52 % 71.67 % 60.33 %

83.62 o/o 82.21 % 81.82 o/o 85.19 % 87.61%

-97 - 111

Item 2.



Statutorily required contri bution

Contributions in relation to the
statutorily req u ired contri bution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa

Schedule of GitY Gontributions

lowa Public Employees' Retirement System
Last 10 FiscalYears

2022 2021 2020 2019

$ 1,072,135 $ 1,047,351 $ 988,265 $ 920,276

1,072,135 1,047,351 988,265 (920,276)

$ $ $ $

$ 11,357,362 $ 11,095,706 $ 10,465,436 $ 9,750,115

9.44% 9.44% 9.44% 9.44%

City's covered PaYroll

Contributions as a Percentage of
covered PaYroll

See accompanying independent auditor's report'

-98- 112

Item 2.



2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

$846,190$831,947$821,928$821,440$834,065$ 823'374

(846,190)(831,947)(821,928)(821,440)(834,065)(823,374)

$ $ $ $ $

$9,473,601$9,302,',153$9,203,649$9,218,654$9,346,040$9,490'561

8.93% 8.94% 8.93% 8.91o/o 8.92% 8.68Yo

-99- 113

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa

Notes to Required Supplementary lnformation - Pension Liability

Year ended June 30,2022

lowa Public Employees' Retirement System:

Chanoes of benefit terms:
There were no significant changes of benefit terms'

Chanqes of assumPtions:
The 2018 valuation iml:temented the following refinements as a result of a demographic assumption study

dated June 28,2018:
o Changed mortality assumptions to the RP-2O14 mortality tables with mortality improvements

modeled using Scale MP-2017 '
o Adjusted retirement rates'
o Lowered disabilitY rates.
o Adjusted the probability of a vested Regular member electing to receive a deferred benefit'

. Adjusted the merit component of the salary increase assumption.

The 2017 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of an experience study dated March

24,2017'.

Decreased the inflation assumption from 3'00% to 2'60%'

Decreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from3'75o/o to 3'50% per year

Decreased the discount rate from 7 '50% to 7 '00%'

Decreased the wage growth assumption from 4.00o/o to 3.25o/o'

Decreased the payroli growth assumption from 4.00o/o to 3.25%.

rhe 2a4valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a quadrennial experience study:

. Decreased the inflation assumption from 3.25 percent to 3'00 percent'

. Decreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from 4.00 percent to 3'75 percent per

year.
. Adlusted male mortal1y rates for retirees in the Regular membership group'

o Reduced retirement raies for sheriffs and deputies between the ages of 55 and 64.

. Moved from an open 30 year amortization period 
-to 

a closed 30 year amortization period for the

UAL beginning J;ne eo ,2olq. racn year ihereafter, changes in the UAL from plan experience will

be amoitized on a separate closed 20 year period'

-r.00 - 114

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa

schedule of the Gity's Proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa
June 30,2022

2422 2021

City's proportion of the net pension

liability

City's proportionate share of the net

pension liabilitY

City's covered PaYroll

City's proportionate share of the net

pension liabilitY as a Percentage
of its covered PaYroll

Plan fiduciary net Position as a
percentage of the total Pension
liability

2020

1.757213 o/" 1.859929 % 1.864869 %

$ 3,946,246 $ 14,834,799 $ 12,232,171

$ 5,708,659 $ 5,907,701 $ 5,646,572

69.13 o/o 251.05 o/o 216.63 0/o

93.62 o/o 76.47 o/o 79.94 o/o

ln accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, the amounts presented for each

fiscal year were determined as of June 30 of the preceding fiscal year'

See accompanying independent auditor's report'

Note: GASB Statement No. 6g requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However,

until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the city will present information for those years for which information is

available.

-101-
115

Item 2.



2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

1.778180 Yo 1.671545 % 1.727939 % 1'727077 Yo 1'782771 oA

$ 10,587,346 $ 9,803,195 $ 10,804,128 $ 8,114,055 $ 6'462',513

$ 5,168,468 $ 4,734,184 $ 4,682,488 $ 4,529,187 $ 4'552',662

204.84 o/o 207.07 0 230.73 0/o 179.15 0/o 141.95 %

81.07 o/o 80.6 % 78.2 o/o 83.A4 o/o 86.27 o/o

-r02- 116

Item 2.



Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa

Schedule of GitY Gontributions

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa
Last 10 Fiscal Years

Statutori ly requi red contri bution

Contributions in relation to the
statutorily required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

City's covered PaYroll

2022 2021 2020 2019

$ 1,546,941 $ 1,445,236 $ 1,442,048 $ 1,469,237

1,546,941 1,445,236 1,442,048 (1,469,237)

$ $ $$

Contributions as a Percentage of
covered payroll

See accompanying independent auditor's report'

$ 5,908,861 $ 5,708,659 $ 5,907,701 $ 5,646,572

26.18% 25.32% 24.41% 26.02o/o

-1 03- 117

Item 2.



2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

$ 1,327,264 $ 1,227,100 $ 1,300,356 $ 1,377,326 $ 1,371,261 $ 1j44,556

(1,327,264) (1 ,227,100) (1,300,356) (1 ,377,326) (1,371,261) (1,144,556)

$ $ $ $ $ $

$ 5,168,469 $ 4,734,184 $ 4,682,488 $ 4,529,187 $ 4,552,662 $ 4,381,915

25.680/o 25.92% 27.77% 30.41% 30-12o/o 26'12%

-r04- 118

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa

Notes to Required Supplementary lnformation - Pension Liability

Year ended June 30,2022

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa

Chanqes of be;nefit terms:

There were no significant changes of benefit terms'

Chanqes of assumPtions:

The 201g valuation changed postretirement mortality rates to the RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy

Annuitant table with matei sei-forward zero years, females set-forward two years and disabled

set-forward three years (male only rates), wiih generational projection of future mortality

improvement with 5O% of scale BB.

The 2017 valuation added five years projection of future mortality improvement with Scale BB'

The 2016 valuation changed postretirement mortality rates to the RP-2000 Blue Collar Combined

Healthy Mortality Table with males set-back two years, females set-fonnrard one year and

disabled individuals set-forward one year (male only rates), with no projection of future mortality

improvement.

The 2015 valuation phased in the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table for postretirement

mortality. This resulted in a weighting of 1112 of the 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table and

11112 of the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table'

the 201 valuation phased in the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table for postretirement

mortality. This resulted in a weighting of 2112 of the 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table and

10t12 of the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table'

-1 05- 119

Item 2.



GitY of Cedar Falls, lowa

Schedule of Changes in the GitY's

Total OPEB Liability, Related Ratios and Notes

June 30, 2022

2022

$ 231,331
123,697

$Service Cost
lnterest cost
Difference between exPected and

actual exPeriences
Ghanges in assumPtions
Benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB liabilitY

Total OPEB liability beginning of year

Total OPEB liabilitY end of Year

Covered-emPloYee PaYroll

Total OPEB liability as a percentage

of covered-emPloYee PaYroll

Yearended June30,2022
Yearended June3O,2O21
Year ended June 30, 2020

Year ended June 30, 2019
Year ended June 30, 2018

2021 2020

208,856
79,347

129,747
108,917

275,367
358,691

133.483)

$

102,348
(1e0,724)

16.737i (2 18.250)(4

$ (150,085)

3,560,585

69.953 $ 739.239

3,490,632 2,751,393

$

$ 3.410,500 $s $ 632

15,191,208 14,878,294 14,375,163

22.45o/o 23.93o/o 24.28%

Note" to Schedutes of Chanoes in the GAAP Citv's Total OPEB Liabilitv and Related Ratios

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB statement 75

Changes in benefit terms:

There were no significant changes in benefit terms'

Changes in assumPtions:

ThemortalitytablewaschangedtothePUB.20l0generaltable.

The mortality improvement scale was updated to the MP-2021'

The Getzen trend modelwas implemented'

changes in assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount rate each

perioj. The following are the discount rates used in each period'

3.69%
221%
2.210/o

3.87o/o
3.87%

Note: GASB Statement No. 75 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table' However, until a

full 1o-year trend is compiled, the City will present information for those years for which information is available'

-1 06- 120

Item 2.



2019 18

$ 125,359
105,512

161

55,384
61,468

924,312
537,008

(41.

$ 1.437.086

1,244,513

$ 2,681 .599

13,401,925

20.01%

$

$ 69,794

2,681,599

$ 2,751,393=
13,870,992

19.84%

-r07 - 121

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30,2022
(Page 1 of 2l

Community
Development

Fund

Housing
Assistance

Fund

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts:

Property taxes
Other city taxes
Accrued interest
Special assessment

Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventories

Total assets

$ 511,060

221,503
364,909

$ 364,909 $ 732,563

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURGES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts PaYable
Grant Proceeds Received in Advance
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

Total Iiabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Succeeding Year ProPertY taxes
Other

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

2,078

$ 249,364

$
48 124

67,421 730,167

$ 67,421 $ 730,167

$

$

$ 27,861 $ 318

221 503
$ 2.396

$ 48,124 $

$

$ $

-1 08-

364,909 $ 732,563

-
122

Item 2.



Speci al Revenue

Parking
Fund

Police
Retirement

Fire
Retirement

Visitor &
Tourism

$ 564,222 $ 3,396,878 $ 3,223,941 $ 808,041

833,406 311,378

1,695 1,666
202,191

540

6 621 27

525

171

$ 571.368 $ 4,231,979 $ 3,536,985 $ 1, 037.943

$ 8,413 $ 1,884 $ 1,431 $ 38,533

5,114 15,558

13 527 $ 1,884 $ 1,431 $ 54,091

$ $ 828,489 $ 308,015 $

$ $ 828.489 308 015 $

$ 6,621 $

551,220

$ $ 27,171
956,6813,401,606 3,227,539

$557.941 $ 3,401,606 $ 3.227.539 $ 983,852

31.979 $ 3, $ 1,037,943

(continued)
$ 571.368_- $ 4,2

-109-

536,985

123

Item 2.



City of Gedar Falls, lowa

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30,2022
(Page 2 of 2l

Special Revenue
Greenwood
Perpetual

Care

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts:

Property taxes
Other city taxes
Accrued interest
Special assessment

Due from other funds
Due from other governments
lnventories

Total assets

$ 254,467 $ 169,598 $ 53,688

$ 254,467 169.598 $ 53,688$

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts PaYable
Grant Proceeds Received in Advance

Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Succeeding Year ProPertY taxes

Other
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Totalfund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

254,467 169,598 53,688

169.598 $ 53.688

$ 254.467 $

Fairview
Perpetual

Care

Hillside
Perpetual

Care

$

$

$

$

$ $ $

$2 $

-110 -

169.598 $ 53,6q8

124

Item 2.



(continued)

Caoital Proiects

Washington
Park

Renovation
FEMA
Fund

Sidewalk
Assessment

Coronovirus
Relief

Economic
Development

Capital Total

$ 33,602 $ 4,564,498 $ $ 3,254,370 $ 8,803,260 $ 25,637,625

29 3,980 5,874 6,482
50,276

24,208

$ 33,631 $ 4.568.478 $ 50,276 $ 3,260,244 $ 8,833,95q

1,144,784
202,191
20,791
50,276

245,711
364,909
33 792

27 700 079

$ $ 1,050 $ $ $ 196,468 $ 275,958
3,254,370

22,750
245 711

3 798 789

$ 1,136,504

$ $

3,254,370

24.208
1.050 $ 24.208 $ 3,254,370 $ 196,468

$ $ $$ $
48.358 96 .482

$ 48,358 $ $ $ 1,232.986
$ $

$ $ $ $

33,631 4,567,428 5,874 8,637,482
(22 .290)

$ 33,631 $ 4.567.428 $ Q2 $ 5,874 $ 8,637,482

$ 50,276 $ 3,260,244

$ $ 33,792
8,861 ,167

551,220
13,244,415

(22,290\
$ 22,668,304

$ 33,631 $ 4.568,478

-t- t- 1-

$8 $ 27. 700.079

125

Item 2.



CitY of Cedar Falls, lowa

Gombining statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Ghanges in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30,2022

(Page 1 of 2l

CommunitY
Development

Fund

Housing
Assistance

Fund

Parking
Fund

Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments
Other city taxes
Use of money and ProPertY
lntergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Utility contribution in lieu to taxes

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safetY
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development

Capital Projects

Total exPenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) exPenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning
lncrease (decrease) in reserve for inventories

Fund balances, ending

$ $ $

840,708

3,000

6,425
1,455,714

5,283

2,139

234,457

$ 843.708 $ 1, 467,422 $ 236,596

$ $

588,686 1,355,551

$
281,368

588 686 $ 1,355.551 $ 281,368

$ 255.022 $ 111 871$( 44.772\

$ $ $

(235,000) (28,410)

$ e35.000) $ $( 28,410\

$ 20,022
47,399

$ 111,871
618,296

$ (73,182)
632,313

(1,290)

$ 67.421 $

-7r2-

730.167 $ 557,841

126

Item 2.



Special Revenue

Police
Retirement

Fire
Retirement

Visitor &
Tourism

$ 1,010,702 $ 692,150 $

42,922 38,777
699,137

3,298

51,852

$ 1.053,624 $ 730.927 $ 754.287

$ 916,056 $ 716,375 $

628,794

$ 916,056 $ 716,375 $ 628.794

$ 137 568 $ 14.552 $ 125.493

$ $ 110,579
(18,248)

$

$

$ 137,568
3,264,038

14,552
3,212,987

92 331

217,824
773,017

(6,989)

$

$ $

983.8523 227$ 3,401,606

-113-

539 $

(continued)

127

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Gombining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Ghanges in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30,2022

(Page 2 of 2l

Special Revenue
Greenwood
Perpetual

Care

Fairview
Perpetual

Care

Hillside
Perpetual

Care

Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments
Other city taxes
Use of money and ProPertY
lntergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Utility contribution in lieu of taxes

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development

Capital projects

Total exPenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) exPenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning
lncrease (decrease) in reserve for inventories

Fund balances, ending

$ 4,775 $ 6,435

$

$ $ $

4,775 6,435 3,365

$ 3.365

$ $

$ $ $

$

775 $ 6,435 3 365

$$

$ $ $

$ 4,775
249,692

$ 6,435
1 63,1 63

$ 3,365
50,323

$

-1"L4-

254.467 $ 169,598 $ 53,688:

128

Item 2.



(continued)

Capi tal Proiects

Washington
Park

Renovation

FEMA
Fund

Sidewalk
Assessment

Coronovirus
Relief

Economic
Development

Capital Total

$ $ 22,121 $

17,818
54,371

54,750 25,556

$ 47.677 $ 74 $ 108 .106 $

$ 1,724,973
699,137
195,485

2,350,793
14,575

234,457
140,441
30 000

5.389.861

$$

126 5,874 78,106

30 000

$ 126 $ 126.939

$
$$$ $

1,512,576

$ 1,632,431
281,368
628,794

1,944,237
1,590,38226,721 51,085

$ $ 1,512,576 $ 6.077.212
$ $ 26,721 $ 51,085

$ 126 100.218 $ (3 .408) $ 5.874 $ (1,404,470\ $(6 87.351)
$

$ $ $ $ $ 2,4os,T4e_ , 
rZl1,,Z?2,

$ $ $2 749 $ 2.232.670
$ $

$ 126 $
33,505

100,218
4,467,210

$ (3,408) $
(18,882)

5,874 $ 999,279 $
7,638,203

1,545,319
21,131,264

(8,279)

.2e0) $$ 33,631 $ 4.567,428 $Q2

-115-

4 $ 8.637.482 $ 22.668.304

129

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa

Gombining Statement of Net Position
lnternal Service Funds

June 30,2022

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts:

Accrued interest
Other

lnventories
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Buildings
Machinery and equiPment
Accum u lated dePreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related deferred outflows

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences due
within one Year

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences after

one year
Net pension liabilitY

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related deferred inflows

NET POSITION
Investment in caPital assets
Unrestricted

Total net Position

Health Health lnsurance
lnsurance Severance Pavroll

$ 2,988,779 $ 341,137 $ 2,751,636

2,427
120,553

2,919

$ 3,111,759 $ 341,137 $ 2,754,555

$ $ $

$ $
3 111 75e $ 341.137 $ 2,754,555

$ $ $

$ '166,831

369,000
$ 341,137 $ 3,835

$ 535.831 341 137 $ 3.835

$ $ $

$-
$ 535,831

$ $

$

$ 341,137

$

$

3 835

$

$
2,750,720

3 2J5oJ2o_

$
2 575 928
2 575

-116-

928 $

130

Item 2.



Risk
Man nt Total

$ 2,806,742 $ 1,368,558 $ 3,197,819 $ 13,454,671

Data
Processino

Vehicle
Maintenance

2 835 321

2,439
26,140

1,226

1 577
371 361

2,830
1,878

27 580
3 230 107

90,302
6,399,315

11,841
148,571
29 157

13 644 0

90,302
7,804,780

1

$ $ $ $

1,405,465

$2,835,321 $ 1.

$

$ 28,423 $
196,098

36,681
27,950

22 743

$ 214.521 $ 87,374

$62 8e4 $ 57,660 $ 120,554

$ 725,412
610,158

(4, 203.187\ 6,418.141\

$2, 286.430 $ 2.476,941
5,516,537 $ 16, 121.181

148,505
27,110

n.214,954)

$ $ 190,51 1

561.872 $

$

$

$

$ 16,971 $
.423\

15 001 37 744

$ 1e0 616 $ 1, 373,314

$ 16,971
35.798) 4 221

$

$ 214,521
s e1.4521
$ 65,922

$ (gs,zggt
$ 154,818

57
$ 1,316.064

477 10

$ 2,476,941
11,971,320

-$ 14448,261_

$ 248,993 $ 228,417

$ 190,511 $ 2,286,430
1 119 340 2, 904.532

$5, 190.962

$
2 620 800
2 620 800 $ 1,309,851

-t1"7 - 131

Item 2.



GitY of Gedar Falls, lowa

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expensesn

and Changes in Fund Net Position
lnternal Service Funds

Forthe Year Ended June 30,2022

Health
lnsurance

Health lnsurance
Severance Pavroll

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other

Total oPerating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Contractual services
Supplies and equiPment
Depreciation

Total oPerating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Use of money and ProPertY
Gain on disPosal of caPital assets

Loss on disPosal of equiPment

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

lncome (loss) before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Transfers, net

Change in net Position

Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

$ 3,010,239 $ $ 431,969

$ 3.010,239 $ $ 431,969

$ $ $ 359,818

4,243,113

$ 4.243.113 $ $ 359,818

$ (1,232.874\ $ $72 151

$ 12,262$ 9,468 $

$ 9,468 $ $ 12,262

$ fi $ $ 84,413

$ 9oo,0oo $ $

$ 900.000 $ $

$ (323,406)

2,899,334

$ $ 84,413

2,666,307

$ 2.575,928 $2.750.720

-118- 132

Item 2.



Man ement
Data

Processino
Vehicle

Maintenance
Risk

Total

$ 597,294
64,457

$ 1,186,660
13,897

$ 2,098,870
69,649

$ 7,325,032
148,003

$ 661.751 $ 1.200,557 $2, 168.519 $ 7.473,035

$ $ $

1,076,304
493,795
398,112
200,549
112,318

481,169
202,198

1,059,491
320,577

$ 1,334,782
5,919,727
1,260,040

432,895

$ 1, 076.304 $ 1.204,774 $2, 063,435 $ 8,947,444

414 553 $ @.217\ $ 105.084 $ (1,474.409)

$ 10,281 $ 5,269 $ 12,130 $
45,884

(45,466)

49,410
45,884

(45,466)

$ 10.281 $ $ 12.548 49 828

$ (1,424,581\

$ 90o,0oo

5,269

$( 404.272\ $ o52 $ 117.6321

$ $ $

$ $ $ 900,000$

$ (404,272\ $

3,025,072

1,052

1,308,799

117,632

5,073,330

$ (524,581)

14,972,842

$

$2, 620.800 $ 1.309,851 s 5.190.962 $ 14,448,261

-r_ 19 - 133

Item 2.



Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa
Combining Statement of Gash Flows

lnternal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30,2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from interfund services
Payments to suPPliers
Payments to emPloYees

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers from other funds
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Net acquisition of property and equipment

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

lnterest received on investments

Net increase (decrease) in cash

CASH BALANCES, Beginning
CASH BALANCES, Ending

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided

by (used for) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash

provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation
(lncrease) decrease in:

Other receivables
lnventories

lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued and

other liabilities
(lncrease) decrease in deferred outflows of resources

lncrease (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

$ 900.000 $
900 000 $

$ $

o 759 $

$ (307,780) $ (20,430)

3,296,559 361 567

$2, 988,779 341 137

$ (1,232,874) $

(44,196)

59,531 (20,430)

$ (1,217,539) $ e0.430\

Health
lnsurance

Health lnsurance
Severance

$ 2,966,044 $
(4,183,583)

44,901

(65.331)

$ (1,217,539) $ Q0,430 )

-L2A- 134

Item 2.



Risk
Manaqement

Data
Processinq

Vehicle
Maintenance TotalPavroll

$ 431,969 $ 597,294
(996,238)

$ 1,186,660
(598,865)

$ 2,098,870
(1,203,764)

39 690

$ 7,325,738
(6,982,450)

9.019)(548 ,015) (1,50
983)

,944\ $ 39.780 $ 355,416 $ (. 165.731 )75 e86 $ (398

$ $ $ $ 900,000
$

$ $ $ $ 900,000
$

$ $ 36 118 $( 357.359) $ (393,477)

10.075 $ 024 $ 11.584 $ 48,0755

8,686 $ $ (61 1,133)

$ 11"633 $

$ 87,619

2,664,017
$ 2,751,636

-

$ (388,869) $

3.195,61 1 1

9,641

3.188,178 14,065.804

$ 2.806,742
359 872

$ 1,368,558 $ 3,197,819 $ 13, 454.671

$ 72,151 $ (414,553) $ (4,217) $ 105,084 $ (1,474,409)

112,318 320,577 432,895

(3,917)
820

(334,773)
23,377

1,246
26,468

(352,775)
35,088

(46,867)
27,288

(625,086)
58,465

461,983
$ (1,165,731)

-

3,835 19,526

255 219 728

$ (398,944)-- 39 780 $ 355,416$ 75.986

.I2I_ 135

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa

Gapital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

GomParative Schedules bY Source*
June 30,2022 and 2021

2022

Governmental fund caPital assets:

Land

Land improvements

Buildings

Machinery and equiPment

lnfrastructure

Construction in Progress

Total governmental funds capital assets

lnvestments in governmental funds capital assets by source:

General fund

Special revenue funds

Capital projects funds

lnternal service

Donations

Total governmental funds capital assets

$ 43,116,319

21,100,815

36,846,487

14,571,997

273,462,096

23,380,432

$ 412,

2021

$ 43,116,319

21,077 ,715
36,846,487

13,927,274

268,834,004

12,137,611

478,146 $ 395,939,410

$ 23,574,227

89,571,846

254,090,362

238,913

45,002,798

$ 23,481,862

85,701,611

241,581,300

238,913

44,935,724

*

$ 412,478,146 $ 395,939,410

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmentalfunds.

Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the

above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as

governmental activities in the statement of net position.

-122- 136

Item 2.



City of Gedar Falls, lowa

Gapital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule by Function and Activity *

June 30,2022

Land
Land

lmprovements Buildinqs
Function and ActivitY

$ 12,500

751,051

151,494

2,923,734

39,223,639

53,901

2,824,987

89,596

12,055,727

6,130,505

$ 10,521,665

1,582,334

5,873,537

14,598,975

11,500

4,258,476

$Public Safety

Public Works

Health & Social Services

Culture and Recreation

Community and Economic Development

General Government

*

$ 43, 1 16,319 _ $ 21 ,1 00,81 5- _$_?3,846,48?_

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances retated to governmental funds.

Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the

above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as

governmental activities in the statement of net position.

-r23- 137

Item 2.



Machinery
and

Equipment

Construction
in

lnfrastructure Total

$ 2,566,525

6,436,676

$ $ $ 13,100,690

297,257,148

6,114,627

41,769,983

46,035,321

8,200,377

3,920,869

108,477

1,539,450

266,638,407 19,023,693

6,823,689 1,446,989

561,200

2,348,550

$ 14,57 1.997 $ 273,462,096 $ 23, 380,432 $ 412,478,146

-L24- 138

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa

Gapital Assets used in the operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule of Ghanges by Function and Activity *

Forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2022

Governmental
Funds Capital

Assets
J 1 2021 Additions Deletions

Public Safety

Public Works

Health & Social Services

Culture and Recreation

Community and

Economic DeveloPment

General Government

$ 13,092,422

283,518,320

6,114,627

41,233,810

46,035,321

5,944,910

$ 8,268

17,263,934

552,527

2,255,467

$

3,525,106

16,354

Governmental
Funds CaPital

Assets
June 30 2022

$ 13,100,690

297,257,148

6,114,627

41,769,983

46,035,321

8,200,377

$ 395,939,410 $ 20,080.196 $ 541,460 $ 412.478,146

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds'

Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the

above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as

governmental activities in the statement of net position'

-r25- 139

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa
Statistical Section

This part of the City's annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information

as a context for un-derstanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures,

and required supplementary information says about the city's overall financial health'

Gontents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the city's

financial performance and well-being have changed over time'

Revenue CapacitY
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the city's most significant

local revenue source, the property tax'

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the city's

current levels of outstanding debt and the city's ability to issue additional debt in the futurt

Operating lnformation
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand

how the information in the city's financial report relates to the services the city provides

and the activities it Performs.

Sources: Unless othenrvise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year'

Paqe

127

137

146

Demographic and Economic lnformation
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand

the environment within which the city's financial activities take place' 158

163

-L26- 140

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa
Net Position bY ComPonent

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual basis of accounting)

FiscalYear

2013 2014 2015 2016

Governmental activities
Net investment in caPital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net position

Business-type activities
Net investment in caPital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Primary government
Net investment in caPital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net position

$ 162,409,906 $ 165,448,958 $ 177,078,562

25,300,988 28,349,177 30,021,985

57,227,282 66,476,930 67,625,175

$ 155,314,591
24,150,307
54,888,657

$ 234,353,555 $ 244,938,176 $ 260.27 5.065 $ 274,725,722

$ 79,677,940
9,500

(5,621,533)

$ 77,467,033
9,500

(4,218,827)

$ 79,444,948 $
9,500

(6,100,653)

80,717,535
9,500

(4,631,127)

Total business-type activities net position $74 $ 73,257,706 $ 73,353, 795 $ 908

$ 234,992,531
24,159,807
49,267,124

$ 239,876,939 $ 244,893,906 $ 257,796,097

25,310,488 28,358,677 30,031,485

53,008,455 60,376,277 62,994,048

$ 308,4 19.462 $ 318,195,882 $ 628,860 $ 350,82 1.630333,

-r27- 141

Item 2.



FiscalYear

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

$ 185,440,156
33,221,194
66,287,368

$ 206,505,683 $ 222,380,958 $ 233,264,428 $ 235,252,432

32,833,649 33,108,311 34,985,196 37,325,937

62,952,964 57,239,608 51,425,709 54,645,260

$ 242,518,284
38,412,903
56,550,973

$ 284,948,718 $ 302,292,296 $ 312,728,877

-

$ 319,675.333 $ 327,223.629 $ 337 160

$ 79,810,012 $
9,500

(2,265,218)

93,1 10,200 $
9,500

(1,699,735)

$ 80,028,959 $
29,990

7,529,705

90,744,907 $ 81,353,542
29,990 41,540

11,807,093 14,652,540

79,531,920
29,990

6,090,521

$ 77, 554.294 $ 81,4 19.965 $ 85, 652,431 $ 87,588,654 $ 92,581,990 $ 96,047,622

$ 265,250,168 $ 289,615,883 $ 301 ,912,878
33,230,694 32,843,149 33,138,301

64,022,150 61,253,229 63,330,129

$ 315,997,339 $ 323,871,826
37,355,927 38,454,443
66,452,353 71,203,513

$ 313,293,387
35,015,186
58,955,414

$ 362,503.012 $ 383, 712,261 $ 398,381,308 $ 407,263,987 $ 419,805,619 $ 433,529,782

-

-L28- 142

Item 2.



City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Ghanges in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual basis of accounting)

(Page 1 of2)

Fiscal Year

2013 2014 2015 2016

Expenses
Governmental activities:

Public safetY
Public works
Health and social services
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development

General government
Debt service

Total governmental activities expenses

Business-tyPe activities:
Sewer
Refuse
Storm Water

Total business-type activities expenses

Total Primary government expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:

Charges for services:
Public SafetY
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
General Government

Operating grants and contributions

CaPital grants and contributions
Total governmental activities program revenues

$ 9,491,677 $ s,293,710 $ 9,235,835 $ 9,720'423

1 1,909,568 12,086,420 12,301,197 11,782'921

320,864 166,764 279,734 276,202

7,262,110 7,195,841 7,560,018 7,679,626

8,357,058 5,134,158 5,661,653 5,747'990

4,890,409 4,684,649 4,319,945 3,855,419

228,173 183,33e ==!9q,?!! == i91,*9
@@ -s8s84^881 

-gg,stqJsg 
3e,21e,e37

3,617,688
2,770,264

728,713

3,971,854
2,960,082

4,702,339
2,744,057

4,822,038
2,829,990

925.5951,000 .434

7,116,665 7,766,965 8,446,830 8.577 .623

$ 49.s76.524 $ 46,451 .846 $ 48,02 1.589 $ 47, 797.560

$ 673,860
204,592

2,400,747
1,632,567
2,098,639
6,479,932

13,490,337

$ 661,382
179,494

2,518,347
1,773,501
1,818,312
3,576,733

10,527 .769

$ 640,025
174,750

2,226,514
1,547 ,812
1,502,835

$ 620,779
179,815

2,501,785
2,009,261
1,911 ,261

1,628,293 3,055,296+-

- 
7,720,229 10,278,197

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:

Qanerar 4'574'181 4'837 '116 5'067'148

;;-: 2,996,396 3'139'016 2'855'267

Si'oi""Wrt"r 890'893 831'08s 830'501

Capitat grants and contributions: sewer and storm water 
=1^Z^!^,!11 

-99'p 
=I3--1,'t^!^!

Total business-type activities program revenues --9,033-884 9,496,500 9,484'387

Total primary government program revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenues
Governmental activities
Business-tYPe activities

Total primary government net expense

$22 8 $ 20,024,269 $ 17,204,616 $ 20,439,452

(28,s6s,522) (28,157,112) (31,854,s30) (28,941'740)

1,922,216 1,729,535 1,037 ,557 1,583'632

Witnw. @- s.ToFiews 5-@a''108i

5,279,521
2,910,356

937,310
1,034,068

10 255

-)"29- 143

Item 2.



Fiscal Year

2019 2020 2021 2022
2017 20 18

$ 10,499,099
12,901,482

308,406
7,751,904
7,625,932
3,924,362

$ 11,516,205 $
11,932,088

273,186
8,726,607
4,033,621
4,049,880

135,621
40,667,208

12,234,454
16,064,779

173,198
7,852,080
4,443,144
4,333,051

180,26q
45,280,974

$ 655,542
165,923

1,929,337
'1,680,208

1,607,195
5,583,625

11,621,830

344
43 529

1

1

$ 14,356,978 $ 14,443,799 $ 11,596'217

14,178,454 15,089,189 18,503,503

357,404 352,735 174,754

8,149,827 8,227,093 7,989'443
q,zza,qtq 4,741,335 4,637,338

4,664,011 5,4',10,951 5,012,842

192,876 

- 

174.868 128'515

-46,126,024 
 l-irr.srrc -4@T

4,613,456 4,653,292
2,876,394 2,972,968

4,816,390 5,162,985 5,001,085 5,594'416

g,osz,gag 3,134,596 3,235,095 3'451'755

983.487 1,037,946 1 ,050,855 1'034'1?0

-sd 
6=- -d@ --ffi 

-10,080,331$ 54.133,840 $ 55,461,551 $ 57,727,005 $ 58ln-943-

866,931 946'045

-4,-356,24t 
8,572'305

$ 51,546,3 10 $ 49,239 ,5'13

$ 607,903
168,952

2,197,303
1,750,177
2,136,947
1.652,967
8.514,249

$ 640,663
171,855

1,919,584
1,893,538
2,714,799
7,928,276

$ 577,351
161,405

1,296,689
1,509,577
1,919,605

$ 516,198 $
105,769

1,176,045
2,093,041
3,012,469
3

579,1 55

234,458
1,761,001
1,539,552
2,746,464
2,731,15518 1

8.433.045 10 6
-g,sgt,gas15,268,715

5,629,724
2,899,428

883,849
897,429

10,310,430

6,272,882
3,031,163
1,037,731
1,173,269_

6,625,335
2,930,917

947,035
259,676

10,762,963

6,903,473
2,915,458
1,093,448

390 852

7,300,595
3,086,774
1,051,594
1,534,377

12,973,340

7,694,631
3,271,061
1,070,344

91 786

11 .231 1
11.51 5.045

$ 18,824 $ 26, 783.760 s22 793 $ 19, 736.276 $ 23,057 ,856 $ 21,719,207
,679

(34,675,280)(25,3e8,4e3)(33,65e,144)(37',69?',91?)(38',355',454)(38'451',227)ffiffiffiffi---ffiffi

-130-

(continued)

144

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Ghanges in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual basis of accounting)

(Page 2 of 2l

Fiscal Year

2013 2014 2015 20

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position

Governmental activities:
General revenues:

ProPertY taxes and assessments
Other citY taxes
Use of money and ProPertY
lntergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Gain on sale of assets
Utility contribution in lieu of taxes

Transfers
Total governmental activities

Business-tyPe activities:
General revenues:

Use of moneY and ProPertY
Gain on Sale
lntergovernmental

Transfers
Total business-tYPe activities

Total Primary government

Change in Net Position
Governmental activities
Business-tyPe activities

Total Primary government

38,886_ 44,547__ 50'802_

94,'186 88,596

1,843,432 (2,676,46e) 9t9'1?q--1@p18 (2,537,736\ 4e6'133

69,673

1 18,076
970,732

1,158,481

$ 38,965,414: $ 36,203,997 $ 62,007,259 $44

$ 8,113,574 $ 10,584,621 $ 29,656,596 $ 14'450'657

$ 24,695,940
5,544,604
1,268,202
4,405,345
1,375,437

1,637,000
(1,843,432)
37,083,096

$ 21,248,529
6,036,891
1,120,041
4,545,654
'1,389,109

1,725,000
2,676,469

$ 25,096,699 $
5,935,675
1,187,617

25,404,155
844,766

3,402,949
(356,735)

24,991,769
s,820,244
1,252,423
6,503,056
1,616,773

3,864
4,175,000

(970,732)
43,392,3971 733 61 126

3,804,534
5,ll;0TBriT6-:

(808,201) 1,533,690 2,742'113

T-iffi FT19-du5'6-T@:-

-131- 145

Item 2.



(continued)

Fiscal Year

2018 2019 2020 2021 20222017

$ 25,646,096 $
5,931,730
1,302,082
6,386,056
1,538,658

2,615
3,402,500

$ 24,620,658
6,1 15,363
2,491,989
6,493,435
3,021,477

24,249,414
5,709,246
1,743,242
6,208,882
2,802,838

878
3,430,000

(546,193)688,539
44,898,276

111,583

$ 24,367,797
6,106,725
2,386,435
6,650,002
1,658,073

3,296,714 3,058,657
(1.943.91'l) 411,746
44.095.725 44,639,435 .750 48.709.751

$ 26,903,746
6,955,026
1,314,163
7,284,160
1,997,826

35,225
2,651,632

(1,238,028)

$ 29,063,485
8,875,749
1,065J74
6,948,043
1,476,082

0

2,612,293
(1,331.075)

43 307 45,903

208,958 383,387
(4,eze)

106,682
(37,679)

82,702
4,364

380,265

1,238,028 1,331,073

1,307 .031 1,4 18.139

607,954 $ 47,2 10.781 $ 50, 127.890

81,693 167,780
(688,53e) 546,193 1,9!?,?!1 q11'116,1

-0526-il 
---en,%i 

2,322,36e (31,481)

$ 44.403,013 $ 44,521,238 $ 46'418,094

-

$ 44,

$10,222,996$18,',!99,814$10,436,581$6,946,456$7,548,296$10'258'523
1.458,3863,865,6714,232,4661,936,2234,993,3363,19?'99?ffiffi gd6s7e,5- Tz;o-asofi F--,.g-8-zEE.- W-@-

-

-L32- 146

Item 2.



City of Gedar Falls' lowa
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

2013 2014 2015 2016

General Fund
Nonspendable
Assigned
Unassigned

Total general fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total all other governmental funds

$ $ $ $241,612
1,817,084
6,978,807

195,196
2,205,244
7,333,349

183,922
2,277,562
7,603,109

164,808
2,589,832
8,401,303

$ 9.037,503 $e.733.789 $ 10,064,593 $ 11j55,943

$ 306,613
2s,435,109
16,551,1 15
14,559,803
(1,193,291)

$ 257,741
26,920,959
17,029,200
19,036,386
(5,580,797)

$ 562,516
28,101,815
17,408,842
42,072,607
(5,289,619)

$ 678,404
29,490,897
17,820,657
37,461,720
(2,044,819)

$ 55,659.349 $ SZ $ 82,856 .161 $ 83,406 .859

-133- 147

Item 2.



Fiscal Year

2019 2020 2021 2022
2417 2018

$ 119,165
2,909,366
8,672,595

$ 100,909
2,904,712
9,105,204

93,692
3,124,973
9,359,24',1

122,878
3,002,643
9,467,412

122,733
2,903,774
9,166,625

$ 101,762
3,381,002
8,933,608

$ $ $

701.126 $ 12.110,825 $ 12,577.906 $ 12,592,933 $1 132 $ 12,4 16.372$ 11,

$ 441,642
34,254,O79
18,129,245
33,011,377

$ 338,774
32,228,803
18,514,062
35,726,036
(6,525,5e8)

$ 275,261
32,919,628
19,013,400
31,223,347
(9,215,142)

$ 452,032
34,676,365
19,318,484
34,220,780

(15,179,224)

$ 489,111
36,954,610
19,454,123
40,556,613
(16,231,652)

$ 579,ztz
37,831,310
19,804,463
42,161,947

(21,051,885)

6.494 $ 73.488,437 $81 $79 612
$ss $ 80.282,077 $ 74,21

-L34- 148

Item 2.



CitY of Cedar Falls, lowa
Ghanges in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,

Last Ten FiscalYears
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

FiscalYear

2013 2014 2015 2016

Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments
Other city taxes
Licenses and permits
Use of money and ProPertY
lntergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Utility contribution in lieu of taxes

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety
Public works
Health and social services
Culture and recreation
Community and economic

development
General government

Debt service
Principal
lnterest

Capital projects
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiencY) of revenues
over (under) exPenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in
Transfers out
lssuance of debt
Premium on longterm debt

Total other financing sources
(uses)

Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a Percentage of
noncapital expenditures

$ 24,696,783
5,519,022
1,076,186
1,268,202

12,599,954
3,386,415

449,165
1,358,192
1,63 7.000

$ 21,244,190
5,995,505
1,197,723
1,120,040
8,688,760
3,542,072

392,928
1,400,55't
1

$ 25,099,620
6,156,049

967,488
1,187 ,617

27,494,197
3,329,061

292,551
1,154,586
3

$ 24,996,361
5,574,659
1,413,196
1,252,423
9,556,156
3,613,5'10

284,934
1,598,216

949 4, 175.000

$st 919 45,306,769 69,084.118 $ 52,464,455

$ 8,999,942
10,089,252

172,284
6,449,626

$ 9,188,529
9,325,749

18,184
6,130,462

2,351,253
4,592,138

2,775,000
216,208

7

$ 9,736,872
10,078,273

150,853
6,949,450

2,529,858
3,376,609

1,040,000
156,875
106
125

$ 9,888,523
9,762,190

127,222
6,868,429

2,486,183
3,700,513

1,070,000
148,071

1 15,604 .458
1 $ 49,655 ,589

2,646,490
4,684,063

2,685,000
271,009

I 629 't0

45,542 ,295

$6 624 $ 115.999 $ 25, 958.757 $ Z

$ 13,297,694
(14,976,869)

$ 12,547,589
(9,867,874)

$ 10,234,634
(10,863,417)

$ 11,283,281
(12,571,873)

$ (1,679,175) $ 2.679 $ (628,783) $ (1,288,592)

$4, 769.449 $ 2, 795.714 $ 25, 329.974 $ t 4

B.0o/o

-r.35-

8.9o/o 3.5o/o 3.9%

149

Item 2.



FiscalYear

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
2017

$ 25,647,323
6,177,313
1,164,442
1,302,082
8,383,167
3,286,820

273,073
1,533,555

$ 9,916,019
8,526,896

159,428
6,735,547

2,462,130
3,720,389

1,585,000
175,387

18,103,067
$ 51,383,863

402 500 3 0

51 170

$ 24,193,934
5,709,246
1,302,864
1,743,242

13,890,953
3,008,403

314,373
2,813,716

$ 10,903,573
8,454,750

124,208
7,340,139

2,428,537
3,914,637

1,420,004
138,445

26,142,521
$ 60,866.810

$ 24,602,616
6,115,363
1,089,244
2,491,989

13,389,635
3,043,384

297,455
3,025,774

2,641,619
4,053,737

$ 24,332,248
6,106,725

932,121
2,386,435

10,625,228
2,296,459

316,928
3,356,248
3,058,657

$ 53,411,049

$ 26,907,831
6,955,026
1,530,582
1,314,163

10,605,383
2,150,458

209,676
1,994,030

$ 12,055,532
11,492,908

216,757
7,092,995

2,99'.1,681
4,956,324

650,000
232,344

9,822,160

$ 29,056,384
8,875,750
1,012,235
1,065,179

10,090,582
2,732,528

369,403
1,530,142

$ 12,410,233
13,858,681

25,776
7,000,740

3,104,803
4,831,771

870,000
192,100

14,462,964
757.068

000 3 296 714

$ 11,815,792
12,705,220

24,220
7,070,254

$56 731 $ 57 352 174

2 651 632 2, 612,293

$ 54,318,781 $ 57,344,496

$ 12,410,312
13,995,394

208,424
7,030,973

2,542,366
4,566,065

820,000 1,580,000
208,823 227,753

24,723,513 1 1,684,006

$ 64,063,178 $ 54,245,293 $ 4e,5 10.701 $ 56,

$ (21 3.588) $ (4,460,079) $ (6,711.004\ $ (834 .244) $ 4,808,080 $ 587,428

$ 12,904,934
(12,415,212)

2,865,000
100,938

$ 12,436,705 $
(13,060,066)

6,216,554
(8,187,149)
2,860,000

293,827

$ 9,944,010
(10,028,753)

$ 10,463,001
(11,723,406)

3,430,000
219,957

$ 1 1,353,183
(13,584,257)

.361) $ 1,183,232 $ (84 .743\ $ 2 552 $ Q,23 1.074\$ 3,455,660 $ (623

$3 $ (5, 083,440) $ (5,527,772')

2.70/o

$(e 18.987) $ 7, 197,632 $ (1,643,646)

5.0% 4.9%

-136-

5.0o/o 2.60/0 2.60/o

150

Item 2.



Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa
Assessed and Taxable Value of Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Real and Personal Propertv

Regular Aqricultural Land

Levy
Year

For Fiscal
Year

Ending
June 30,

2013

Taxable
Value

Assessed
Value

Taxable
Value

Assessed
Value

2012

2013 2014 1,622,862,995 2,640,558,870 5,918,449 9,875,030

2014 2015 1,49A,616,188 2,715,410,009 6,002,443 13,830,630

2015 2016 1,509,722,828 2,756,113,698 5,886,712 13,291,670

2016 2017 1,569,292,287 2,885,206,578 5,807,960 12,647,630

2017 2018 1,750,040,895 2,953,263,263 5,934,726 12,590,920

2018 2o1g 1 ,832,652,499 3,088,676,312 6,010,597 1 1 ,088,970

2o1g 2020 1,950,451,511 3,185,180,555 5,961,927 10,667,730

2o2o 2021 1,963,719,839 3,934,174,827 5,962,806 7,317,830

2021 2022 1,960,696,679 3,424,905,333 6,397,252 7,613,000

Source: Black Hawk County Auditor's Office'

Note: property in the city is reassessed every other year. Tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed

value.

$ 1,393,511,204 $ 2,608,407,333 $ 5,671,067 $ 9,912,510

-L37 - 151

Item 2.



Taxable
Value

Assessed
Value

Total Taxable
Value as a

Percentage of
Assessed

Value

Total

Total
Direct
Tax
Rate

$ 1,399,1 82,271 $ 2,618,319,843 53'44 o/o $ 12'20300

1,628,780,784 2,650,433,900 61-45 12.02123

1,496,618,631 2,729,240,639 54'84 11.81029

1,515,609,540 2,769,405,368 54.73 11.52796

1,575,100,247 2,897,854,208 54-35 11.21967

1,755,975,621 2,965,854,183 59'21 11.13476

1,838,663,096 3,099,765,282 59.32 11.22169

1,956,413,438 3,195,848,285 61.22 10.95250

1,969,682,645 3,341,492,657 58.95 11.43408

1,967,093,931 3,432,518,333 57 -31 11.38273

-1 38- 152

Item 2.



City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Property Tax Rates

Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Overlapping Rates

Citv of Cedar Falls Black Hawk County

Operating
Millaqe

2013 $ 11.6847s $ 0.51821 $ 12.20300 $ 5.59849 $ 0.64144 $ 6.23e93

2014 11.45923 0.56200 12.02123 5.39234 0.62882 6.02116

2015 11 .21478 0.59551 11 .81029 5.52447 0.59472 6.1 1919

2016 10.93601 0.59195 11 .52796 5.43985 1 .30832 6.74817

2017 10.64440 0.57527 11.21967 5.48507 0.9607 6.44577

2018 10.57557 0.55919 11.13476 5.60805 0.80702 6.41507

2019 10.95686 0.26483 11 .22169 5.96158 0.73145 6.69303

2020 10.52103 0.43147 10.95250 5.72918 0.57445 6.30363

2021 11.11885 0.31523 11.43408 5.94328 0.39297 6.33625

2022 1 1 .08087 0.30186 11 .38273 5.76053 0.41338 6.17391

Source: Department of Management website

Note: The city's general fund maximum property tax rate may only be $8'10 per $1 ,000 of

valuation. The remaining portion of the operating rate and the rate for debt service are

set based on each year's requirements.

Fiscal
Year

Debt
Service

Total City
Millaoe

Operating
Millage

Debt
Service

Total
County
Millaqe

-r 39- 153

Item 2.



Overlapp inq Rates

Schools

Operating
Millage

Debt
Service

Total
School
Millage Other Total

$ 13.37802 $ $ 13.37802 $ 1.33770 $ 33.15865

12.82531 12.82531 1.36950 32.23720

12.78447 12.78447 1.35851 32.07246

12.44447 12.44447 1.34988 32.07048

12.76973 12.76973 1.33315 31.76832

13.08480 1.18791 14.27271 1.33495 33.15749

12.78534 1.16160 13.94694 1.36344 33.22510

12.72483 1.12129 13.84612 1.43491 32.53716

12.81068 1.08246 13.89314 1.47747 33.14094

12.91864 1 .03435 13.95299 1.49875 33.00838

-1 40* 154

Item 2.



Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa
Principal ProPertY TaxPaYers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2013

Assessed

Valuation for

Fiscal Year

2012 - 2013 Rank

Percentage

of Total

Assessed

ValuationTaxpaver

Target Corporation

RBR Holdings ll LLC

Goldenstar APartments, LLP

WB CF Assoc LTD Partners

Midland Tarkenton, LLC

Tailwind Cedar Falls, LLC

Vereit Real Estate LP

Walmart Re Business Trust

Prime RE 2, LLC

Martin Realty ComPanY, LLC

Gold Falls Villa APart LLC

College Square MallAssoc. LLC

R and N lnvestments

Standard Distribution Co.

Cedar Properties

Harvest Mallard Point Retirement

Twenty Seventh Street Assoc, LLC

Cedar Falls lnvestments, LLC

Source: Black Hawk CountY

$ 85,871,200 1

12,738,950 5

13,574,740 4

3.28 %

0.52

0.34

1.15

0.53

0.32

0.00

0.31

0.44

0.35

0.49

8,964,160

30,224,620

13,908,090

8,326,800

0

8,164,470

11,533,470

9,243,740

$ 202,550,240

8

2

3

o

10

6

7

7.73 o/o

-I4T- 155

Item 2.



2022

Assessed

Valuation for
Fiscal Year
2021 - 2022 Rank

Percentage

of Total

Assessed

Valuation

$ 78,151,240

18,383,560

17,922,860

17 ,313,610

15,659,380

15,355,740

14,657,490

14,046,930

13,748,500

12,973,030

2.28 o/o

0.54

0.52

0.50

0.46

0.45

0.43

0.41

0.40

0.38

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

o

10

$ 218,212,340 6.37 0/o

-r42- 156

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Levy

Year

For Fiscal

Year
Ending

June 30,

Total

Tax Lew

Current

Tax

Collection

Percentage

of Current

Taxes

Collected

Delinquent

Tax

Collections

2012 2013 $ 17,287,168 $ 17,091,764 98'87 % $

2013201419,694,61519,537,93999'20

2014 2015 17,900,282 17,785,682 99'36

2015201617,701,40417,595,90799'40

2016201717,905,23517,845,39699'67

2017201819,754,52719,692,80299'69

2018201920,871,55120,801,94799'67

2019202021,678,66721,252,58098'03

2o2o 2021 22,778,011 23,178,399 101.76

2021 2022 22,471,020 22,567,169 100.43

Source: Black Hawk County Auditor's Office'

Note: For fiscal year ending .,lrn" 30, 2O2O property tax collections were deferred into

future years due to the COVID-19 pandemic'

3,967

16,281

14,266

18,813

16,461

31,669

18,133

5,148

8,525

385

-L43- 157

Item 2.



Total Tax

Collections

Total Tax

Collections as

a Percentage

of Total

Tax Lew

Outstanding

Delinquent

& Deferred

Taxes

Delinquent

Taxes as a

Percentage

of Total

Tax Lew

$ 17,095,731 98.89 % $ 25,924

19,554,220 99.29

17,799,948 99.44

17,614,720 99.51

17,861,857 99.76

19,724,471 99.85

20,820,080 99.75

21,257,728 98.06

23,186,924 101.80

22,567,554 100.43

0.15 %

14,435 0.07

18,813 0.11

16,461 0.09

31,669 0.18

18,133 0.09

21,886 0.10

426,609 1.97

189,911 0.83

10,134 0.05

-r44- 158

Item 2.



City of Gedar Falls, lowa

ltll2}zl VALUAT|ONS (Taxes Payable July 1,2022 to June 30' 2023)

$

$

100% Actual Value

2,803,566,538
529,254,483
33,533,725
98,472,234
2,303,363

6,860,680
385,790

56,915,222

Taxable Valuation

1,510,770,762
490,237,229
59,965,819
4,230,086
2,073,026

Taxable Value
(with Rollback)

$ 1,510,770,762
461,067,249
27,238,463
59,965,819

2,073,026

Residential
Commercial
lndustrial
Multi-Residential
Railroad
Utilities
Gross Valuation
Less military exemPtion
Net Valuation

TIF increment (used to comPute

debt services levies and

constitutional debt limit)

Taxes separatelY
Ag. Land
Ag. Buildings
Utilities - Gas & Electric

Residential
Commercial, lndustrial & UtilitY

Multi-Residential
Gas & Electric Utilities
Railroad

Total Gross Taxable Valuation

1 931 517 517

3,469,061,860 2,063,046,836
(2 .656,231) (2, 656,231)

3,466,405,629 2,060,390,605

204,625,917 1 $ 204,625,917 
1

1,931

$

$

$

$

$

$
$
$

$
$
$

Percent Total

6,108,830
343,512

4,230,086

73.08%
23.71o/o

2.90%
0.20o/o

0.10%

, TIF lncrement is reduced by $55,560 of military exemption

2OZI cROSS TRt<lqBLE VALUATION BY CLASS OF PROPERTYI

$ 2,067,276,922

lExcludes Taxable TIF lncrement, Ag. Land and Ag. Buildings

-r45-

100.00%

159

Item 2.



Govern mental Activities

Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa
Ratios of Outstanding Debt bY TYPe

Last Ten Fiscal Years

B usiness-Tvpe Activities

Fiscal

Year

General

Obligation

Bonds/Notes

Tax lncrement

Financing

Bonds/Notes

General Obligation

General

Obligation

Bonds/Notes

Total

Primary

Government

Revenue

Debt

2013 $ 8,024,356 $ 5g7,g8o $ 2,942,333 210,640 $ 11,775,209

2014 5,819,312 2,311,436 6,744,000 14,874,748

2015 4,790,677 1,650,539 6,482,000 12,923,216

2016 3,732,042 979,548 6,211,000 10,922,590

2017 5,114,251 7,381,807 5,932,000 18,428,058

2018 3,694,466 6,314,350 5,644,000 15,652,816

2019 5,990,868 8,884,201 5,346,000 20,221,069

2020 4,380,624 7,997,623 5,038,000 17,416,247

2021 7,319,109 7,091,045 4,720,000 19,130,154

2022 6,387,637 6,164,468 4,392,000 16,944,105

Note Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial

statements.

Amounts presented are net of discounts, premiums, and adjustments

1 Population and personal income data can be found on page 156'

-L46- 160

Item 2.



Percentage

of Personal

lncomel

Per

Capita

0.77 o/o $ 300

0.92 379

0.79 329

0.68 278

1.13 469

0.95 399

1.19 515

0.96 444

1.35 470

1.15 416

-L47 - 161

Item 2.



CitY of Cedar Falls, lowa
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal

Year

General

Obligation

Debtl

Less: Amount

Available in Debt

Service Fund2

Taxable

Value of

Total Propertv

2013 $ 11,564,569 $ 31g,946 $ 11,245,723 $ 1,399,182,271

2014 8,130,748 416,912 7,713,836 1,628,780,784

2015 6,441,216 431,704 6,009,512 1,496,618,631

2016 4,711,590 466,400 4,245,190 1,515,609,540

2017 12,496,058 496,385 11,999,673 1,575,100,247

2018 10,008,B16 538,318 9,470,498 1 ,755,975,621

2019 14,875,069 530,935 14,344,134 1,838,663,096

2020 12,378,247 647,822 11,730,425 1,956,413,438

2021 14,410,154 582,697 13,827,457 1,969,682,645

2022 12,552,105 401,055 12,151,050 1,967,093,931

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the

financial statements

1 tncludes only general obligation debt supported by property tax dollars'
, This is the amount restricted for debt service payments.

-t48- 162

Item 2.



Percentage

Taxable Value

of Propertv

Assessed

Value of

Property

Percentage

Assessed

Value

of Propertv

Per

Ca

0.80 % $ 2,618,319,843 0'43 o/o $ 286'44

o.47 2,650,433,900 0.29 196.48

0.40 2,729,240,639 0.22 153.07

0.28 2,769,405,368 0.15 108.13

o.76 2,897,854,208 0.41 305.65

0.54 2,965,854,183 0.32 241.23

o.78 3,099,765,282 0.46 365.36

0.60 3,195,848,285 0.37 298.79

0.70 3,341,492,657 0.41 339.63

0.62 3,432,518,333 0.35 298.46

-r49- 163

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa
Direct and OverlaPPing Debt

As of June 30,2022

Jurisdiction

Net General
Obligation

Debt

Outstanding

Percentage
Applicable

to City 1

Amount
Applicable

to

Government

Direct, City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Overlapping:

Black Hawk County

Cedar Falls Public School District

Area Vll Hawkeye Community College

$6, 387,637 1oo.oo % $ 6,387 ,637

$ 16,690,000 35.50 $ 5,924,954

95,245,000 92.59 88,187,346

6, 790,000 20.12 1 364 136

Total Overlapping $ 1 18,715,000

$ 125,102,637

$ 95,476,432

Total $ 101,864,069

Source: Black Hawk CountY Auditor

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic

boundaries of the city. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those

overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of Cedar Falls. This

process reiognizes that, when considering the city's ability to issue and repay long-term debt,

the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.

However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for

repaying the debt, of each overlapping government'

t. The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using net taxable property values.

Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the County's net value that is

*itnin the government's boundaries and dividing it by the county's total value.

-150- 164

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa
Legal Debt Margin lnformation

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2014 2015 2016

Debt Limit $ 132,967,511

Total net debt
applicable to limit 13,205,000

$ 134,876,517 $ 139,586,122 $ 142,421,126

9,640,000 7,770,000 5,920,000

Legal debt margin $ 119,?62,511 $ 125 6,517 $ 131,816,122 $ 136,501,126

Total net debt
applicable to
the limit as a
percentage of
of debt limit 9.93o/o 7.15o/o 5.57o/o 4.160/o

Note: Under lowa code, the city's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed

5 percent of total assessed property value.

-151- 165

Item 2.



$ 135

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

$ 14g,224,25g $ 151,g11,983 $ 158,343,489 $ 163,389,318 $ 170,858,420

13,270,000 I 740 000 14,085,000 11,670,000 13,595,000

,259 $ 142,171,983 $ 144,258,489 $ 151,719,318 $ 157,263,420

-
8.89% 6.41% 8.90% 7.14o/o 7.960

Legal Debt Margin Gatculation for Fiscal Year 2022

Estimated actual valuation $ 3,490,992,530

-

$ 174,549,627

11,850,000

Legal debt margin $ 162,699,627

-

Debt limit - 5% ol total actual valuation
Debt applicable to debt limit:

General obligation bonds

-L52- 166

Item 2.



Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa
Revenue Bond Goverage

Sewer AuthoritY
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Gross
Revenues

Less:
Operating

Expenses 
1

Net Revenue
Available
for Debt
Service

Debt Service Requirements 
2

Principal lnterest

2013 $ 4,596,372 $ 2,254,091 $ 2,342,281 $ $ 6,319

2014 4,859,057 2,364,332 2,494,725 254,104 83,016

2015 5,092,146 2,415,557 2,676,589 262,000 219,180

2016 5,314,436 2,532,407 2,782,029 271,000 210,665

2017 5,684,591 2,350,527 3,334,064 279,000 201,858

2018 6,388,963 2,449,219 3,939,744 288,000 192,790

2019 6,834,297 2,449,833 4,384,464 298,000 183,430

2020 7,1og,7oo 2,709,620 4,400,080 308,000 173,745

2021 7,367,392 2,543,615 4,823,777 318,000 163,735

2022 7,746,519 3,298,409 4,448,110 328,000 123,900

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial

statements

, Net of depreciation, interest, and debt service transfers.

2 lncludes principal and interest of revenue bonds only'

-1 53- 167

Item 2.



Debt Service
Requirements2

Total Coverage

$ 6,319 370.67

337,120 7.40

481,180 5.56

481,665 5.78

480,858 6.93

480,790 8.19

481,430 9.11

481,745 9.13

481,735 10.01

451,900 9.84

-r54- 168

Item 2.



Fiscal
Year

2012 - 13

2013 - 14

2014 - 15

2015 - 16

2016 - 17

2017 - 18

2018 - 19

2019 - 20

2020 - 21

2021 - 22

City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Sales History and Total Sewer Gharges

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Water
Sales ccF

1,826,789

1,759,171

1 ,615,619

1,611,698

1,586,115

1,689,591

1,480,978

1,505,465

1,655,287

1,612,269

Source: Cedar Falls Utilities

Sewer
Charqes

5,238,056

5,501,090

5,714,250

5,916,770

6,405,359

6,917,743

7,412,276

7,712,692

7,916,423

9,618,176

-t_55- 169

Item 2.



City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Water Meter by Rate Glass

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year Residential Commercial lndustrial Government Other Total

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

12,328

12,313

12,154

12,238

12,453

12,702

12,983

13,042

13,277

13,508

1,002

1,024

1,403

1,423

1,454

1,460

1,528

1,525

1,536

1,551

211

213

173

206

209

211

194

193

191

199

13,576

13,586

13,766

13,901

14,154

14,412

14,744

14,799

15,043

15,297

32

33

33

31

35

36

36

36

36

36

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Source: Cedar Falls Utilities

-r_ 56- 170

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa
Largest Sewer Customers

Fiscal Year 2022

Customer

Water
Sales

Percent of
TotalWater

Sales
Sewer

Charqes

Percent of
TotalSewer

Charqes(ccF)

University of Northern lowa

Western Home Communities

Country Terrace MHP LLC-700 W Ridgeway

Target Corporation

Gold Falls Villa Apts.

Clark Enterprises, LLC

CF Schools

Metokote Corporation

Newaldaya Lifescapes

Park @ Nine23 Apts ll

Happy Hippo Car Wash, LLC

Sartori Memorial Hospital, lnc,

Totd 2A22 CCF
T otal 2022 Sewer Billings

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

I
10

11

12

54,620

20,980

16,010

16,437

7,766

4,249

9,720

11,671

7,523

5,393

10,038

9,643

1,612,269
$8,618,176

3.39 %

1.30

0.99

1.02

0.48

0.26

0.60

0.72

0.47

0.33

0.62

0.60

264,318

155,966

122,166

93,219

72,825

54,999

51,400

49,979

44,181

44,027

42,609

39,020

3.07 %

1.81

1.42

1.08

0.85

0.64

0.60

0.58

0.51

0.51

0.49

0.45

$

Source: Cedar Falls Utilities, Finance Dept. special lS report

-r57 - 171

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Galendar Years

Year Population

Personal

lncome

Per Capita
Personal

lncomel

Median School

Enrollment

Unemployment

Rate

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

39,260

39,260

39,260

39,260

39,260

39,260

39,260

39,260

40,713

40,713

$ 1,538,795,700

1,622,969,140

1,639,850,940

1,617,197,920

1,628,426,280

1,648,213324

1,705,925,520

1,808,433,380

1,419,133,041

1,471,774,950

$ 39,195

41,339

41,769

41,192

41,478

41,982

43,452

46,063

34,857

36,150

26.8

26.8

26.5

26.5

27.1

26.9

26.6

26.9

27.2

27.3

5,121

5,151

5,151

5,300

5,486

5,479

5,320

5,451

5,542

5,649

3.5

3.1

4.8

4.9

4.0

2.0

2.3

1.9

3.3

3.5

Sources: population provided by the US Census Bureau. School enrollment is supplied by the

Cedar Falls Board of Education. Unemployment data provided by the lowa Workforce.

Note: population and median age information are based on surveys conducted during the

last quarter of the calendar year. Personal income information is a total for the year.

Unemployment rate information is an adjusted yearly average. School enrollment is based on

the census at the start of the school year.

, per Capita lncome is based on Metropolitan Waterloo/Cedar Falls and based on figures from

Bureau of Economic AnalYsis.

Beginning in 2015 the Unemployment rate is based on the Metropolitan Waterloo/Cedar Falls area

-1 58- 172

Item 2.



City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Principal Employers

Gurrent Year and Nine Years Ago

2013

Emplovees

Number of
Employeesl

Percentage
of Total City

EmploymentRank

John Deere Product Engineer Center 2

MercyOne Medical 2

Hy-Vee Food Stores 2

University of Northern lowa

Omega Cabinetry, Ltd.2

Target Distribution

Cedar Falls Community School District

The Western Home

Area Education Agency 267

Martin Brothers Distributing Co., lnc

Viking Pump lnc, Unit of lndex CorP.

City of Cedar Falls/Municipal Utilities

Wal-Mart Super Center 2

6,739

3,027

1,155

2,586

572

750

1 ,150

466

540

750

1

2

4

3

8

7

5

10

I
6

27.85o/o

12.51o/o

4.77%

10.69%

2.360/o

3j0%

4.75%

1.930

2.23o/o

3.10o/o

Total 17,735

Source: Cedar Valley Alliance website

1 Number of employees includes all fulltime, part-time and seasonal employees.
2 Number of employees includes multiple locations in both Cedar Falls and Waterloo.

73.27o/o

-1 59- 173

Item 2.



2022

Number of
Employeesl

5,000

2,893

1,719

1,584

994

840

826

668

650

600

Percentage
of Total City

EmploymentRank

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

I
10

12.28%

7 .11o/o

4.22o/o

3.89%

2.44o/o

2.060/o

2.030

1.640/o

1.6o0/o

1.47o/o

15,774 40.18o/o

-1 60- 174

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa
Full-Time Eq uivalent Gity Government Employees by Function/Department

Last Ten FiscalYears

Full-Time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

2013 2014 2015 2016

Public Safety
Police
Fire
lnspection Services

Public Works
Streets
Parking
Engineering

Culture and Recreation
Municipal Operations & Programs Admin
Cultural Services
Cemetery
Golf
Parks
Recreation
Library
Senior Services
Visitor & Tourism

Community & Economic DeveloPment
Community DeveloPment Admin.
Economic DeveloPment
Planning & CommunitY Services
Block Grant
Housing Vouchers

General Government
Mayor's Office
Administration
Finance & Business Operations Admin
Financial Services
Legal Services
Human Resources
Public Records
Cable TV
Print Shop
Public Buildings

lnternalService
lnformation Systems
Vehicle Maintenance

Sewer
Refuse
Storm Water

Total

50.77
35.20
9.30

22.06
3.81

11.52

2.25
8.52
4.60
5.00

21.45
35.26
19.84
0.78
3.20

1.50
2.02
3.68
1.79
1.93

1.50
1.50
0.00
5.95
3.00
0.00
4.10
4.50
1.00

15.84

4.00
6.10

18.38
21,35

4.30

49.03
35.83
8.23

22.32
2.14

10.52

2.25
8.37
4.45
4.93

17.66
35.59
20.76
0.15
3.18

1.50
2.09
3.67
1.40
1.49

1.10
1.00
0.00
5.58
2.00
0.00
3.95
5.00
1.00

14.61

4.00
7.68

17.98
19.41

4.30

46.75
34.86

7.50

24.10
1.97

10.45

1.75
8.85
4.45
4.93

17.41
34.59
20.96

0.15
3.28

1.25
0.00
6.08
1.13
1.13

1.10
1.00
0.00
6.58
2.00
0.00
3.73
5.00
0.00
1.73

4.00
7.68

18.27
18.79

4.30

1.75
8.85
4.45
4.93

17.41

34.59
20.96
0.15
3.28

47.19
34.86

7.50

24.10
1.97

10.45

1.25
0.00
6.08
1.13
1.12

1.10
1.00
0.00
6.58
2.00
0.00
3.73
5.00
0.00
1.73

4.00
7.68

18.27
18.79

4.30

Source: City's Financial Plans

-16r- -

335.98 323.17 305.77 306.20

175

Item 2.



Full-Time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

2018 2019 2020 2021 20222017

47.19
33.06

7.50

24.10
1.97

10.45

48.22
30.41
7.50

24.10
2.O0

12.73

55.72
28.51
8.84

24.10
2.05

14.07

61.43
25.51
10.05

24.65
3.55

13.08

61.73
25.83

9.41

24.37
4.44

14.76

56.01
29.10

9.86

22.92
4.45

14.90

1.65
7.61
4.45
4.93

17.4',1

34.59
21.74

0.15
3.28

1.65
7.36
4.45
0.75

16.61
33.96
21.48
0.15
3.28

1.17
0.00
5.98
0.43
1.54

1.08
1.02
0.00
6.32
2.10
0.00
3.71
5.30
0.00
1.73

4.73
7.35

17.82
17.74
4.30

1.65
6.70
6.45
0.38

17.11
33.96
22.93

0.15
3.91

1.65
7.43
5.45
0.00

16.98
34.23
23.97

1.40
4.91

0.00
8.08
5.50
0.00

17.71
34.96
25.46

'1.40

4.91

1.05
0.00
5.65
0.15
2.59

1.08
3.O2

1.73
6.71
2.10
0.00
4.24
4.10
0.00
1.50

0.00
7.35
5.83
0.00

16.98
34.96
24.69

1.40
4.91

1.05
0.00
5.65
0.15
2.59

1.10
3.05
1.73
4.71
1.12
3.00
3.84
3.78
0.00
1.50

1.25
0.00
6.08
1.13
1.12

1.10
1.00
0.00
6.31
2.00
0.00
3.73
5.50
0.00
1.73

4.73
6.68

17.72
17.79
4.30

1.08
1.02
0.00
7.42
2.10
0.00
3.86
5.55
0.00
1.73

5.73
7.38

17.82
17.74
3.30

1.08
3.02
0.00
7.06
2.10
0.00
3.83
5.43
0.00
1.50

5.73
7.38

17.37
16.4'l

3.60

5.83
7.23

17.27
16.65

3.30

5.83
7.23

17.27
18.10

3.30

1.17
0.00
5.93
0.45
1.47

1.16
0.00
4.55
0.15
1.08

302.25 296.97 310.28 315.74 322.76 318.36

-762- 176

Item 2.



Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa
Operating lndicators by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Public Safety

Police

Physical arrests

Traffic violations

Parking violations

Cars Booted 2

Fire

Number of calls answered

lnspections conducted

Sewer

Sewage System

Daily average treatment in gallons

Maximum daily capacity of treatment plant in gallons

Water System

Daily average consumption in gallons

Maximum daily capacity of plant in gallons

Refusel

Solid Waste

35 Gallon Containers

64 Gallon Containers

96 Gallon Containers

Yard Waste

96 Gallon Containers

Sources: Various city dePartments

1 Statistics begin in FY04
2 Statistics begin in FY15

Fiscal Year

2013 2014 2015

1,178

5,554

20,889

2,190

2,843

4,100,000

21,600,000

1,057

5,095

14,780

2,113

2,318

4,930,000

21,600,000

1,029

5,405

13,493

184

2,037

1,214

4,520,000

21,600,000

3,400,000

23,400,000

4,090,000

23,400,000

3,380,000

23,400,000

4,600

6,899

2,307

4,905

7,165

2,398

4,347

6,305

1,638

6,916 7 55 7,2391

-163- 177

Item 2.



Fiscal Year

2016 2017 2020 2021 20222018 2019

912

4,172

13,364

252

2,257

2,681

5,790,000

21,600,000

839

3,645

12,350

243

2,200

1,492

6,729,000

21,600,000

1,003

4,066

11,206

187

2,343

427

6,729,000

21,600,000

911

1,794

11,076

196

1,387

1,925

7,408,000

21,600,000

345

2,624

10,948

174

2,079

1,167

5,695,000

21,600,000

792

2,343

10,939

33

2,218

955

4,482,000

21,600,000

761

1,452

13,055

221

2,305

2,900

4,397,000

21,600,000

3,276,000

23,400,000

3,267,000

23,400,000

3,417,000

23,400,000

3,178,000

23,400,000

3,121,000

23,400,000

3,141,000

23,400,000

3,499,000

23,400,000

4,659

6,610

1,777

4,963

6,850

1,950

5,199

7,182

2,047

5,437

7,443

2,143

5,548

7,690

2,263

4,383

6,512

1,931

4,015

6,374

1,972

9,1127,419 7,555 7,752 7,869 7,977 8,091

-r64- 178

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Gapital Asset Statistics by Function

Last Ten FiscalYears

FiscalYear

Public safety

Public Safety Building

Patrol Units

Fire apparatus

Public works

Streets

Miles

Street lights

Health and social services

Hospital

Number of patient beds

Cultural and Recreation

Hearst Center for the Arts

Library

Cemeteries

Acreage

Golf

Parks

Acreage

Recreation

Recreation Center

Swimming pools

Softballfields
Baseballfields
Pickleball courts

Tennis courts

Sewer

Sewage System

Miles of sanitary sewer

Miles of storm sewers

Number of treatment Plants
Number of service connectors

Water Systems

Miles of water mains

Number of service connectors

Number of city owned fire hYdrants

2013 2014 2015 2016

10

I

218

3,178

1

101

2

35

1,148

188.5

182.9

1

13,099

206.12

12,322

2,088

10

8

217

3,104

1

101

2

34

1,132

185.94

176.18

1

12,544

201.50

1 1,996

2,011

10

8

217

3,109

1

101

10

I

217

3,116

1

101

1

'l

3

1

1

3

1

1

3

56.9

2

35

1,148

I
I
3

56.9

2

35

1,148

56.9 56.9

1

3

I
2

6

1

3

I
2

6

1

3

I
2

6

1

3

9

2

6

187.4

177.6

1

12,826

201.70

12,071

2,038

187.57

181.41

1

12,826

203.92

12,208

2,044

Sources: Various city dePartments

-r.65- 179

Item 2.



FiscalYear

2017 2018

222

3,282

1

101

2019 2020

1

11

I

222

3,346

2021

224

3,458

2022

10

I

219

3,185

1

101

1

12

I

1

11

I
11

8

101 101

1

12

I

224

3,463

1

101

222

3,346

1 1 1

1

1

3

56.9

2

35

1,148

1

1

3

56.9

2

35

1,148

101

1

I
3

56.9

2

35

1,148

193.07

188.52
,l

13,184

211.47

12,452

2,274

1

1

3

56.9

2

35

1,148

1

I
3

56.9

2

35

1,148

1

I
3

56.9

2

35

1,148

1

3

I
2

I
6

1

3

I
2

6

1

3

I
2

8

6

1

3

I
2

8

6

1

3

I
2

8

6

1

3

I
2

8

6

90.28

85.64

1

1

1

13,142

207.61

12,425

2,151

192.46

188.1

1

13,142

210.06

12,682

2,172

194.15

189.04

1

13,233

211,51

12,590

2,270

195.56

190.4

1

13,393

212.80

12,884

2,270

195.62

190.46

I
13,394

212.80

12,954

2,297

-t66- 180

Item 2.



EideBaillY-
a

(PAr & BUSINISS ADVIS0RS

October 27,2022

To the Honorable Mayor and

Members of the City Council

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa (City) as of and for the year ended June

30,2022, and have issued our report thereon dated Octob er 27,2022. Professional standards require that we

advise you of the following matters relating to our audit'

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

and Government Auditing Standards and our Compliance Audit under the Uniform Guidance

As communicated in our letter dated June 3, 2022, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is

to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by

management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America and to express an opinion on whether the City

complied with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could

have a direct and material effect on the City's major federal program. Our audit of the financial statements and

major program compliance does not relieve you or man'agement of its respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain

reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting

as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly,

as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the City solely for the purpose of determining our

audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards as it relates to the audit of the City's major federal

program compliance, is to express an opinion on the compliance for the City's major federal program based on

our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. An audit of major program compliance

includes consideration of internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred

to above as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and

report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, as a part of our

major program compliance audit, we considered internal control over compliance for these purposes and not to
provide any assurance on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional

judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not

required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.

Whol inspires you, inspires us. I eideboilly.con

1545 Associores Dr., Ste. 101 | Dubuque, lA52002-2299 i I 563.556.1790 i F 563.557.7842 1 EOE

7 181

Item 2.



We have provided our comments regarding internal controls during our audit in our lndependent Auditor's
Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of

FinancialstatementsPerformedinAccordancewith GovernmentAuditingstondards datedOctober27,2O22.
We have also provided our comments regarding compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred

to above and internal controls over compliance during our audit in our lndependent Auditor's Report on

Compliance with the Major Federal Program; Report on lnternal Control Over Compliance; and Report on the

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance dated October 27,2022.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you.

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the engagement,

if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

Significant Risks Considered

As stated in our auditor's report, professional standards require us to design our audit to provide reasonable

assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error. ln

designing our audit procedures, professional standards require us to evaluate the financial statements and

assess the risk that a material misstatement could occur. Areas that are potentially more susceptible to

misstatements, and thereby require special audit considerations, are designated as "significant risks". We have

considered the following as significant risks.

Monoaement Override of Controls - Professional standards require auditors to address the possibility of

management overriding controls. Accordingly, we considered as a significant risk that management may

have the ability to override controls that the organization has implemented.

Revenue Recoonition - We considered revenue recognition as a significant risk due to potential reporting

complexities.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entit'fs Significant Accounting Practices

Sig nifica nt Accou nti ng Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the

significant accounting policies adopted by the City is included in Note 1 to the financial statements. As

described in Note 1, the City changed accounting policies related to accounting for leases to adopt the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Accordingly, the accounting change has been retrospectively

applied to the financial statements beginning July 1, 2021. No matters have come to our attention that would

require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant

unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

2 182

Item 2.



Sig nifica nt Accou nti ng Esti mates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based

on management's current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about

past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly

sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future

events affecting them may differ markedly from management's current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the incurred but not reported

health and workers' compensation liabilities, other postemployment benefits liability, and net pension liability

Management's estimates of the incurred but not reported health and workers' compensation liabilities are

based on third-party administrator's calculations and estimates. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions

used to develop the incurred but not reported liabilities in determining that they are reasonable in relation to
the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management's estimate of the other postemployment benefits liability, OPEB related deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources, and OPEB expense are based on a calculation of actuarially

determined contributions for health insurance benefits. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the other postemployment benefits balances in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the

financial statements taken as a whole.

Management's estimate of the net pension liability, pension related deferred outflows of resources and

deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense are based on plan level actuarial reports, allocated to the

City using annual employer contributions. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
pension related balances in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as

a whole.

Finonciol Stdtement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the City's financial

statements relate to the net pension liability and the other postemployment benefits liability.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely

misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them

to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the

effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account

balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. There were no uncorrected misstatements

noted in performing the audit.

3 183

Item 2.



The following misstatement that we identified as a result of our audit procedures was brought to the attention

of, and corrected by, management:
Equity lncrease (Decrease)

Governmental

Activities

Health lnsurance lnternal Service Fund

To increase other receivables s 115,952 s 115,952

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,

whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,

which could be significant to the City's financial statements or the auditor's report. No such disagreements arose

during the course of the audit.

Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditot's Report

For purposes of this letter, professional standards require that we communicate any circumstances that affect

the form and content of our auditol's report. As described in Note 4 to the financial statements, due to the

adoption of GASB Statement No. 87, Leoses, the City restated net position and fund balance as of July L,202L'

We have included an emphasis of matter in our report regarding this restatement.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management that are included in the management

representation letter dated octob er 27, 2022.

Management's Consultations with Other Accountants

ln some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting

matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other

accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or lssues

ln the normal course of our professional association with the City, we generally discuss a variety of matters,

including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, business conditions affecting the

entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters

discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the City's auditors.

Other lnformation Included in Annual Reports

pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information, whether financial or

nonfinancial, included in the City's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, does not extend beyond the

financial information identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to

corroborate such other information. However, in accordance with such standards, our responsibility is to read

the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information

and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. ll
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other

information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Fund

Statements

4 184

Item 2.



Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is a material

misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information, or its

manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its presentation,

appearing in the financial statements.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, and management of the

City of Cedar Falls, lowa, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified

parties.

Sincerely,

{*-4 ztf
Dubuque,lowa

5 185

Item 2.



lnformation to Comply with Government Auditing Standards
and Uniform Guidance
June 30,2022

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

.:>)

eideboilly.ron

EideBailly.
186

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Table of Contents

lune30,2O22

lndependent Auditor's Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards... L

lndependent Auditor's Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program; Report on lnternal Control over
Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by Uniform Guidance......3

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ............. 6

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of FederalAwards ...........8

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.... o

187

Item 2.



.,,-,F**:,:+,
1

EideBailly
a

!-r.-,.....". . '

(Pls & BUSllltSS ADVISORS

lndependent Audito/s Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental

activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, (City) as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 27,

2022.

Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internol controlexists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the City's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a

timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.

Whol inspires you, inspires us. I eideboilly.com

l545AssociotesDr.,Ste. l0l I Dubuque, lA52002-2299 | T563.556.1290 | F563.557.7842 | EOE

7188

Item 2.



Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and

material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The

results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be

reported under Government Auditing Stondards.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the City's operations for the year ended

June 30, 2022, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our
audit of the financial statements of the City and are reported in Part lV of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all transactions that
might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments involving
statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Stondords in considering the City's internal control and

compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

{'r-Za zz/
Dubuque, lowa
October 27,2022

2189

Item 2.



EideBailly
!r

(PAr & BUSINISS ADVIS0RS

lndependent Auditol's Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program; Report on lnternal
Control over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of

Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Honorable Mayor and

Members of the City Council
City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Cedar Falls, lowa's, (City) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on the City's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2022. The City's

major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying

schedule of findings and questioned costs.

ln our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June

30,2022.

Basisfor Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standardsl; and the audit requirements of Title 2U.5. Code of FederalRegulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrotive Requirements, Cost Principles, ond Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform

Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described

in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in

accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for the
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management lor Complionce

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,

implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
City's federa I progra ms.

Whol inspires you, inspires us. I eideboilly.rom

I545 Associotes Dr., Ste. 101 | Dubuque. lA52002-2299 | T 563.556.1790 | F 563.552.7842 1 EOE

3190

Item 2.



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ol Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an

opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance

but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance

with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is

higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the City's compliance with the requirements of the major federal program

as a whole.

ln performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standords, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

o Exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
o ldentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include

examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the City's compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances.
o Obtain an understanding of the City's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and

report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in

internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on lnternal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internql control over complionce exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A moterialweakness in internal control over
complionce is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such

that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A

significant deficiency in internol control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,

in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

4191

Item 2.



Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all

deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. We issued our
report thereon dated October 27,2022, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and

is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records

used to prepare the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. ln our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

€r-4 tz/
Dubuque, lowa
October 27,2022

5192

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

YearEnded June30,2O22

Federal Financial

Assistance

Listin&/Federal

CFDA Number

Pass-through

Entity

ldentifying
Number Expenditures

Amounts Passed-

Through to
Subrecioients

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through

Grantor/ProSram or Cluster Title

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement

Grants

COVID-19 - Community Development Block

Grants/Entitlement Grants

Total CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster

Passed through lowa Economic Development Authority
COVID-19 - Community Development Block

Grants/State's Program and Non-Entitlement
Grants in Hawaii

Passed through City of Waterloo, lowa

Home lnvestment Partnerships Program

Housing Voucher Cluster

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

COVID-19 - Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

Total Housing Voucher Cluster

14.218

74.2r8

14.228

74.239

s 5572,856

1t3,870

28,500

79,24L

626,726 1o7,747

20-cvE-009

M01DC190206

tA0070300

t,4t4,283
47,437

128,986 75,395

63,010

L4.87t
14.87t

7,455,7t4

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 2,274,436 183,136

U.S, Department of Justice

Joint Law Enforcement Operations
Joint Law Enforcement Operations
Passed through City of Waterloo, lowa

Joint Law Enforcement Operations

Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program

Total U.S. Department of Justice

t6.ttt
16.111

t6.77r

16.607

2,43t
8,009

4,238

t4,678

10,330

25,008

6See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 193

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June3O,2022

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

Federal Financial
Assistance

Listing/Federal
CFDA Number

Pass-through
Entity

ldentifying
Number Expenditures

Amounts Passed-
Through to

Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Transportation

Passed through lowa Department of Transportation

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster

Highway Planning and Construction

Highway Planning and Construction

Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster

Passed through lowa Department of Public Safety

Governor's Traffic Safety Bureau

Highway Safety Cluster

State and Community Highway Safety

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

U,S. Treasury

Passed through lowa Department of Revenue

COVID-19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund

20.205

20.205

20.600

21.019

sTP-s7-2

l28l-2C-07
TAP-U-1185

(6s41-8F07

21-405d

Fitness Center

Relief

346

292,776

s s

293,t22

t,832

294,954

328,334

s 2,922,732 s 183,135Total Federal Financial fusistance

7See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 194

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June30,2022

Note 1- Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the schedule) includes the federal award activity

of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, (the City) under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30,

2O22.The information is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal

Regulations Part 200, IJniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, ond Audit Requirements for Federal

Awords (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City,

it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the
City.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such

expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain

types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Federal financial assistance

provided to a subrecipient is treated as an expenditure when it is paid to the subrecipient.

Note 3 - lndirect Cost Rate

The City has not elected to use the LO% de minimis cost rate.

8195

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June3O,2022

Part l: Summary of the Auditor's Results:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor's report issued

lnternal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

FEDERATAWARDS

lnternal control over major program:
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weaknesses

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.516:

ldentification of major programs:

Name of Federal Program

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified

No

None Reported

No

No

None Reported

Unmodified

No

Federal Financial
Assistance
Listing/Federal
CFDA Number

t4.87L

s75o,ooo

Yes

9196

Item 2.



City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June30,2022

Part ll: Financial Statement Findings:

There were no findings to report.

Part lll: FederalAward Findings and Questioned Costs:

There were no findings and questioned costs to report.

Part lV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting:

2022-tA-A Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2022, did not exceed the
amount budgeted.

2022-tA-B Questionable Expenditures - We noted no expenditures that we believe may fail to meet the
requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General's opinion dated April 25, L979.

2022-|,A-C Travel Expense - No expenditures of City money for travel expenses of spouses of City officials or

employees were noted.

2022-lA-D Business Transactions - No business transactions between the City and City officials or employees

were noted.

2022-lA-E Restricted Donor Activity - No transactions were noted between the City, City officials, City

employees and restricted donors in compliance with Chapter 688 of the Code of lowa.

2022-tA-F Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of City officials and employees is in accordance with
statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed annually to ensure that the
coverage is adequate for current operations.

2022-lA-G Council Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been approved in the
Council minutes but were not.

2022-lA-H Deposits and lnvestments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and investment
provisions of Chapters 12B and L2C of the Code of lowa and the City's investment policy were

noted.

2022-tA-a Revenue Loan - No instances of non-compliance with the sewer state revolving loan revenue debt
provisions were noted.

2022-lA-t Annual Urban Renewal Report - The annual urban renewal report was properly approved and

certified to the lowa Department of Management on or before December 1.

Tax lncrement Financing - The Special Revenue Tax lncrement Financing Fund properly disbursed

payments for TIF loans and rebates. Also, the City properly completed the Tax lncrement Debt

Certificate forms to request TIF property taxes.

2022-tA-R

10197

Item 2.



Tax Increment Financing

City Council Committee

November 7, 2022

198

Item 3.



Tax Increment Financing

• Chapter 403 State Code of Iowa

• Slum & Blight (no sunset date)

• Economic Development (20-year 

sunset date)

• Combination of the two above (no 

sunset date)

199

Item 3.



Tax Increment Financing

• TIF is a reimbursement
• For projects eligible to be repaid with TIF funds, 

the funds are paid up front from another city 

source, and then reimbursed through TIF.

• So each year we create debt obligations to the 

funds that are cashflowing the projects 

through interfund loan resolutions.

• Ex. Local Option Sales Tax fund may pay for 

the costs of a new street in a TIF district and 

we create a loan from that fund for TIF to 

repay.

• No balance of cash sitting in a special TIF fund. 
200

Item 3.



Tax Increment Financing

• TIF Certifications
• Each year by December 1st, the City files a report 

to the County Auditor certifying what projects are 

requested to be paid from the TIF fund, and the 

County then disburses those funds to the City the 

following budget year.

• Ex.  Amounts certified by 12/1/22 will be for 

budget year 7/1/23-6/30/24 (FY24) 

201

Item 3.



Tax Increment Financing

• TIF reporting
• Also, each year by December 1st, the City is 

required to file a report with the Iowa Department 

of Management summarizing the TIF activity for 

the prior fiscal year.  

202

Item 3.



Tax Increment Financing

• Not all levies are impacted by TIF
• Debt Service (school, city, county)

• PPEL

• $34.51 Total Levy

• $30.39 TIF Eligible

203

Item 3.



Tax Increment Financing

Increment = $2,300,000

$200,000 $2,500,000

204

Item 3.



Tax Increment Financing - Example

• Remodel of Existing Downtown 

Commercial Building

• Current Assessment - $385,030

• Estimated Assessment - $735,030

• Increment Created - $350,000

205

Item 3.



TIF Districts in Cedar Falls - Downtown

• Established 1986

• No Sunset Date

206

Item 3.



TIF Districts in Cedar Falls – College Hill

• Established 2011

• No Sunset Date

207

Item 3.



TIF Districts in Cedar Falls – Pinnacle 

Prairie
• Established 2006

• 20-Year Expiration

208

Item 3.



TIF Districts in Cedar Falls – South Cedar 

Falls
• Established 2018

• 20-Year Expiration

209

Item 3.



TIF Districts in Cedar Falls – Unified Hwy 58

• Multiple 

Establishment 

Dates

• 20-Year Expiration

210

Item 3.



TIF Districts in Cedar Falls – Unified Hwy 58

• Multiple 

Establishment Dates

• 20-Year Expiration

211

Item 3.



Development Agreement - Assumptions

• Commercial Rollback of 90%

• No Increase/Decrease in Tax Rate 

Over Rebate Period

• No Increase in Value of Property

• Does Not Factor Non-Direct 

Benefits
• New Jobs

• New Homes Constructed

• Other Spending in the Community

212

Item 3.



Current Incentives

• Downtown: City provides a 5-year, 100% tax rebate 

(TIF rate of $30.39) on the increased valuation of 

project, with a minimum investment of $200,000.

• College Hill: City provides a 5-year, 100% tax 

rebate (TIF rate of $30.39) on the increased 

valuation of project, with a minimum investment of 

$200,000. 

• Example Project: Increased Building Valuation of 

$350,000 = 5 Year, 100% Tax Rebate, Not to Exceed 

$47,871 (Based on TIF Rate of $30.39). 213

Item 3.



Current Incentives
• Industrial Projects Located in Industrial Parks

• City provides 1+/- acre of developed industrial park land for 

each 10,000 square feet of building area.

• Minimum building valuation of $40 per square foot.

• If building valuation is $1.2M or above, City provides for a 5-

year partial property tax abatement (75%, 60%, 45%, 30%, 

15%).

• If building valuation is between $1M and $1.2M, City provides 

for a 3-year partial property tax abatement (45%, 45%, 45%).

• If building valuation is less than $1M, no tax incentives 

provided.

214

Item 3.



Current Incentives
• Professional Office Projects Located in Industrial/Technology 

Park

• City provides 1+/- acre of developed land for each 7,500 

square feet of building area.

• Minimum building valuation of $75 per square foot.

• If building valuation is $1.2M or above, City provides for a 5-

year tax rebate (75%, 60%, 45%, 30%, 15%).

• If building valuation is between $1M and $1.2M, City provides 

for a 3-year tax rebate (45%, 45%, 45%).

• If building valuation is less than $1M, no tax incentives 

provided.

215

Item 3.



Current Incentives

• Outside of the Downtown and College Hill areas, 

the City does not provide incentives for commercial 

developments.

• City currently does not provide incentives for 

residential developments.

216

Item 3.



Questions?

217

Item 3.



City Council Update

November 7, 2022

218

Item 1.



State of Iowa

Regional

City
Public 

Investments

Private 

Investment 

(Projects)

Community Economic Development
• Business Attraction

• Main Street Iowa

• State Incentives

• Regional Attraction/Retention

• Workforce Development

• Innovation

• Local Attraction/Retention

• Planning/Zoning

• Local Incentives

219

Item 1.



State of Iowa

Regional

City

Econ Dev Corp

Public 

Investments

Private 

Investment 

(Projects)

Community Economic Development
• Business Attraction

• Main Street Iowa

• State Incentives

• Regional Attraction/Retention

• Workforce Development

• Innovation

• Development Partnerships

• P/P Capital Formation

• Redevelopment Projects

• Local Attraction/Retention

• Planning/Zoning

• Local Incentives

220

Item 1.



CFEDC Vision Statement

Our Challenge:  Council placed the responsibility of economic development under the City Administrator.  

Goal to improve competitiveness of our Community (through better economic development 

capabilities/partnerships).

Our Solution:  The Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation (CFEDC) was incorporated in 2021 by 

a committed group of local visionaries who support a growing business environment for the 

community. They recognize that for the community to thrive, it would be best if local business owners, 

investors and stakeholders provided leadership and support to direct strategic local development efforts 
in concert with local government. 

CFEDC Today:

 We are a public-private partnership working every day to make Cedar Falls, IA the best place to live, 

work and play.
 Incorporated (filed) as 501-C4 not-for-profit corporation

 Privately and publicly funded

221

Item 1.



Our Values
Vision

Leadership

Collaboration

Trust

CFEDC Overview

What We Do
Advocate

Connect

Support

Navigate

222

Item 1.



Progress thru Past Success

 Master Planning

 Zoning/Code Updates

 Infrastructure Upgrades

 Amenities

 Incentives

 Private Investment

 Harvest Return on 
Investment (Repeat)

223

Item 1.



Cedar Falls Industrial Park

1980 2000 2020

Public Investment

$2M

Private Investment

$1M

Public Investment

$2M

Private Investment

$1M

Public Investment

$2M

Private Investment

$1M

224

Item 1.



Cedar Falls Downtown District

1980 2000 2020

Public Investment

$2M

Private Investment

$1M

Public Investment

$2M

Private Investment

$1M

Public Investment

$2M

Private Investment

$1M

225

Item 1.



How Will We Succeed?

We will succeed by:

▪ Communicate the clear value of economic development 
and vision of CFEDC

▪ Use the cities Future Forward vision as a guide

▪ Advocate with stakeholders to promote the thoughtful, 

thriving, and long-term growth message  

▪ Navigate unique assets to create exceptional experiences and 

success for business

▪ Focus and engage; when to say yes and when to say no

226

Item 1.



Our Partners

Board Member
Public Partner

Public Partner Public PartnerPublic Partner

Board Member
Public Partner

Board Member
Public Partner

Public Partner

Board Member
Public Partner

227

Item 1.



Forrest Benton
Benton Concreate

Tori Lockard
Lockard Development Brian Wingert

Structure Real Estate

Brad Leeper
InVision Archeitecture

Mark Nook
University of Northern Iowa 

Jim Miller
First Interstate Bank

Bryan Earnest
Ampergage

Mark Stewart
RSPN

Katy Susong
Cardinal Construction

Jesse Gleason
Farmers State Bank

Mark Kittrell
Eagle View 

Kevin Harberts
Kryton

Cary Darrah
Grow Cedar Valley

Ron Gaines
City of Cedar Falls

Jim Coloff
Coloff Media

Bugs Benton
Benton Companies

Kris Hansen
Western Home

Bob Manning
CV Homebuilders

Bob Seymour
Community Bank and Trust

Pam Delagardelle
UnityPoint Health

Merrill Oster

Steve Bernard
CFU 

228

Item 1.



2022 CFEDC Activity
BOD created the following six areas of focus for the CFEDC

(Not an exclusive list – needs be focused but flexible)

• Redevelopment of the University Area Corridor
Continue opportunity of purchasing College Square Mall
Advocating for incentives throughout corridor
Rezoning University Ave corridor
Visit potential state dollars

o Met with mall owner/broker in Las Vegas – March 2022
o Follow up meetings (online, phone, email)
o Further plans; Presenting final offer Q1 of 2023
o This only gets done with the city incentives
o Studies needed; viability, best-use, retail analysis, etc. 
o Incentives will assist the entire corridor 
o “A-type” projects are possible - generational transformative 

projects are possible… 
o The goals will be NOT to compete with other areas of CF

229

Item 1.



2022 CFEDC Activity
• Increase development of residential (workforce) housing

Housing Need Assessment (under way)
Navigate options for developers
Change paradigm towards city investments
Assist with Housing Tax Credits and other state incentives

o HNA roughly two-thirds completed - INRCOG & IDM (~$40,000) 
o Assisting local developers on state incentives (tax credits)
o Work through increased costs for infrastructure, rates, materials
o Discussion needed for city-specific investments
o 500 new single-family houses would have roughly $3,000,000 in 

tax revenue to the city every year – lowers the burden for 
everyone – long term ROI (Vision) – no out-of-pocket cost for city

• Reimagine our relationship with the Cedar River
Continue partnership with Grow Cedar Valley
Assist with bringing the Cedar Valley HUG together
Scope out existing/state dollars

o Self explanatory (great river project approaved) – collaborate with 
Grow Cedar Valley and the surrounding area, what’s next? River 
trail system, dam mitigation, navigability?

230

Item 1.



2022 CFEDC Activity
• Support the redevelopment of College Hill

Assist UNI in their economic growth plans
Assist College Hill Partnership (Neighborhoods)

o City staff presented approved vision plan – now to zoning
o College Hill and entire UNI area is a natural fit for the CFEDC
o Meetings with UNI/CHP stakeholders
o Meetings to cast a vision for the area (A,B,C type plans)
o Advocate ideas/concepts (parking, zoning, housing, amenities, 

etc.)

• Continue to support the success of downtown
Support the CMS vision and growth
Lead in pushing for final zoning approval 
Advocate on behalf of CMS as initiatives are planned

o Waiting for zoning to be completed – difficulty advocating
o Countless stakeholder meetings (director, board, businesses, 

investors, citizens) 
o What happened in the 80’s until now – what does 2040 look like?
o Vision meetings – what’s next (ramp, restaurants, office spaces, 

shops, etc.)? 231

Item 1.



2022 Activity

• Build support for CFEDC
Develop varying platforms of support: Community 
involvement, online, media presence, word of mouth, etc.)
Continue/Encourage/Foster private/public relationships

o Reality of past 16 months – created CFEDC in July of 2021 –
raised over $300K by Dec of 2021 (incredible support)

o By-laws, website, social media, office, logo in the spring 2022

o Final CFEDC Vision/Goals early summer 2022

o Dozens of conversations/meetings with business owners about 
CFEDC, working with city, expansion, etc., working closely with 
Shane

o Board voted to separate accounts to account for city dollars (still 
unrestrictive dollars)

o Conversations with CF School District – use public/private 
partnership towards best-use of land in 2024 (new high school)

232

Item 1.



2022 Activity

Reality: Cedar Falls is competing
o Housing Investments by the city – if not now, when? 

o Some estimates = 450 employees needed for the new industrial 
park expansion, we’re losing to surrounding areas… various 
reasons, but we’re losing.

o UNI: campus and facilities brings in revenue – sound investment 

o Safety & Schools is a key indicator where people will live

o QOL Investments: River, trails, golf course, arts, infrastructure, 
businesses, development

o Great basic services: Roads, parks, transfer station, leaf 
removal, low taxes, etc.

o Developers pick/choose where they spend money and take risks

o X amount of “Investment” = Y amount of tax revenue (income)

233

Item 1.



Contract Amendment?

Last year’s contract was somewhat duplicated with Grow Cedar Valley’s 
contract – this was early in the conversations of what the CFEDC would 
be doing – we had the concepts, ideas, and the money was being raised.

We would like to amend the agreement, reflecting the six points above, if 
they align with the elected, in valuing the continued public/private 
partnership between the city and the CFEDC.

234

Item 1.



Request of City Council

o Option 1: Fund this fiscal year like last year out of the city’s 
existing Economic Development Account at $75,000

o Option 2: We’d like to approach this council for CFEDC CIP -
$300,000 over the next three years – there is much to do towards 
economic development and creating a vision for Cedar Falls

o Housing Need Assessment, Market studies & analysis, feasibility 
studies, gap analysis, consulting for the mall, schools, 
healthcare, updating Future Forward

235

Item 1.



Jim Brown

Executive Director

200 State Street, Suite 202
319.575.0375

Jim.Brown@cedarfallsEDC.com

236

Item 1.

mailto:Jim.Brown@cedarfallsEDC.com


10/31/22

1

New Pool Opportunity – Nov 7, 2022

1

Points we will address
●Why does Cedar Falls need a new pool?

● Impacts of New Pool to Community

● Key elements of pool design

● Cost and Collaborative financing

● Timing

2

237

Item 2.



10/31/22

2

Pools in the Cedar Valley
§ Cedar	Falls	public	pools:

§ Holmes	Pool	– built	in	1977;	45	years	old
§ Peet	Pool	– built	in	1977;	45	years	old

§ Elsewhere	in	the	Cedar	Valley
§ Central	Pool	– 1972	years	old	– 50	years	old
§ YMCA	pool	– 1979;	6	lanes;	members	only;	outdated
§ Waterloo	West	pool	– >45	years;	4	lane	pool
§ YWCA	pool	– 1924;	4	lanes;	20	yards
§ Cedar	Valley	Sportsplex	– 2013;		only 3	lanes
§ River	Hills	– small	therapy	size	pool	~20X30	ft
§ UNI	pool	– 8	lane	pool;	open	to	UNI	alums	and	students	only
§ Western	Home	– 2018;	4	lane	therapy	pool;	residents	only
Pool	is	45	years	old	or	older	 NOT	open	to	the	public

3

Pool Need in Cedar Falls
● Modern indoor pool is a necessary part of a vibrant community

○ Essential for water safety, swim lessons, supply of lifeguards 
○ Recreation and fitness for all ages 

● Ability to attract & retain young families
○ Cedar Valley Area is already an outlier (negative) 
○ Indoor pools are a regional asset
○ Brain drain driven by lack of investment in quality of life

○ Tourism and visitor impact (CF Tourism & Visitors Bureau formula) 
○ Opportunity to attract 3,000+ visitor families annually; $1.2/year in revenues which 

is $60 million for the life of the natatorium.

4

238

Item 2.



10/31/22

3

County/Community Population	Change:	
2010-2021

Black	Hawk	County - 0.6%

Cedar	Falls	 +	3%

Dubuque	County	
(Dubuque)

+	5%

Linn	County	(Cedar	Rapids) +	8%

Story	County	(Ames) +	11%

Johnson	County	(Iowa	City) +	18%

Scott	County	(Davenport) +	5%

Greater	Des	Moines	area +	17%

Rural	Iowa	Counties - 2%

Iowa +	5%

5

Huge Need
● Swimming is the most popular kid/family recreational activity
● Within the next 5 years, indoor pool availability in the area will be abysmal 

○ Indoor pool infrastructure already bad
○ More will close or become defunct in coming years (i.e. Dubuque)

● Cedar Falls needs swim safety and lifeguards
● Cedar River and other water recreation
● Falls Aquatic Center

● Existing pools are used to full capacity
● School, lap swim, children’s swim lessons, therapy/healthcare, club teams, seniors
● Peet planned closure in 1-2 years

● Existing pools lack accessibility  

6

239

Item 2.



10/31/22

4

Rec	Center	Survey	

#1 item	respondents	want	is	
improved	aquatics	
facility/access

7

Newer Pools in other Communities
● Linn Mar pool – 3 years old; Stand alone facility. Stretch 25 yd pool w 8 competition lanes & 

5 lane cool down area 75’ X 109’
● Dubuque pool – Built 2020; Stretch 25 yd pool w 8 competition lanes & 6 lane cool down 

area 75’ X 121’6”

● Ames pool – Under construction; Stretch 25 yd pool w 8 competition lanes & 5 lane cool 
down area 75’ X 115’

● Mason City – New pool as part of $37M improvement to high school mostly athletic 
facilities 

● Des Moines YMCA Wellmark – 50 meter pool opened Feb 2018

● Waukee pool – 50 meter pool under construction
● Cedar Rapids – In the process of building new pool
● Others with superior facilities to Cedar Valley: Fort Dodge, Iowa City, Quad Cities, Siouxland

8

240

Item 2.



10/31/22

5

Impacts of New Pool to Community
○ Tourism and visitor impact (CF Tourism & Visitors Bureau formula) 

○ Opportunity to attract 3,000+ visitor families annually; $1.2/year in 
revenues which is $60 million for the life of the natatorium.

● Development of special needs curriculum in collaboration with UNI
● Regional centerpiece for water activities

● Will be used by people across Black Hawk County and contiguous counties
● Help make our region competitive with communities with which we aspire to 

be comparable
● Combatting brain drain

9

Key Elements of Pool Design

10

241

Item 2.



10/31/22

6

11

12

242

Item 2.



10/31/22

7

13

Quality of Life Opportunities
● Specialty programming for people with disabilities
● Water polo 
● Aqua spinning
● Aqua trim
● Water Zumba
● Pool walking
● Lap swim
● Swim lessons
● Scuba classes
● Kayaking/Canoeing 
● Lifeguard water safety instructions/CPR/first aid classes
● Diving Club
● Swim Club
● Triathletes club
● Aqua therapy for those dealing with chronic health issues such as arthritis, Parkinson’s 

disease, fibromyalgia and joint replacements

14

243

Item 2.



10/31/22

8

Cost, Collaborative Financing & Timing

15

Collaborative Funding
School																									 $8	million								(38.1%)
City* $8	million								(38.1%)
Community** $3.3	million					(15.7%)
Shortage $1.7	million						(8.1%)
Total $21	million							(100%)

*City	will	use	pool	70%	of	the	time	for	only	38%	of	the	cost.	
$5.1	already	in	CIP;	$2.9	pending	approval	this	session.	

**Raised	$2.6	million	of	the	$3.3	million	so	far.
Collaboration	=	Most	efficient	use	of	taxpayer	resources

16

244

Item 2.



10/31/22

9

Time is of the Essence
● Negative impact of delay

○ Ability to obtain other funds dependent City of Cedar Falls
○ Community Attraction & Tourism Grant (CAT)
○ Black Hawk Gaming

● Costs will continue to increase
● Increased risk of permanent pool breakdown/irreparable (ie Dubuque)
● Peet closure imminent due to need for additional classroom space.
● Time limitations of existing grant awards
● Impact on further fundraising and pledges

17

Cost/Funding

PHASE 1 ($16.1 million)
- Approved by School Board on October 4
- Fall 2022 Complete work impacting main

project – Retaining Walls
- Spring 2023 – Bulk of construction begins
- September 2023 – Construction Complete 

(building shell only, no pools or seating)

PHASE 2 ($4.9 million)
- Completion of Bidding

Documents January 2024
- Spring 2024 – Construction 

begins
- December 2024 – Pool and 

seating construction Complete

18

245

Item 2.



10/31/22

10

What we are asking for?

Asking	for	City	contribution	to	increase	by	$2.9	million	
for	a	total	contribution	of	$8	million

19

Questions?

20

246

Item 2.



10/31/22

11

Traci	Mallaro
Co-Chair
mallarot@hotmail.com
402-305-2789

For	more	information	&	video	
walkthrough	go	to:
thecfpool.com

Lorelei	Redfern
Co-Chair
Loreleiredfern@icloud.com
319-230-4686

550+	community	members	
supporting	advocacy	and	
fundraising	for	a	new	indoor	pool

21

247

Item 2.

mailto:mallarot@hotmail.com
mailto:Loreleiredfern@icloud.com

	Top
	Item 1.	Library Appointments
	Appointment 2022-11-01_LBOT_Graziano-Roelofse
	Library - Graziano 7-5-22
	Library - Graziano -Questionnaire 7-7-22
	Library (Multiple) - Roelofse 6-30-22
	Library - Roelofse -Questionnaire 7-11-22

	Item 2.	FY2022 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
	Audit Report COUNCIL MEMO
	FY2022_City_of_CedarFalls_ACFR_full

	Item 3.	TIF Presentation to City Council
	City Council TIF Presentation 11-07-22

	Item 1.	Economic Development Corp Update
	CFEDC Council Update Presentation - Final

	Item 2.	Jump In
	City presentation 11.7.22

	Bottom

